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OUR VALUES

HOW WE
WORK

WHAT
WE DO

COMMUNITY
OUTCOMES

We can all breathe clear air, play and
swim in the rivers, gather mahinga kai,
benefit from the productive use of our
land, and enjoy Canterbury’s unique
biodiversity taonga and landscapes.

FRESHWATER
MANAGEMENT

Our communities get value
for money from us.
Our citizens are engaged and
enabled to play an active
part in shaping the region’s
future.

People first
Manaakitanga

We can live, travel, and move goods
with ease, within and to/from the
region, facilitating work, leisure and
tourism.

BIODIVERSITY
& BIOSECURITY

TRANSPORT
& URBAN
DEVELOPMENT

COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

RESILIENCE

We have access to the information
we need to be resilient in the face of
short-term hazards and well-prepared
for longer-term change to our region’s
natural environment.

HAZARDS,
RISK & RESILIENCE

We deliver customer-centric
integrated solutions to our
communities using regulatory
and non-regulatory tools.

We use science, data and
mātauranga Māori to support
decision-making, build
transparency and trust and
create collective wisdom.

Collaboration
Whanaungtanga

Integrity
Pononga

We can all help shape the future
of Canterbury, leaving a legacy for
generations to come.

AIR QUALITY

Our relationships with Ngāi
Tahu and our communities
provide a strong basis from
which to work. We are
strongest and most effective
when we work together.

Stewardship
Kaitiakitanga

REGIONAL
LEADERSHIP

We promote and support a
high performance culture.
Our values are our foundation
and guide us as we work with
our communities.

Can Do
Māiatanga
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The year in overview
He whakatakinga
Over the 2019/20 financial year we have faced unprecedented
challenges. The COVID-19 pandemic has tested us all, but the
Council performed very well under the circumstances.
Our priority has been manaakitanga/people first, putting
the community at the centre of our work as always and
looking after our exceptional staff. We responded quickly
to prioritise the delivery of essential services such as
emergency management, public transport, maritime
navigation safety, incident/pollution response and flood
protection. Many workplans were interrupted with onthe-ground services and community activities on hold. As
a result of the pandemic response, a number of Level of
Service targets could not be achieved.
As the impacts of COVID-19 became evident in March 2020,
Council accepted late feedback to inform how the 2020/21
Annual Plan priorities and rates could respond to changing
community needs. Staff presented a range of options to
reduce the overall rates increase and these were robustly
debated by Councillors. In June 2020 Council agreed
to increase its total rates revenue by 4% in the 2020/21
financial year, much less than the 9.8% originally proposed
when the draft plan was released.
In this 2019/20 Annual Report, Environment Canterbury
is reporting against the financial and Level of Service
measures and targets across our six portfolios set for the
second year of the Long-Term Plan 2018-28.
This document comprises Part A: Activity Reports by
Portfolio and Part B: Financial Reporting.
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In summary, of the 74 Levels of Service targets, 61 were
achieved, three were not measured (due to COVID-19), and
10 were not achieved. Commentary on the outcome for each
Level of Service target is detailed in Part A of this report.
During the 2019/20 financial year, the Council experienced
changes in both governance and staff leadership.
October 2019 saw us return to a fully elected Council for
the first time since 2010, in time for the 30th anniversary
of the establishment of the Council on 1 November 2019.
The new Council was quickly established to ensure the
smooth delivery of services and work programmes. For
the new Council, engaging with the community has been a
high priority and there is particular interest in working with
young people.
The new Council also affirmed our commitment to our
partnership with Ngāi Tahu as mana whenua, agreeing to
appoint two Tumu Taiao (Ngāi Tahu expert advisors) to
Environment Canterbury in 2020.

Despite the unprecedented challenges of the 2019/20
financial year, there are some excellent achievements
across our six portfolios demonstrated in this report
including the completion of the Waimakariri Flood
Protection Project; a Water Data initiative creating better
access to our wealth of data; an innovative project to
address odour issues in Bromley; outstanding timeframe
compliance for resource consent applications; building an
integrated approach to climate change; moving towards
smarter, more sustainable public transport; supporting new
technology for cleaner home heating and much more.
Looking ahead to the 2020/21 financial year, our Council
has developed a refreshed Strategic Direction/Te Aronga
Rautaki for Environment Canterbury: Taking action together
to shape a thriving and resilient Canterbury, now and for
future generations. Toitū te marae o Tāne, toitū te marae o
Tangaroa, toitū te iwi. This new strategic direction includes
enduring and transformational priorities.

At the end of April 2020, we farewelled Bill Bayfield after
almost ten years in the role of Chief Executive. Bill left the
organisation in good shape to face future challenges.
In August 2020 we welcomed Stefanie Rixecker as our new
Chief Executive. Stefanie has an impressive background in
leadership and management, not least while at Environment
Canterbury where she has led the Science team, the
Freshwater Management portfolio and the Climate Change
Integration programme. The Council is delighted to continue
working with Stefanie in the Chief Executive role.

Jenny Hughey
Chair
22 October 2020

Stefanie Rixecker
Chief Executive
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Part A:
Activity Reports by Portfolio
Ngā Mahi ā-Kaupapa Nui

Lake Pukaki
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Portfolios
Ngā Kaupapa Nui

Environment Canterbury’s work is
structured into six portfolios:

FRESHWATER
MANAGEMENT
BIODIVERSITY
& BIOSECURITY
HAZARDS, RISK
& RESILIENCE
TRANSPORT &
URBAN DEVELOPMENT
AIR QUALITY
REGIONAL
LEADERSHIP

The following pages include key points
to note for the year by portfolio.
Otematata River

Portfolio:
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FRESHWATER
MANAGEMENT

Level of
Service Targets:

Community
Outcomes:

Freshwater
Management
Implementing innovative solutions
to manage our freshwater resource
to support community use (mahinga
kai, drinking water and recreation),
achieve ecosystem health and
sustainable economic development.
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Canterbury Water
Management Strategy
Facilitation
Supporting community engagement
There are 10 water management zones throughout
Canterbury, each with a Water Zone Committee made
up of community appointees, Papatipu Rūnanga
representatives, and regional and local council
representatives. There is also a Regional Water
Management Committee, made up of representatives from
Environment Canterbury, territorial authorities, Papatipu
Rūnanga and Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, as well as one
member from each of the Zone Committees, along with
community members. Environment Canterbury supported,
in partnership with territorial authorities, the facilitation
of these committees. In 2019/20 the committees were
involved in 120 community zone and regional opportunities
to implement the Canterbury Water Management Strategy
(CWMS). Examples of community engagement included
supporting biodiversity projects through Immediate Steps
funding, connecting with catchment groups, attending
community events and sharing information and raising
awareness of issues with campaigns such as ‘Love our
Lakes’ and ‘Be a Stormwater Superhero’.
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0

0

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

NOT
MEASURED

COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

Freshwater Management
programmes:
• Canterbury Water Management
Strategy Facilitation
• Environmental Monitoring and Progress
Reporting
• Resource Management Act Water Framework
• Zone and Regional Delivery
• Regional Water Infrastructure Support
• Te Waihora Restoration

V

Over the past decade each Zone Committee has made
significant effort to produce a Zone Implementation
Programme to guide how to collectively achieve CWMS
goals and targets. In addition, many committees have,
through Zone Implementation Programme Addendum
(ZIPA), provided advice and recommendations for detailed
catchment specific sub-regional planning policies. As this
planning phase comes to an end, we have worked with our
committees and partners to move toward a greater focus
on partnering with others to deliver action on the ground.

MEASURE
1.1

Groundwater levels were monitored at a total of 528 sites,
and groundwater quality was monitored at 342 sites.

Canterbury Water Management
Strategy for the future

Facilitating opportunities for community engagement
to progress delivery towards the ten target areas in all
catchment zones.

TARGET
1.1

At least 100 community zone and regional opportunities for
engagement per year are held and will be reported yearly for
each zone and made available on our website ecan.govt.nz

Recreational water quality data we sample at freshwater
and coastal sites is made available for public use on
LAWA.org.nz usually within 24 hours of sampling.

RESULT

The target has been achieved through facilitation
of 120 opportunities for CWMS Zone and Regional
Committees to engage with communities on water
management issues and actions in the year. Regular
Zone Committee meetings have been held in all water
zones alongside workshops, field trips, planting days
and initiatives such as ‘Stormwater Superheroes’.

To implement the ‘Fit for the Future’ project of the CWMS,
ongoing work has continued and a regional work programme,
as requested by the Mayoral Forum, has been prepared.
Liaison has continued between district and city councils and
Environment Canterbury to develop the work programme.

Implementing the Whakaraupō
Catchment Plan
During the year the Whakaraupō Community Advisory
Group has been supported through a number of targeted
projects to implement the Whakaraupō Catchment Plan.
This has included mapping soil and erosion in Whakaraupō
(Lyttelton Harbour). The group has also identified three
priority streams for catchment-scale riparian planting pilot
projects. We have been providing advice on planting and
intend to secure low cost plants to use for the projects.
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 1:
In partnership with the Canterbury region’s city and
district councils and Ngāi Tahu, facilitate the CWMS zone
and regional committees to provide ongoing and improved
community input to water management decisions.

such as the National Institute of Water and Atmospheric
Research (NIWA) and Christchurch City Council.
Water quality was monitored monthly at 150 sites.
We also monitored ecosystem health at 160 sites.
This included looking at the number and diversity of
macroinvertebrates (insects and larvae), as well as an
assessment of habitat health.

From late March field work was unable to be carried out
at manual sites during COVID-19 alert level four lockdown,
with limited field work recommencing at alert level three.
Though this leaves a gap in the monitoring it does not
compromise the overall data set.

Freshwater science and data

Measuring and Monitoring quality
and quantity

Our groundwater science teams have provided significant
technical leadership over the last year and a half working
with regional councils on the new Groundwater Quality topic
on the national LAWA website. The Groundwater Quality
section of the website was launched across New Zealand in
April 2020 to improve public access to council data:
LAWA.org.nz/explore-data/groundwater-quality

Monitoring the environment and ecological state of
water bodies underpins the work to protect and improve
water quality across Canterbury. This is carried out
through regular and systematic scientific measuring and
monitoring to assess progress under the Canterbury Water
Management Strategy (CWMS). We monitored water levels
at 155 river and lake sites in Canterbury from the Waiau Toa/
Clarence River in the north to the Waitaki River in the south
during 2019/20. We measure river flow at 132 of these sites
and this information is combined with water level data to
produce continuous flow records. We report this alongside
data from 19 other sites recorded by partner agencies

A multi-year Water Data initiative was established this
financial year to transform how we govern, monitor,
manage and share water data. The team is improving
our understanding of water allocation and use, consent
compliance, state of the resource and the effectiveness
of our plans. In April, a prototype dataset was released
allowing plan limits to be compared with consented
allocation for each groundwater zone and river reach at
the touch of a button. This follows the development of a
single accounting method consistent with the Canterbury
Land and Water Regional Plan. Three test tools have been
developed from this, giving easier access to consistent data.

Environmental monitoring and
Progress Reporting

VI

LEVEL OF SERVICE 2:
Gather and make available information on water quantity, water quality, ecosystem health, soils, and progress towards the CWMS targets.

MEASURE
2.1

We collect and report on the following relevant detailed
data including: rainfall, river flows, river/stream water
quality, lake water quality, marine water quality, estuary
water quality, ecosystem health, groundwater levels,
groundwater quality, land, Mātauranga Māori (joint
programme from year two), recreational swimming,
water use.

TARGET
2.1

Collection and reporting of the data is described in the
detailed table adjacent. This table includes number of sites,
frequency of measure, availability of information.

RESULT

Our full monitoring network was operating this year,
with all results available as data or summaries via
the Environment Canterbury website, or on request.
We have a gap in the water quality monitoring data
during March and April 2020, due to the inability to
undertake sampling during the COVID-19 lockdown.
This gap does not compromise the overall data set,
which still meets the Level of Service requirements.
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Number
of sites

Frequency of measurement

Availability
of information

Rainfall

80

5 minutes

Live data available
on ecan.govt.nz

River water level/flow

145 recorder sites

Majority 5 minutes

Live data available on ecan.govt.nz

River water quality

150

Monthly/quarterly

Statistics on LAWA.org.nz
data on ecan.govt.nz

Lake water quality

33
3 lowland and 3 coastal

Monthly over summer
Monthly/quarterly

Statistics on LAWA.org.nz
data on ecan.govt.nz

Marine water quality

45

Monthly/quarterly

Annual summary available
on ecan.govt.nz

Estuary water quality

6

Monthly

Annual summary available
on ecan.govt.nz

Ecosystem health

160

Annual survey

Annual summary available
on ecan.govt.nz

Groundwater levels

356
172

Monthly
15 minutes

Updates on ecan.govt.nz for
monthly measurements as they are
measured. Daily measurements
extracted from 15 min data and
available on ecan.govt.nz quarterly

Groundwater quality

342
121
4

Annually
Quarterly
Monthly

Annual report available on
ecan.govt.nz
Monthly data update on
ecan.govt.nz

Land

Soil quality 350 sites
Soil quantity 25 paddocks

8-9 years
10 years

Annual summary available
on ecan.govt.nz

Recreational swimming
monitoring

50 freshwater
46 marine

Weekly over summer

Annual report on ecan.govt.nz
by December each year.
Weekly data on LAWA.org.nz
in summer months.

Water use

All consents over 5l/s

Compiled annually

Annual summary of water use
(metered) on ecan.govt.nz
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Zone and Regional Delivery

Zone based projects

This year our Zone and Regional Delivery Programme has
continued to work closely with landowners, communities
and stakeholders to develop locally-led solutions and
continue to empower our communities to get involved and
understand water issues in their communities.

Throughout the financial year the 10 water management
Zone Committees have identified projects for Immediate
Steps biodiversity funding, in line with zone priorities and in
partnership with willing landowners. Much project work was
paused during alert level four lockdown and resumed at either
alert level three or two as appropriate. Highlights include:

Good Management Practice through Farm
Environment Plans

Northern zone

The Land and Water Regional Plan requires the
implementation of Good Management Practice (GMP) on
farm to achieve water quality outcomes. Farm Environment
Plans (FEPs) enable farmers to recognise and record
environmental risks unique to their property and set out a
programme to manage those risks. They are a requirement
for farms that are part of a collective (irrigation scheme or
farming enterprise) or have an individual farming consent.
Most farms that require a farming land use consent have an
FEP, and a final campaign is being launched from mid-2020,
focusing on the remaining farms that currently require
resource consent due to winter grazing requirements.
Fish screens are designed to prevent fish from being drawn
into water intakes and a number of water consents have
specific conditions requiring fish screens. Our five-year
fish screen improvement campaign has been working to
improve performance of fish screens, initially focusing on 50
of these consents with a fish screen condition. These were
selected with input from Papatipu Rūnanga, the Department
of Conservation and Fish & Game and are mainly located at
large intakes or environmentally sensitive sites. This and other
compliance monitoring will help inform the action planning
necessary to support fish screen providers and consent
holders to implement compliant solutions. Alongside this
work the Regional Infrastructure Programme has also been
working with our partners on fish screens.
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• Improvements to Nagari and Hapuku wetlands following
fencing and weed control.
• Working with landowners to plant trees, permanently
exclude stock through fencing, and identify areas for
retirement.
• Supporting the ‘Love the Lyell’ Governance Group to
assist in the funding of projects to improve the health of
freshwater in the Kaikōura Flat catchment area.
• In Waimakariri the first mahinga kai ‘Shed Talk’ was held
in February 2020 to engage with landowners whose Farm
Environment Plans are required to include mahinga kai
values.
• Supporting Lees Valley landowners to protect remaining
wetlands by providing information on planting options
and by excluding stock.

Central zone
• Organising a programme to support long-term consistent
methods to manage erosion and sediment control (ESC)
including identifying industry requirements and training.
Eighty participants have taken an ESC management course.
• A Zone Committee working group with members from
the Cashmere Stream Care Group, Ōpāwaho Heathcote
River Network, and the community boards are working
on practical actions to address sediment issues in the
Cashmere Stream.
• The partners of the Whakaraupō Catchment Management
Plan met for a noho marae and hui in February 2020
hosted by Te Hapū o Ngāti Wheke to strengthen
connections and whanaungatanga/collaboration.

• Building on existing mahinga kai awareness raising,
Central Plains Water Ltd and Environment Canterbury
jointly produced a mahinga kai survey to inform the
development and rollout of ‘Shed Talks’ and education
for scheme members.
• Working with Selwyn District Council on key projects
such as ‘Swimmable Selwyn @ Coes Ford’, investigating
sources of water quality decline and implementing a
plan with landowners, community groups and schools
to increase the distance of fences from the river and
increase planting on the riverbanks.
• Wairewa Bank Stabilisation Project to trial a range of
treatments and plantings to reduce sediment entering
Te Roto o Wairewa/Lake Forsyth.

Southern zone
• In the Ashburton Lakes Basin work has progressed with
the Department of Conservation, Ngāi Tahu, landowners
and other stakeholders to investigate deteriorating water
quality. A work programme was agreed to investigate
and put in place appropriate mitigations such as nutrient
modelling and an evaluation of land use options.
• Supporting the new Ahuriri Catchment Collective
(catchment group) and independent facilitator in
response to the Trophic Level Index exceedance for the
Ahuriri Arm of Lake Benmore to run Good Management
Practice events for farmers in the catchment.
• ‘Love our Lakes’ campaign to raise awareness on water
quality in the lakes and how to look after the lakes.
• Working with the community to set up a catchment
group in the Northern Streams area of the Lower Waitaki
and investigating funding options to better support the
existing Waihao-Wainono and Hakataramea groups.
• Growing in-depth understanding of issues relating to
Waitarakao and Saltwater Creek.
• Community restoration plans are in development for
Waihao river at McCulloch’s Bridge.
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 3:
In partnership with other parties, implement the recommendations in the zone implementation and regional programmes.

MEASURE
3.1

Work is undertaken according to annual work
programmes that have been agreed by Zone and
Regional Committees.

TARGET
3.1

Publish an annual report with the Zone and Regional
Committees and publish an annual progress report towards
the ten CWMS targets, which will be made available on our
website.

RESULT

The 10 Water Zone Committee reports and Regional
Committee report are available on the Environment
Canterbury website at ecan.govt.nz/myzone

MEASURE
3.2

Agree joint work programmes in partnership with other
parties to implement the recommendations in the zone
implementation and regional programmes.

TARGET
3.2A

An agreed annual work programme is in place with
Canterbury District Health Boards, Irrigation New Zealand,
the Canterbury dairy industry, Fish & Game (North
Canterbury and Central South Island).

RESULT

Agreed work programmes were in place with
Canterbury District Health Board, Irrigation New
Zealand, Canterbury dairy industry, Fish & Game
(North Canterbury and Central South Island).

TARGET
3.2B

Publish two reports per year on the progress towards
implementation of the joint work programmes which
will be made available on our website.

RESULT

Final reports will be available in November 2020
at ecan.govt.nz/myzone
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MEASURE
3.3

Annual report on progress on the implementation of
Good Management Practice across primary industries.

TARGET
3.3

Publish annual report on the level of adoption of Good
Management Practice (including guidelines regarding
appropriate nutrient limits) to set good nutrient limits which
will be made available on our website.

RESULT

2018/19 Annual Report on the adoption of the Good
Management Practice is available online at
ecan.govt.nz/FEP1819

Kaikōura
Zone

Kaikōura
Zone

NORTHERN
ZONE
Hurunui Waiau Zone

Selwyn Waihora
Zone

Ashburton
Zone

SOUTHERN ZONE

Upper Waitaki
Zone

Waimakariri
Zone

Christchurch
West Melton
Zone

CENTRAL
ZONE
Banks Peninsula
Zone

Orari Temuka
Opihi Pareora
Zone

Lower Waitaki
South Coastal
Canterbury Zone

IX

Resource Management
Act Water Framework
Over the past seven years, region-wide rules for freshwater
areas have been enforced via the Canterbury Land and
Water Regional Plan (LWRP). The plan sets limits on water
takes, as well as limits on the loss of nitrate and other
pollutants from land to water bodies.
We have put in place some of the toughest rules in New
Zealand to govern water allocation and nitrate discharge,
within the country’s most comprehensive and restrictive
planning framework.
Collaborative planning processes, led through Water Zone
Committees, have established stricter sub-regional rules
for specific catchments based on the recommendations in
the Zone Implementation Programme Addenda.

Regional planning
Plan Change 7 (PC7) to the Land and Water Regional
Plan (LWRP) was notified on 20 July 2019. PC7 is in
response to emerging resource management issues, giving
effect to relevant national direction and implementing
recommendations from the Hinds Drains Working Party and
the Waimakariri and Orari Temuka Opihi Pareora (OTOP)
Zone Implementation Programme Addenda. We received
many more submissions (588) than for any other Resource
Management Act plan or plan change in the last 10 years due
in part to the numerous public engagement opportunities
held to support our communities to understand the impacts
and benefits and to engage with the process. Preparations
have been undertaken for the Independent Hearing Panel
originally scheduled for May, delayed due to COVID-19, and
now scheduled for September to December 2020.
Independent Panel Hearings were held in late 2019 for
Plan Change 1 (PC1) to the Hurunui Waiau River Regional
Plan (HWRRP). PC1 was notified in May 2019 to resolve
an unintended consequence in the HWRRP with very few
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submissions. A recommendation was received and adopted
by Council in February 2020 and no appeals were received.
As a result of the delays to the Hearings process due to
COVID-19, the focus turned to future planning projects and
the 2023 notification that will be guided by the national
Action for Healthy Waterways package.

Supporting communities to understand
planning and consent changes
In Ashburton a consent review to bring Hakatere/Ashburton
River water take consents in line with the minimum flows
specified in the LWRP by 2023 was launched in July 2019
and review notices sent to all affected consent holders. The
review is ongoing, with a focus on community engagement
and supporting those affected to work through their options.
Notably this financial year, there have also been a
significant number of government policies and legislative
proposals that could impact our local government
responsibilities for freshwater, and that we have made
submission on, including Action for Healthy Waterways.

Regional Water
Infrastructure Support
Infrastructure projects
Under this programme we continue to support a number
of regional water infrastructure projects with partners
including territorial authorities, landowners, irrigation
schemes and organisations such as North Canterbury and
Central South Island Fish & Game. These include support
for three major environmental infrastructure pilot projects
in Ashburton and Selwyn districts to improve water quality,
increase river flows, and groundwater levels which continue
to be trialled in the region. Through these we will broaden
our understanding of the technical feasibility and strategic
impact of community owned infrastructure to deliver on
multiple benefits.

• Construction on the Selwyn/Waikirikiri Near River
Recharge scheme, a $2.8 million project, co-funded by
the Ministry for the Environment Freshwater Improvement
Fund with an aim to support ecosystem health of the
river system by adding water during dry years, concluded
in November 2019. Initial commissioning took place in
May 2020, with full scheme commissioning and planting
planned for July to September 2020.
• The Hekeao Hinds Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR)
project trial, led by the Hekeao Hinds Water Enhancement
Trust with funding support from the Provincial Growth
Fund, aims to demonstrate the potential for MAR to
reduce nutrient (nitrate) concentrations in groundwater.
The project entered a new phase in February 2020 with
the key objectives of the expansion of the MAR concept
trialling moving from individual sites to catchment scale
and the preparation of a business case for a catchment
scale MAR scheme. Upon overall project completion
ownership will transfer to the community.
• Trials started for the Targeted Stream Augmentation (TSA)
and Permeable Reactive Barrier trials in the Kaiapoi/
Silverstream River catchment in the Waimakariri District.
The trials which aim to re-establish Canterbury Mudfish
(Kowaro) habitat are showing promising early results.

Fish screens
The industry-initiated Fish Screen Working Party, which
we are an active member of, was established by the
Canterbury Water Management Strategy Regional
Committee to review current good practice guidelines. It
continues to coordinate initiatives, mobilise technical and
regulatory perspectives and investigate information gaps to
inform improvements to intake configuration and practices.
We have been providing information from our Zone and
Regional Delivery Programme’s five-year fish screen
improvement programme alongside that of Irrigation NZ’s
Ministry for Primary Industries (MPI) supported Sustainable
Food and Fibre Fund project to better define good practices
with contributions from a range of organisations.
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Supporting infrastructure projects
The programme has also provided support to advance
projects aligned to infrastructure including on site effluent
treatment (OSET), drinking water and analysis of braided
river flows (Rakaia). It has also supported our relationship
with irrigation schemes, Water New Zealand and Irrigation
New Zealand to ensure stronger commitment to water use
efficiency – one of the ten target areas of the CWMS.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 5:
Facilitate an integrated approach to development of
water infrastructure in Canterbury that delivers on all
the CWMS targets.

MEASURE
5.1

An annual work programme that supports the
integrated approach to irrigation development in the
region, is agreed with the CWMS Regional Committee.

TARGET
5.1

Publish quarterly progress report on the regional
infrastructure work programme which will be made
available on our website.

RESULT

A work programme has been developed to support
an integrated approach to irrigation development
with our partners in the region. An annual report
aggregating quarterly progress on the work
programme will be made available online in
November 2020.

Te Waihora Restoration
Although there were some project works that needed to
be postponed to 2020/21 due to the impacts of COVID-19,
the majority of projects in the Whakaora Te Waihora work
plan were completed in 2019/20. Key achievements are
outlined below.

Whakaora Te Ahuriri
The Whakaora Te Ahuriri project is creating a constructed
wetland at Ahuriri Lagoon to improve water quality,
biodiversity and mahinga kai values. This year saw
extensive earthworks undertaken and 80,000 aquatic
plants and 44,000 terrestrial plants – a total of 124,000
plants – have been installed at the wetland. In May
2020, once COVID-19 restrictions were lifted, it was
possible to complete the final earthworks connecting
the constructed wetland to the Huritini/Halswell River,
making it operational.

124,000 plants
had been planted at the
Whakaora Te Ahuriri
constructed wetland
up from 72,000 at
31 December 2019

Weed Strikeforce partnership
The Weed Strikeforce partnership with the Department
of Conservation made good progress with willow and
weed control at lakeshore sites, which is fostering
natural regeneration with native plant and animal species
returning to sites.
Resource consent applications were submitted for the
restoration of Papatahora (a tributary of Te Waikēkēwai/
Waikēkēwai Stream) under the Whakaora Te Waikēkēwai
project in partnership with Te Taumutu Rūnanga.

The completed Whakaora Te Ahuriri constructed wetland

A feasibility assessment, and a draft concept plan for
a constructed wetland on the lakeshore at the end of
Embankment Road was completed.

Aerial view of the Williams’ Block showing the progress of the Weed Strikeforce’s
willow control
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 6:
Environment Canterbury will work in partnership to
implement a joint programme to progress the vision to
restore and rejuvenate the mauri and ecosystem health of
Te Waihora (Lake Ellesmere) and its catchment.

MEASURE
6.1

Deliver on joint work programme progress towards
restoration actions for Te Waihora and its catchment.

TARGET
6.1

An annual progress report on the agreed Whakaora Te
Waihora annual work programme which will be made
available on our website.

RESULT

Annual Report will be produced in October 2020 and
received by the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group for their
approval and then made available on tewaihora.org

MEASURE
6.2

Deliver the Whakaora Te Ahuriri wetland restoration
project.

TARGET
6.2

An annual progress report on the agreed Whakaora Te Ahuriri
work programme which will be made available online.

RESULT

Annual Report will be produced in October 2020 and
received by the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group for their
approval and then made available on tewaihora.org

Te Waihora (Lake Ellesmere)
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Portfolio:

8

Level of
Service Targets:

Community
Outcomes:

Biodiversity
& Biosecurity
Creating a step-change in effort
in the regeneration of freshwater,
marine and terrestrial biodiversity.

Biodiversity & Biosecurity
programmes:
•
•
•
•

Regional Biodiversity
Biosecurity
Braided Rivers
Wetlands
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Regional Biodiversity
Pest-free Banks Peninsula
This was the first year of Pest-free Banks Peninsula, a 30year initiative committed to the widespread eradication of
animal pests from Banks Peninsula/Te Pātaka o Rākaihautū.
This is a community-led collaborative programme to protect
and enhance biodiversity on Banks Peninsula, including the
Port Hills and Kaitorete. Environment Canterbury is one of 14
organisations involved and has contributed significant funding
and resources to the programme this year.
In 2019/20 Environment Canterbury has worked on possum
control, monitoring targeted locations in the Southern Bays
area, and contributed a programme to cull feral goats.
However, the COVID-19 lockdown meant that the remainder
of the cull and the follow-up targeted eradication operation
was postponed.

Community Partnerships
The Community Partnerships projects during 2019/20
were designed with our community, working hand in
hand to build the capacity and capability of Canterbury’s
community organisations to deliver projects to improve
their local environments through education and
collaboration. Most, although not all, have a biodiversity or
biosecurity focus. Key achievements include:

BIODIVERSITY
& BIOSECURITY

7

1

0

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

NOT
MEASURED

COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

• Networking for the Environment – a cross-organisational
approach to create opportunities for sharing
experiences, resources and tips among people working
for environmentally-focused organisations in Greater
Christchurch. This financial year’s programme focused
on communications and storytelling via social media.
Eighteen groups went through a training programme to
develop and maintain their online voice.
• Environment Canterbury supported the Christchurch
EnviroHub, which held several community events, including
a post-COVID-19 conversation with over 30 attendees
discussing how to embed the positive environmental
outcomes gained during the lockdown period. We also
supported the Timaru EcoCentre, which hosted the
Sustainability Festival, providing information to over 100
people on local environmental issues and sustainable living
practices.
• Five community groups were supported to expand their
predator trapping projects to protect the habitat of critically
endangered species, including the rare Jewelled Gecko.

XIII

Project effectiveness monitoring
Environment Canterbury undertakes a range of biodiversity
projects annually, with each project seeking to protect
and enhance indigenous biodiversity habitats and their
associated values. To better understand the gains from
these projects, Environment Canterbury has developed
a method to assess biodiversity project effectiveness.
Assessment occurs approximately three years after project
completion, which allows sufficient time after the actions
being taken to see benefits being realised.
This year, sixteen projects were selected for effectiveness
monitoring, with the criteria being that the projects were
initiated in the 2015/16 financial year and have been
completed. Each project was measured for intermediateterm effectiveness, by assessing standardised outcomes
for different project actions (e.g. fencing, weed control,
native planting, animal pest control, mahinga kai) and for
the likelihood of longer-term effectiveness, by assessment
of a variety of factors (e.g. physical, ecological context and
connectivity, and active site management).
This year we found that the effectiveness of biodiversity
projects in the medium term was generally high and projects
are mostly on-track to meet the planned outcomes. In the
longer-term, biodiversity projects have a moderate to high
likelihood of achieving the desired outcomes.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 7:
Environment Canterbury works with Ngāi Tahu, communities, territorial authorities, Department of Conservation, willing landowners
and other recreational, environmental and industry parties to protect and restore Canterbury’s indigenous biodiversity.

MEASURE
7.1

We collect relevant data to support effective decisionmaking for biodiversity outcomes.

MEASURE
7.3

Work with partners’ on on-the-ground projects to
protect and restore indigenous biodiversity.

TARGET
7.1B

A regional monitoring and reporting programme has
been implemented by 30 June 2020.

TARGET
7.3

Publish an annual report on the effectiveness of
projects contributing to protecting and restoring
Canterbury’s indigenous biodiversity which will be
available on the website.

RESULT

This target has been achieved through the development
of a regional monitoring programme for wetlands that
have received Environment Canterbury support for the
purpose of maintenance or enhancement of biodiversity
values. Monitoring involves capturing baseline condition
prior to management interventions and is followed
by ongoing monitoring to evaluate any changes to the
ecological integrity of wetland biodiversity values. This
information is captured in the Canterbury Wetlands GIS
layer on Canterbury Maps.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury has undertaken an
effectiveness monitoring project and over the 2019/20
financial year undertook 16 assessments of completed
biodiversity projects that were initiated in the 2015/16
financial year. The five-year time frame provides an
opportunity to measure the outcomes of the work. The
report can be found on the Environment Canterbury
website: ecan.govt.nz/biodiv-pem

MEASURE
7.2

Technical or other support is provided to territorial
authorities to give effect to biodiversity policy and
strategies.

TARGET
7.2

Where Environment Canterbury has provided support to
a territorial authority, the quality and relevance of that
support is measured and reported through an annual
survey of the territorial authorities.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury supported Timaru, Selwyn,
Waimakariri, Mackenzie and Waitaki District Councils
in the development of biodiversity provisions as part
of their District Plan reviews. Territorial authority
planners were surveyed in May and June 2020. Of the
four that responded all were satisfied or very satisfied
with the advice and support received. These territorial
authorities reported that our staff advice is invaluable,
comprehensive and timely and Environment Canterbury
has assisted with resources and specialist advice.

Project effectiveness monitoring site, revisited three years after planting
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Biosecurity
Wilding Conifer Control programme creates
employment opportunities
This year the Wilding Conifer Control programme has
expanded to 2.2 million hectares across Canterbury, receiving
funding of over $9 million. Environment Canterbury has been
working in many alpine catchments from the Waiau Toa/
Clarence River to the Lindis Pass to remove wilding pines.
As part of the government’s COVID-19 recovery plan,
Environment Canterbury has received an additional $2 million
from the regional support package to bolster the Wilding
Conifer Control Programme. Three new projects have been
developed in Craigieburn, Ōhau and Tekapo to both tackle
the problem of wilding pines and employ people hardest hit
by the economic fallout of COVID-19. These three projects will
provide jobs for around 70 people, with work for around three
months in locations near where workers are available.

Controlling nassella tussock
Environment Canterbury is working with landowners and
international experts to create innovative and engaging
approaches to nassella tussock control. Fourteen Blythe
Valley property owners voluntarily participated in a pilot
for a new nassella tussock grading system in November
2019. The grading system aims to provide a more useful
assessment of the nassella tussock control efforts and
results for each landowner and recognise work done and
ongoing work required. Properties were graded A, B, C
or D using criteria based on compliance outcomes and
positive control activities. Following the pilot, landowners
provided positive feedback and made suggestions for how
to improve the grading system. These will be incorporated
into a recommendation on how to implement the system
over a wider geographic area.

Understanding pest pathways
In 2019/20 Environment Canterbury commissioned AgResearch
to review weed science literature occurrences; invaded range
occurrences; climate matching; Global Compendium of Weeds
weed status classification and the dispersal pathway(s) for
each of what are considered the four most invasive pest plant
Annual Report 2019/20

LEVEL OF SERVICE 8:
Environment Canterbury administers and implements a Regional Pest Management Plan and provides incursion response
and pathway management to prevent the establishment and spread of pests in the region to support economic production,
biodiversity and mahinga kai.
MEASURE
8.1

Implementation of a Regional Pest Management Plan that
meets the requirements of the Biosecurity Act 1993 and
the National Policy Direction for Pest Management.

TARGET
8.1

Publish an annual report on progress towards the objectives
in the RPMP which will be available on the website.

RESULT

The Report on the Operational Plan 2019/20 summarises
annual budgets against actual expenditure and annual
outputs (levels of service) for each pest programme which
contribute to meeting the objectives in the Canterbury
Regional Pest Management Strategy (CRPMP 2018-2038).
The 2019/20 report will be published in September 2020
and will be available on the Environment Canterbury
website: ecan.govt.nz/crpmp

MEASURE
8.2

Development and implementation of pathway
management initiatives.

TARGET
8.2

Work with others to develop and document pathway
management initiatives indicating timeframes and
milestones and publish annually on the website.

RESULT

There is ongoing work involving advocacy and
collaboration across the region and nationally on Farm
Biosecurity with Industry, Ministry for Primary Industry
(MPI), Regional Council Sector and community. The
freshwater pathway programme Check Clean Dry
partnership with MPI was implemented in the summer
of 2019/20.
Environment Canterbury Biosecurity staff are forming
a South Island Biosecurity Alliance which will develop
ways of collaboratively developing pathway management
initiatives. Other pathway management initiatives
include the Chilean Needle Grass Partnership with MPI,
Marlborough District Council and Hawkes Bay Regional
Council, and a Memorandum of Understanding has been
signed with Otago Regional Council to manage wallabies.
The freshwater aquatic lakeweed surveillance partnership
with Meridian, the Department of Conservation, Land
Information NZ and NIWA is implemented annually.

species (broomsedge, kangaroo grass, nutgrass, palm grass)
declared as pests in the Regional Pest Management Plan’s
exclusion programme. This work attracts funding from the
Ministry for Business Innovation and Employment under the
AgResearch Strategic Science Investment Fund.

Biosecurity Advisory Groups
Four Biosecurity Advisory Groups were recently established
to enhance the way Environment Canterbury works with
communities. These groups champion the implementation of
the Canterbury Regional Pest Management Plan and provide
advice on agricultural and biodiversity pest management to
support good biosecurity practices such as farm biosecurity
initiatives. The four groups (Northern, Central, Christchurch/
Banks Peninsula, and Southern) have representation from
urban and rural community groups, subject matter experts,
Papatipu Rūnanga, and local authorities including regional
and district Councillors. The first group meetings occurred
in February 2020. These meetings provide a public forum for
discussion of biosecurity matters and community feedback
on Environment Canterbury biosecurity work. Details of
future meetings are available on the Environment Canterbury
website: ecan.govt.nz/BAGmeetings

MEASURE
8.3

Maintain effective incursion response capability.

TARGET
8.3

Response capability as agreed under the National
Biosecurity Capability Network will be available.

RESULT

Biosecurity staff undertook incursion response training
by Ministry for Primary Industries. An incursion
response agreement continues to be in place through
the joint regional council sector.

XV

Braided Rivers
Braided River Revival
Environment Canterbury has been working on aligning all our
work in braided rivers, including our biodiversity, biosecurity,
regulation, land management and flood protection roles
and our responsibility to Ngāi Tahu mana whenua and their
kaitiaki relationship with braided rivers and ability to access
mahinga kai. We are working with our partners to create a
unifying brand and landscape-scale alignment for braided
rivers – Braided River Revival - Whakahaumanu Ngā Awa ā
Pākihi – to align mana whenua, agencies and communities
involved in braided river management, reviving the critical
ecological corridors from the mountains to the sea and the
connections between people and rivers. This will enable
us to work together to enhance and protect the natural
character of braided rivers.

Ki uta ki tai / mountains to the sea
The Ashley River/Rakahuri plan, developed with Te Ngāi
Tūāhuriri Rūnanga, Waimakariri District Council and the
Department of Conservation, will bring the revival concept
to life. The plans will provide vision and long-term delivery
of biodiversity, mahinga kai and recreation values as
funding becomes available. We are also working closely
with Te Rūnanga o Arowhenua and the Department of
Conservation to scope a plan for the Rangitata River. This
work provides an opportunity to restore the mauri of the
river – Papatipu Rūnanga members have told us that if
rivers were managed first and foremost for mahinga kai,
everything else (including water quality, water quantity and
species habitat) would be looked after – mahinga kai is a
key indicator of the health of the river. The effects of the
December 2019 floods, climate change, land management
and rating will also be part of the conversation. Information
from the Braided River Action Group (BRAG) pilot
project in the Rangitata will assist. BRAG is a strategic
partnership that brings together Land Information New
Zealand, Department of Conservation, Ngāi Tahu, Fish &
Game, Forest & Bird, Federated Farmers and some local
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authorities to address land use change in braided rivers
and develop best practice public land management in
these environments. Environment Canterbury is leading
this work on our own land. The group is currently finalising
its second progress report and expects to see its Rangitata
pilot recommendations actioned. This will include providing
land managers and licensees more certainty about the land
they are using. Mapping of the ownership and management
of the Ashley River/Rakahuri, Rakaia, Rangitata and Lower
Waitaki is complete. Mapping of the Waimakariri River and
Ashburton/Hakatere is in progress.

Braided river habitats
The practical work that is done by our teams in braided
rivers for biodiversity values, our on-the-ground work to
maintain and increase breeding habitat through weed
and predator control, habitat enhancement, and research
is vital. Much of this work is in the Waiau Toa/Clarence,
Rakaia and Upper Rangitata rivers.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 9:
Environment Canterbury works in partnership with other
management agencies, Ngāi Tahu, willing landowners and
local communities to maintain the natural character and
mahinga kai of Canterbury’s braided rivers.

MEASURE
9.1

Develop and implement non-statutory plans for at least
nine major braided rivers.

TARGET
9.1A

Develop a ki uta ki tai plan for one priority river annually, with
the first plan being delivered by 30 June 2020 and then one
plan for each year afterwards.

RESULT

COVID-19 restrictions have delayed stakeholder
engagement required for the development of the first
ki uta ki tai/mountains to the sea plan for the Ashley
River/Rakahuri. The current draft document will be
reviewed internally, discussed with Papatipu Rūnanga
and completed by June 2021.

Court of Appeal decision and implications for
braided river management
The definition of a riverbed in the Resource Management Act
1991 is difficult to apply to dynamic braided rivers. Within
the legally defined riverbed there are greater restrictions on
what activities can be undertaken as a ‘right’, resulting in a
requirement to consent these activities. In 2017 Environment
Canterbury prosecuted Dewhirst Land Company Limited in
relation to activities in the Selwyn riverbed. The defendant
appealed and the High Court found against Environment
Canterbury, adopting a narrower approach to the “riverbed”
definition. Environment Canterbury appealed the decision,
but this was dismissed in October 2019. The Dewhirst
decision is significant in that it defines the riverbed to
be narrower than Environment Canterbury’s previous
understanding and therefore a much narrower area where
riverbed restrictions apply. While Environment Canterbury is
currently applying this decision, Council has committed to
seeking legislation and policy changes in addition to working
closely with others.

XVI

Wetlands
Protecting wetlands
Developing Wetland Action Plans in collaboration
with engaged landowners is a priority for Environment
Canterbury, and this financial year the efforts were focused
on wetlands in the Mackenzie and Lees Valley intermontane
basins. To enable the desired outcome of protecting
wetlands, Environment Canterbury provided funding for six
projects in the Mackenzie Basin, four in Lees Valley and one
in Kaikōura. The six projects in the Mackenzie Basin were in
the second year of two-year programmes, while the other
five projects were initiated this financial year. Environment
Canterbury worked with landowners in the Mackenzie
Basin and helped fund 87 hectares of willow control in five
wetlands, contributing to the protection of 520 hectares of
wetland.
In the Lees Valley the primary goals have been to work with
landowners to better fence and manage their wetlands,
with a longer-term objective of managing landscape-scale
invasive species threats to the wetlands.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 10:
Environment Canterbury works in partnership with Ngāi
Tahu, willing landowners and local communities to
support the maintenance of biodiversity and mahinga kai,
in Canterbury’s wetlands.

MEASURE
10.1

Work with willing landowners on protection and
maintenance of natural wetlands.

TARGET
10.1

At least five new wetland action plans are developed
annually with willing landowners.

RESULT

Grant agreements and Wetland Action Plans have
been completed in collaboration with willing
landowners in the following areas: Burnetts
Swamp, Broom Stream 1, Dalzells Swamp, Firewood
Stream, Lake Rotoiti. This work supports our focus
on increasing understanding and support for the
protection of wetlands, particularly on private land,
through a voluntary social engagement process.

Wetlands as farm assets
With support from the Sustainable Farming Fund,
Environment Canterbury has been working with
landowners to develop seven sites to demonstrate best
practice wetland management. Demonstration sites will
showcase wetlands from Hawarden, Kaikōura, Otematata,
Hakataramea, Windwhistle, Te Waihora and Pigeon Bay.
Land uses include deer, sheep and beef, merino and dairy.
More wetland demonstration sites will follow over the
coming two years of the project.

Styx Mill Wetlands
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Level of
Service Targets:

Community
Outcomes:

Hazards, Risk
and Resilience
Ensuring our communities have an
improved understanding of, and
resilience to, natural hazard risk
including climate change.
Hazards, Risk & Resilience programmes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Natural Hazards
Navigation and Recreational Boating Safety
Flood Protection and Control Works
Coastal Environment and Hazards
Emergency Management
Contaminated Land, Hazardous
Substances and Waste
• Climate Change Integration
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Natural Hazards
Supporting our city and district councils
Environment Canterbury collects information on natural
hazards and events and provides technical support to
the region’s city and district councils and communities
to ensure that decision-makers have the best available
information to manage risks from natural hazards. During
the year we continued to work with Christchurch City
Council on tsunami modelling and updated tsunami

evacuation zones, which are now publicly available on the
Christchurch City Council’s website. We also contracted
the University of Otago to monitor ground deformation in
eastern Christchurch over the next three years.
We worked closely with district councils across the region
by completing coastal hazard assessments, providing
technical information and advice on flood and geological
hazards (earthquake faults, liquefaction and landslides)
and undertaking floodplain modelling. We also provided
technical assistance and advice to Kaikōura, Waimakariri,
Selwyn, Timaru and Waitaki District Councils for their
District Plan Reviews.

Helping communities make the right decisions
As well as working with city and district councils,
Environment Canterbury provides natural hazard
information (primarily on flood and geologic hazards) to
customers, stakeholders and other community groups,
including property owners or potential purchasers.
In 2019/20 we provided natural hazards information for
110 land information requests, undertook 183 flood hazard
assessments, and provided advice on 132 general flood/
earthquake/tsunami hazard enquiries.
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110

land information
requests this year

flood hazard
183 assessments
this year

general enquiries about
132 natural
hazards this year
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 11:

LEVEL OF SERVICE 12:

Delivering information and advice to communities and
decision-makers about natural hazards.

Providing flood alerts and warnings when agreed trigger
levels are exceeded.

MEASURE
11.1

To provide transparency, all peer-reviewed technical
reports will be available on Environment Canterbury’s
website.

TARGET
11.1

Peer-reviewed technical reports and advice tabled at
Council meetings are available on our website three
days before the meeting date.

RESULT

Six peer-reviewed technical reports on coastal,
geological and flood hazards were made available on
Environment Canterbury’s website during 2019/20 as
follows:
-North Rakaia Huts future coastal hazard assessment
-Multiple scenario tsunami modelling for Canterbury
-Review of tsunami evacuation zones for Christchurch
city
-Updated assessment of active faults in the Kaikōura
district
-Liquefaction study for the Kaikōura district
-Kaikōura fans flood modelling investigation

MEASURE
12.1

Agreed trigger levels determine when flood alerts and
warnings are required.

TARGET
12.1

All flood warning events that exceed trigger levels are
notified on Environment Canterbury’s website when notified.

RESULT

Sixteen flood events met the threshold for warnings
to be issued during the 2019/20 year. All these floods
were notified on Environment Canterbury’s website
and via other communication channels.

MEASURE
12.2

Flood warning procedures will be reviewed after each
significant flood event to continuously improve responses.

TARGET
12.2

Procedural review undertaken within six months of each
significant flood event.

RESULT

A procedural review was undertaken following the
Rangitata significant flood event in December 2019.
This resulted in expanding the scope of Environment
Canterbury’s text message alerting system (based on
its success in the Rangitata flood event) and reducing
the threshold for issuing warnings in the Rangitata
catchment due to flood damage sustained to the
protection scheme.

XIX

Navigation and Recreational
Boating Safety

LEVEL OF SERVICE 13:
Enabling safe navigation for ships and other commercial
vessels in ports, harbours and coastal areas.

Enabling safe navigation
Environment Canterbury continued its work to enable safe
navigation for ships, commercial vessels and recreational
boaters in the region. This includes Canterbury’s two
large commercial ports (Lyttelton and Timaru), the busy
harbours of Kaikōura and Akaroa, the coastal area, and our
lakes and rivers.

MEASURE
13.1

Risk assessment regime and Safety Management System
consistent with the New Zealand Port and Harbour
Marine Safety Code

TARGET
13.1

External review of the Safety Management System is
undertaken when required by the Port and Harbour Safety
Code working group.

RESULT

A Port and Harbour Marine Safety Code Panel
Assessment was undertaken during the 2019/20 year
for the Canterbury Coast. Annual self-assessments
were also undertaken during the year in conjunction
with Lyttleton Port Company and PrimePort Timaru.
Both Ports remain Code compliant.

MEASURE
13.2

Level of customer focus, quality management and
continual improvement in the safety management system,
compliant with ISO 9001:2015 certification.

TARGET
13.2

ISO 9001:2015 certification is maintained.

RESULT

The risk assessment regime and Safety Management
System are approved by Maritime New Zealand. The
triennial audit for this was undertaken during the year
by an independent ISO accredited auditor and the ISO
9001:2015 certification was maintained.

MEASURE
13.3

Availability of operational and emergency response
function, and qualified, experienced and independent
harbourmaster.

TARGET
13.3

Advice and information from a harbourmaster is available to
shipping operators, port companies and emergency response
organisations during working hours weekdays and on-call 24
hours/365 days per year.

RESULT

An on-call Duty Officer was available 24 hours/365
days per year, with the Harbourmaster and Deputy
Harbourmaster acting as back-ups.

Akaroa Harbour

Keeping people safe on the water

Lyttelton port

Cruise ships in Akaroa Harbour
A key area of focus was the Akaroa cruise ship season which
results in a significant rise in navigation safety monitoring
activity, particularly from mid-November. Between October
and April, Akaroa was scheduled to receive 91 cruise
ships bringing in excess of 190,000 visitors. The end
of the season was curtailed by the COVID-19 pandemic
which resulted in seven cancellations (in addition to three
cancellations during the season).
In response to community concerns of potential damage to
the Akaroa Harbour seabed and ecological values by cruise
ships, we commissioned an environmental risk assessment
report by the Cawthron Institute. The preliminary findings
are that potential effects from cruise ships may exist but
are manageable, however, further research is required.
Environment Canterbury now requires the cruise industry
to provide an independent scientific study within 24 months
to assess impacts on the local environment.
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Canterbury continues to have the second largest
recreational boating population in New Zealand. The
busy summer period was a good opportunity to remind
the boating community of their safety responsibilities
and several well-attended public boating information
events were held jointly with Maritime New Zealand.
Over the Christmas and New Year holiday period, our
Harbourmaster’s Office recreational boating safety staff
recorded over 1,500 interactions with boat users using
a web app tool that allows us to record and upload
information from these interactions as we go. This allows
us to track key areas of interest such as the condition of
moored boats, recording cruise ship details and also the
use of lifejackets.
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 14:
Enabling safe navigation for recreational vessel users of
the coast, harbours and inland waterways.

MEASURE
14.1

Communities, user groups and organisations receive
guidance on the safe navigation of vessels within the
region.

TARGET
14.1

A Navigation Safety Officer is available to provide advice
and information to the community during working hours
weekdays and on-call 24 hours/365 days per year for
complaints and emergency issues.

RESULT

Two Navigation Safety Officers were available during
working hours weekdays, and on-call 24 hours/365
days per year. They provided advice and information
to the community and user groups across the region
to assist with the understanding and implementation
of Navigation Safety bylaws.

Flood Protection
and Control Works
Maintaining our rivers and strengthening
infrastructure for the future
Environment Canterbury successfully completed
an annual river maintenance programme valued at
approximately $14 million in 2019/20. We also held 30
public meetings to elect new rating district committees
and assist in the development of the annual work
programmes for the river rating districts. In accordance
with the 30-year infrastructure strategy in the 2018-28
Long-Term Plan, the first flood protection scheme review,
Halswell/Hurutini, was completed and substantial
progress has been made with the Ashley/Rakahuri and
Kaikōura scheme reviews.
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Completion of the Waimakariri Flood
Protection Project
In August 2019 we celebrated the completion of the
Waimakariri Flood Protection Project with an event
attended by three Government Ministers. The 10-year $40
million project was completed ahead of schedule and
protects an estimated $8 billion of property and assets.
It significantly improves Greater Christchurch and the
Waimakariri District’s resilience to a major flood event and
climate change. The project also aided local biodiversity
projects by planting new native plants and assisted with the
development of new walking and cycle trails.

The initial phase of the Environment Canterbury-led
response to the damage caused by the flood centred on
managing and coordinating ‘in-river’ works to control and
divert flows and to strengthen three key river berm areas
where breakouts occurred.
The eventual cost of ‘in-river’ works to restore the flood
protection scheme is expected to run into millions
of dollars. Funding arrangements for the work are
being discussed with our treaty partners Te Rūnanga o
Arowhenua and the Department of Conservation as well
as infrastructure owners (Environment Canterbury, Timaru
District Council, Ashburton District Council, Waka Kotahi
NZ Transport Agency, KiwiRail, Transpower and Rangitata
South Irrigation). Some of this funding has now been
secured through the Government committing $15.5 million
in August 2020 for six flood protection and climate change
resilience projects in Canterbury, of which the Rangitata
River flood recovery project is one.

Waimakariri Flood Protection Project

Responding to the Rangitata River flood event
The flooding experienced along the Rangitata River in
December 2019 was the culmination of an extreme weather
event across the West Coast and Canterbury. In the Rangitata
catchment it caused six days of heavy rain and three high river
flows that peaked at 35 times more flow than usual. There was
extensive damage to river protection works and flooding onto
roads and farmland, causing considerable disruption and
cutting off all road and rail access down the South Island’s
east coast for several days. Huge volumes of gravel also
moved within the riverbed and hundreds, if not thousands, of
trees were uprooted. Major damage was also sustained to the
Waitaki and Rakaia river schemes.

Rangitata River in flood
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 15:

LEVEL OF SERVICE 16:

LEVEL OF SERVICE 17:

Flood protection and drainage infrastructure is maintained
to agreed levels of service defined in Asset Management
Plans and in consultation with rating district committees.

Environment Canterbury’s 30-year Infrastructure Strategy
outlines a schedule of river and drainage schemes to be
reviewed in order to deliver community outcomes.

The extraction of the fluvial gravel resource is sustainably
managed for flood and erosion control purposes while
protecting and where possible enhancing cultural and
environmental values.

MEASURE
15.1

Construction and maintenance of flood and drainage
infrastructure will be completed in accordance with
Asset Management Plans.

TARGET
15.1

Consult annually with rating district committees to agree
budgets and capital expenditure programmes that will be
recommended to Council.

RESULT

MEASURE
16.1

Scheme reviews are carried out in the priority order set
out in the 30-year Infrastructure Strategy..

TARGET
16.1

All scheme reviews undertaken as per table.

RESULT

The scheme reviews have not been completed as
originally scheduled in the Infrastructure Strategy due
to competing priorities, in particular the Rangitata
River significant flood event. A decision has also been
made to bring forward the Rangitata scheme review and
initiate it next. The schedule of river scheme reviews
will therefore be revised in the next Long-Term Plan.

Consultation with all Rating District Committees (open
public meetings) was undertaken in February and March
2020. The vast majority of the forecast/routine maintenance
work has been completed. However, damage sustained in
the December 2019 flood event was significant, particularly
in the Rangitata, Waitaki and Rakaia Rivers. A full repair to
bring these schemes back to the standard defined in the
Asset Management Plans will take time.

MEASURE
15.2

Mana whenua values are recognised in annual work
programmes.

TARGET
15.2

Environment Canterbury’s annual work programmes for
flood protection and drainage infrastructure are informed by
annual engagement with mana whenua.

RESULT

An annual hui to discuss upcoming work programmes
was completed with Papatipu Rūnanga across the
region during the 2019/20 year.

MEASURE
16.2

All completed scheme reviews resulting in ‘small’ works
commence within two years after review, ‘medium’ twoto-four years after review, and ‘large’ two-to-ten years
after review.

TARGET
16.2

100% of the time.

RESULT

The list of recommendations in the Halswell/Huritini
scheme review is currently being implemented.

MEASURE
17.1

Percentage of permissions for gravel extraction
are assessed for availability of gravel at the time of
application.

TARGET
17.1

100% of the applications.

RESULT

All applications to extract fluvial gravel are processed
and assessed to ensure material is available at the
applicant’s site prior to resource consents or gravel
authorisations being granted. Riverbed surveys are
undertaken via cross section and light detection
and ranging (LiDAR) which informs availability
assessments.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 18:
Maintain and continue to develop Regional Parks and
3,000 ha of pine forest, to deliver a mix of services
including biodiversity, recreation, protection of rating
district assets and revenue.
MEASURE
18.1

Maintain and develop regional parks in accordance with
Park Management Plans.

TARGET
18.1B

2019/20 Undertake a strategic review of parks and
reserve land management.

RESULT

The regional parks were maintained and developed in
accordance with their Management Plans. However,
the planned strategic review of parks and reserve land
management was not completed during the year due
to a reprioritisation of the work programme and will
instead be completed by December 2020.

Rangitata River in flood
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XXII

Coastal Environment and Hazards
Understanding the changing coastal
environment
Environment Canterbury works in partnership with the
National Institute of Water and Atmospheric Research
(NIWA) and Land Air Water Aotearoa (LAWA) to collect
data, monitor our coastal environment and understand how
it is changing so that we can help enable good decisionmaking about the management of coastal areas.
Our region-wide, long-term monitoring of shoreline change
(erosion and accretion) at 250 coastal profile sites continued
during the year, as did our work to collect data on Canterbury’s
wave climate (the distribution of wave height, period and
direction averaged over a period of time) and sea levels using
the Canterbury directional wave buoy and sea-level recorders
at Sumner (Christchurch) and Timaru. The data collected
provides important information on long and short-term ocean
waves and sea levels. We also undertook weekly sampling of
coastal and estuarine swimming sites and carried out intertidal
mudflat monitoring at eight different sites.
Some coastal surveys, sampling and monitoring activities
were interrupted as a result of the COVID-19 lockdown.
While this will leave a gap in the long-term records, which
is undesirable, it is not critical as we have accumulated
many years of data to support our work in this area.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 19:
Provide information on coastal hazards so our
communities and partners can make informed decisions.

MEASURE
19.1

Work in partnership with NIWA to collect coastal data.

TARGET
19.1

Produce annual survey of coastal profile monitoring
sites and collect and report on wave and sea level data
on our website.

RESULT

The surveying of coastal cross-sections was undertaken.
We also worked in partnership with NIWA to collect
regional wave and sea level information. The data
from this is updated on a near real-time basis on both
organisations’ websites.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 20:
Monitor coastal water quality and ecosystem health.

MEASURE
20.1

Collect data and report on recreational swimming
monitoring sites and ecosystem health.

TARGET
20.1

Produce report on recreational swimming monitoring sites
during summer months, and on ecosystem health annually.

RESULT

An annual report on recreational swimming sites
monitored over the summer months has been
produced. Annual reports on ecosystem health have
also been produced for each water zone.

MEASURE
20.2

Maintain a regional marine oil spill response capability.

TARGET
20.2

Response plan and capability, as approved by Maritime
NZ, will be available 24 hours/365 days a year.

RESULT

An approved response plan remains in place and staff
with experienced capability are available 24 hours/365
days a year to respond to any incidents.

Waipara River and Amberley beach
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Emergency Management
Canterbury Civil Defence Emergency
Management Group
Environment Canterbury is the administrating authority
for the Canterbury Civil Defence Emergency Management
(CDEM) Group. We provide staff, support and accommodation
for the regional office based at the Justice and Emergency
Services Precinct in Christchurch. The Group’s Emergency
Coordination Centre was activated three times in 2019/20
for the Rangitata River flooding event, COVID-19 response
and for an Alpine Fault training exercise.

The Rangitata River flood event
Following Timaru District Council declaring a state of emergency
on 7 December 2019, the Emergency Coordination Centre
was activated from 7-12 December to ensure resources were
coordinated across the region to respond to the emergency.
The CDEM Group was supported by Environment Canterbury
staff from the flood control room, to communications, to the
hydrology and hazards science teams, to river engineering and
more. Our strong relationships with other agencies and sharing
of expertise and local knowledge proved invaluable. As part of
the response, the Emergency Coordination Centre, on behalf
of Timaru District Council, sent an emergency mobile alert
to residents along the flooded part of the Rangitata River to
evacuate the area. This was the first time this system had been
used in Canterbury and it proved effective.

Responding to COVID-19
The Emergency Coordination Centre coordinated the regional
response to COVID-19 between March and May 2019. This
required rapid adaptation of resources as the implications
of alert level restrictions became known. Work focused on
welfare (needs assessment and fulfilment) and repatriation
(isolation and quarantine coordination for flights to and
from Christchurch). Across the CDEM Group 3,705 calls for
assistance were received during this period. The Group
provided 966 food parcels, delivered 4,893 meals on
wheels, provided 11 medication deliveries and redirected 827
enquiries to foodbanks. The Emergency Coordination Centre
also responded to and managed 168 complex need calls.
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 21:
Active partnership of the Canterbury Civil Defence
Emergency Management (CDEM) Group and provides for
the support, information, and administration needs of the
group office and Emergency Coordination Centre.
MEASURE
21.1

Compliance with meeting the Service Level Agreement
between the CDEM Group and Environment Canterbury.

TARGET
21.1

Full compliance with agreement, including providing 55
suitably trained staff.

RESULT

The Service Level Agreement between the CDEM
Group and Environment Canterbury is in place and is
met. Approximately 120 Environment Canterbury staff
are registered as Emergency Coordination Centre staff
and during the COVID-19 response 20 Environment
Canterbury staff assisted the CDEM Group.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 40:
Providing a coordinated response capability to enable the
community to respond effectively to emergencies.

MEASURE
40.1

The CDEM Group is able to respond to emergencies

TARGET
40.1

100%

RESULT

During 2019/20 the Emergency Coordination Centre
was activated for the Rangitata River flooding event,
COVID-19 response and for an Alpine Fault exercise.
Coordination across the region was achieved through
shared situation reporting, multi-agency planning
meetings, coordinated public information management
(including the Welfare Coordination Group), Territorial
Authority meetings, Coordinating Executive Group and
CDEM Group Joint Committee meetings.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 39:
Meeting the objectives of the 2014 Canterbury CDEM Group Plan.
MEASURE
39.1

The objectives of the current CDEM Group plan are met.

TARGET
39.1

90% of objectives are met at any one time.

RESULT

The CDEM Group Plan objectives were met through the
delivery of ongoing work and project-based work. Progress
against this work was reported through the Coordinating
Executive Group and the CDEM Group Joint Committee.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 41:
Providing facilities for coordinating emergency response
and recovery work.

MEASURE
41.1

The Group Emergency Coordination Centre (ECC),
alternate ECC, and emergency communications network
are available and maintained.

TARGET
41.1

100%

RESULT

The Justice and Emergency Services Precinct
Emergency Operation Centre (EOC) and Emergency
Coordination Centre (ECC) was activated for the
response to COVID-19. This was the first time that
both the Christchurch City Council EOC and the
CDEM Group ECC operated together in a response, as
designed and planned for. The radio communications
network has continued to be improved, with one
linking station to be installed to have the new
Canterbury-wide digital network cover. New Group
office and ECC mobile phones have increased the
capability and provide an alternative data connection.
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Contaminated Land,
Hazardous Substances
and Waste
Providing advice and compliance support
Environment Canterbury provides advice and compliance
support for hazardous waste issues, including asbestos,
tyre dumping and chemical disposal and identifies
potentially contaminated land. This often occurs when
previous land use may involve chemicals that could still be
present in the land.
As convener of the regional sector Contaminated Land and
Waste Special Interest Group, in 2019/20 we completed a
three-year strategy for the Group and led a multi-agency
national project to identify the risk to existing and legacy
landfills from climate change. The aim of the project is to
develop a nationally applicable tool for assessing landfill
vulnerability to natural hazards including climate change.

Identification of potential hazards from
historical land use
In 2019/20 we completed the Hurunui and Kaikōura
district-wide hazardous activities and industries list
(HAIL) identification projects, and also began work on
the Ashburton District project. Involvement of Hurunui
District Councillors and new approaches to the provision of
information to the community alleviated many community
concerns and there was a significant reduction in appeals
received against the proposed status of land identified as
having a previous potentially hazardous use.

Remediation of the Concours electroplaters site
in Timaru and South Christchurch landfill site
During the year Environment Canterbury worked closely
with Timaru District Council to rectify a legacy of poor
environmental management at the former Concours
Electroplaters site in Timaru. With funding for the project
provided by the Ministry for the Environment, progress
was made with identifying potential remedial options
and developing a draft Remedial Action Plan. The Plan
will be finalised over the coming year and Timaru District
Council will determine which option to implement to
decontaminate the site.
In collaboration with Christchurch City Council and the
Ministry for the Environment we also made progress with
identifying remedial options and funding sources to deliver
safe residential sites for up to 22 properties affected
by a historical former South Christchurch landfill site.
The possible contamination of this residential area was
uncovered when houses were being rebuilt or repaired
following the Canterbury earthquakes.
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Canterbury plains and Mt Somers

LEVEL OF SERVICE 22:
Identify and monitor contaminated land.

MEASURE
22.1

Annual project to identify potentially high-risk
contaminated sites in a Canterbury district, in
partnership with the Territorial Authority and
local Rūnanga.

TARGET
22.1B

Year two: Completion of one district.

RESULT

A Hazardous Activities and Industries List (HAIL)
project was completed for Hurunui and Kaikōura
districts. Work also commenced on the Ashburton
district project and this is on track to be completed in
the 2020/21 financial year.
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Climate Change Integration
Building an integrated approach
Our climate change integration programme ensures
that climate change is robustly, consistently and visibly
incorporated into our work and decisions across all
portfolios. Environment Canterbury was the first council
in New Zealand to declare a climate emergency in May
2019. We convened the Regional Climate Change Working
Group in September 2019, December 2019 and March 2020,
comprising representatives from Environment Canterbury,
Canterbury city and district councils and Ngāi Tahu. We
also completed a literature review of climate change
impacts on the Canterbury region and shared this with
our partners to help build our collective understanding of
climate change impacts in Canterbury.
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Assessing risks from a changing climate
During the year we commissioned a climate change risk
screening to develop a shared understanding of the key
climate change risks (threats and opportunities) to the
Canterbury region. The screening is designed to support
identification of further priority work, and regional
engagement with the National Climate Change Risk
Assessment, which was released by the Government in
early August 2020. Together with our partners, we are
developing the scope and approach for a more detailed
risk assessment in 2020/21. We also commissioned
research from NIWA about the Canterbury climate change
between now and 2100 and the information from this is
available on Environment Canterbury’s website:
ecan.govt.nz/ccprojections

LEVEL OF SERVICE 23:
Support our communities to become more risk literate and
resilient to climate change.

MEASURE
23.2

Develop a process to ensure that climate change
is robustly factored into relevant Council decisions
across portfolios.

TARGET
23.2B

Year Two: Process improvement opportunities
identified, prioritised, and incorporated into work
programmes where appropriate.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury’s Climate Change Steering
Group and Technical Advisory Group implemented
various process improvements over the course of
the year. Further opportunities to integrate climate
change considerations into Council decision-making
processes were provided to the Executive Leadership
Team for consideration in May 2020. This included
guidance documents for staff, monitoring and review
processes, and a climate change section in scientific
technical reports.

MEASURE
23.3

Work with partners to improve our understanding of
the risks (threats and opportunities) to the Canterbury
region from climate change.

TARGET
23.3

Initial Canterbury climate change risk assessment
complete with summary report presented to Council
by June 2020.

RESULT

A climate change risk screening was completed
during the year and a summary report provided
during a Councillor briefing in April 2020. The report
was subsequently shared with the Canterbury
Mayoral Forum in June 2020 and will be published on
Environment Canterbury’s website in 2020/21.
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Portfolio:

12

Level of
Service Targets:

Community
Outcomes:

Transport
& Urban
Development
Enabling a resilient, multi-modal
transport system for the efficient
movement of people and freight
into, out of, and within the
Canterbury region.

Regional Transport
Progress with the Canterbury Regional Land
Transport Plan 2021-2031
The Regional Transport Committee is a joint committee
established by Environment Canterbury and comprising
representatives from all councils in the region and Waka
Kotahi NZ Transport Agency. In 2019/20 a key priority for the
Committee has been to begin developing a new Regional
Land Transport Plan for Canterbury. The Plan, which must
be renewed every six years and reviewed after three years,
is required to be submitted to Waka Kotahi NZ Transport
Agency by 30 April 2021. Progress on this during 2019/20
included setting a vision for transport in the region: “to
provide all transport users with sustainable options that move

Transport & Urban
Development programmes:
• Regional Transport
• Urban Development
• Public Transport
Lyttelton port
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people and freight around and through our region in a safe
and efficient way that enables us to be responsive to future
challenges”, and identifying seven strategic objectives for how
this vision will be achieved: better freight options, reduced
harm, reliable and consistent journeys, mode shift, improved
resilience, shared prosperity, and improved advocacy. These
support Environment Canterbury’s objective of achieving
a thriving multi-modal transport system in our region.
Public consultation on the draft Plan is expected to begin in
December 2020.

Providing views on key legislation and policy
During the year Environment Canterbury provided a number of
submissions to the Government on policy proposals that have
implications for how transport is delivered regionally and across
New Zealand. A common factor in these submissions was to
advocate for appropriate levels of investment in Canterbury
to help ensure the region’s requirements are considered. Key
proposals that were submitted on were:
• two Land Transport Amendment Bills focusing on rail and
the Transport Agency’s functions
• the draft Government Policy Statement on Land Transport
• a draft Rail Plan which outlines the long-term vision for
New Zealand’s national rail network
• the Transport Agency’s Investment Decision-Making
Framework Approach.
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The outcome from some of the submissions is uncertain as
decisions are still being made, but we continue to monitor
these processes and engage with the relevant officials to
ensure Canterbury’s interests are taken into account.

Rangiora and Kaiapoi to help meet projected demand for
housing over the next 30 years. In April 2020, the Minister
for the Environment issued a direction (which sets out
the planning process and timeframes) for Environment
Canterbury to undertake this proposed change using
the streamlined planning process under the Resource
Management Act 1991.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 24:

Assisting partners with regeneration in
Greater Christchurch

Facilitate and support prioritised investment in
Canterbury’s transport network by local and central
government

MEASURE
24.2

The Regional Land Transport Plan 2018-2028 is monitored
to allow the Regional Transport Committee to assess
implementation of the plan.

TARGET
24.2

Quarterly reporting to Regional Transport Committee to
track progress against the regional transport indicators
set out in the Regional Land Transport Plan 2018-28.

RESULT

The Canterbury Regional Transport Committee met four
times in 2019/20. The meetings were held on 8 August
2019, 28 November 2019, 27 February 2020 and 21 May
2020. At each of the meetings Environment Canterbury
presented a monitoring report to track progress against
the regional transport indicators set out in the Regional
Land Transport Plan 2018-28.

MEASURE
24.3

The opportunities for, and barriers to, freight mode
shift optimisation are identified so they can be used
to inform future regional transport planning and
investment decisions.

TARGET
24.3

A report which outlines the opportunity for shifting
road freight to rail or coastal shipping, is submitted to
Regional Transport Committee prior to finalising the
Regional Land Transport Plan 2021-2031.

RESULT

The Canterbury Regional Transport Committee was
briefed on the final draft of the Report on 23 May
2019. Copies of the final Report were provided at the 8
August 2019 meeting. The Report was also published
on Environment Canterbury’s website at: ecan.govt.nz/
south-island-freight-study
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Urban Development
Providing for future housing needs in Greater
Christchurch
Environment Canterbury works collaboratively with local
councils, iwi and government agencies through the Greater
Christchurch Partnership to sustainably manage growth,
and address urban development, regeneration, resilience
and long-term wellbeing for Greater Christchurch. This
collaboration seeks to enable consistent, effective and
efficient decision-making for Greater Christchurch.

During 2019/20, Environment Canterbury supported
regeneration activities in Greater Christchurch by assisting
partners with regional regulatory matters as they prepared
proposals under the Greater Christchurch Regeneration
Act 2016. We also amended our regional plans, where
necessary, to enable regeneration. This included amending
the Canterbury Land and Water Regional Plan in September
2019, in accordance with the Greater Christchurch
Regeneration Act 2016, to support the implementation
of the Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor Regeneration Plan.
This Plan was developed by Regenerate Christchurch with
significant input from partners, including Environment
Canterbury, and was approved by the Minister for Greater
Christchurch Regeneration in August 2019.

A key focus during the year has been to make changes
to Chapter 6 (Recovery and Rebuilding of Greater
Christchurch) of the Canterbury Regional Policy Statement
following the Council’s adoption of the future development
strategy for Greater Christchurch (titled Our Space 20182048) in June 2019. This strategy was collaboratively
prepared by the Greater Christchurch Partnership to meet
the requirements of the National Policy Statement on
Urban Development Capacity 2016. The changes to Chapter
6 include inserting 30-year housing targets for Greater
Christchurch and progressing a proposed change that will
identify future housing development areas in Rolleston,
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Looking to the future
Environment Canterbury provided a submission on the
Urban Development Bill (the second piece of legislation
establishing Kāinga Ora – Homes and Communities as
the national urban development authority) in February
2020. Our submission supported the purpose of the Bill
to “facilitate urban development that contributes to
sustainable, inclusive and thriving communities”, and
noted the importance of collaborative partnerships with
local authorities, iwi and other key stakeholders when
undertaking development projects to ensure positive, local
outcomes are achieved.
We also provided a submission on the Greater Christchurch
Regeneration Amendment Bill in March 2020. Environment
Canterbury has been highly engaged with the Greater
Christchurch Regeneration Act since it was enacted in
2016. During this time, we have seen significant progress
in the regeneration of Greater Christchurch. Given the
progress made, we strongly supported the intent of the Bill
to accelerate the transition back to local leadership, where
the decisions about the future of greater Christchurch are
most effectively made.

Christchurch city
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 25:

LEVEL OF SERVICE 26:

Integrate land use, transport and hazards planning into
the identification of land to provide for residential and
business growth.

Assist strategic partners in the development, amendment
or implementation of regeneration plans in line with the
Greater Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016.

MEASURE
25.1

Monitoring required by the National Policy Statement on
Urban Development Capacity provides information on
urban development indicators for Greater Christchurch.

TARGET
25.1

Quarterly indicator reports are produced and published
on the Greater Christchurch Partnership website each
quarter, beginning September 2018.

RESULT

The Greater Christchurch Partnership, of which
Environment Canterbury is a constituent partner,
reports a number of key urban indicators for Greater
Christchurch on its website. These indicators include
house sale and rental prices, new dwellings consents,
household growth, commercial floorspace, public
transport patronage and travel mode. Environment
Canterbury contributes data and analysis for these
indicators. These indicators were updated on the
website in June 2020 but were not updated each
quarter in 2019/20 due to other work priorities for the
Greater Christchurch Partnership.

MEASURE
26.1

Regeneration plans meet the requirements of the
Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other
relevant regional plans, including avoiding or mitigating
natural and other hazards.

TARGET
26.1

Environment Canterbury provides submission of
views to proponents on whether proposals meet
the requirements of the Canterbury Regional Policy
Statement and other relevant regional plans.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury assisted strategic partners
in the development of regeneration proposals under
the Greater Christchurch Regeneration Act 2016
by contributing information and advice on relevant
regional regulatory matters. This included providing a
formal submission of views on the Hagley Oval proposal
in September 2019 and the Commercial Film or Video
Production Facilities proposal in June 2020.

MEASURE
25.2

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement responds to
the requirements of the National Policy Statement on
Urban Development Capacity, including setting minimum
targets for development capacity in Greater Christchurch.

MEASURE
26.2

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other
relevant regional plans are amended, as required, to
enable a regeneration plan.

TARGET
25.2A

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement is amended, if
required, to respond to the requirements of the National
Policy Statement on Urban Development Capacity.

TARGET
26.2

The Canterbury Regional Policy Statement and other
relevant regional plans are changed to align with
ministerial direction(s).

RESULT

Environment Canterbury contributed to the work of the
Greater Christchurch Partnership to produce a future
development strategy for Greater Christchurch under
the National Policy Statement on Urban Development
Capacity 2016. This included setting minimum housing
targets. The Council adopted the future development
strategy in June 2019, and subsequently inserted the
housing targets into the Canterbury Regional Policy
Statement in July 2019 and commenced a proposed
change to Chapter 6 of the Canterbury Regional Policy
Statement. These changes to the Canterbury Regional
Policy Statement implement actions in the future
development strategy and give effect to the National
Policy Statement on Urban Development Capacity 2016.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury amended the Canterbury
Land and Water Regional Plan in September 2019, in
accordance with the Greater Christchurch Regeneration
Act 2016, to enable activities for the regeneration of the
Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor. This followed the Ōtākaro
Avon River Corridor Regeneration Plan coming into
effect in August 2019.
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Public Transport
Moving towards smarter, more sustainable
public transport

Innovative transport solutions
to benefit our communities

Environment Canterbury is responsible for the delivery of
public transport services. We work alongside our territorial
authority partners who provide bus stops, shelters and bus
priority measures. We provide public transport services
in Greater Christchurch and Timaru. These include buses,
ferries and the Total Mobility Scheme for people who are
unable to access regular bus services. We also support
Community Vehicle Trusts of which there are 15 currently
operating across Canterbury.

During the year, in collaboration with the Timaru
community and key stakeholders, we developed an
on-demand public transport system in Timaru – MyWay
by Metro. Tenders for the operator and technology
components of the on-demand public transport trial
were completed, with local provider Ritchies selected to
operate the service, and international systems provider Via
Transportation selected to provide the technology solution.

In 2019/20 Environment Canterbury completed the
contracting process for bus services following approval of the
procurement strategy by Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency
and Council. Contracts were successfully agreed for urban,
school and ferry services with our four incumbent providers:
Red Bus, Go Bus, Ritchies and Black Cat. These contracts
will see the start of our transition to a zero emissions public
transport fleet via a low emissions pathway which reflects our
commitment to taking action on climate change.
We also made it easier for patrons to access and use
Metrocards. We provided an online ordering service for
Metrocards and we introduced an account-to-account
payment method for online top-ups. Both these initiatives
have been well received.
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A pilot was successfully undertaken in early 2020 with
strong community engagement and positive feedback from
patrons. Unfortunately, this had to be curtailed due to
the COVID-19 lockdown, although its early success led to
MyWay by Metro operating during alert levels four, three
and two as the only public transport service in Timaru. The
full MyWay by Metro trial has now been reinstated with very
positive community uptake.
During November and December 2019, we consulted with
Waimakariri residents on the option of providing an express
bus service from Waimakariri to the Christchurch Central
Business District, utilising the new Christchurch Northern
Corridor high occupancy vehicle lanes, improving travel
times for commuters and reducing transport emissions.
Over 400 submissions were received on the proposal.

Following this feedback from the community, we have
continued to progress plans to implement the service. It is
expected to become operational in January 2021.
Trial commuter bus services to support the communities
of Darfield and Leeston to access Christchurch city were
also implemented during the year. The Darfield service
has now been incorporated into our ongoing service
delivery programme following a successful trial outcome.
The Leeston service trial has been extended with some
changes, to enable more time for evaluation. It is expected
that a final outcome will be determined by early 2021.

COVID-19 impacts on public transport
The COVID-19 crisis significantly disrupted public transport
during lockdown alert levels four, three and two. Fares were
not taken on public transport in Canterbury during this
time, although the Government has provided funding to
cover all fare revenue loss through this period.

Creating what matters for future generations
Following the approval of funding from Waka Kotahi NZ
Transport Agency in June 2019, and in collaboration with
our Greater Christchurch Public Transport Joint Committee
partners, we started work to develop a Future Public
Transport Business Case for Greater Christchurch. The
business case will identify a preferred investment programme
over the next ten years to improve the service and community
outcomes of public transport for Greater Christchurch.
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 27:
Deliver a quality, cost effective public transport service that meets the needs of the community and results in increased patronage.
MEASURE
27.1

Provide quality public transport services for
customers.

MEASURE
27.4

Proportion of costs covered by passenger fares is an
appropriate balance between community and passengers.

TARGET
27.1

95% of passengers are satisfied or better with the
overall service.

TARGET
27.4

On track for 50% cost recovery from passengers in
Canterbury by 2020.

RESULT

This target could not be measured as the Metro Users
Survey to confirm passenger satisfaction levels could
not be completed in May (as annually scheduled) due
to the COVID-19 lockdown. This was rescheduled to
August 2020, but was delayed again due to COVID-19
restrictions in alert level two affecting the ability to
complete the survey. It will be completed as soon as
practicable, subject to COVID-19 restrictions.
This target was achieved in 2018/19.

RESULT

This target has not been achieved as Christchurch’s
central city regeneration has been slower than
originally anticipated. The target has now been
revised in the 2020/21 Annual Plan to “maintain or
improve from the current level of farebox recovery by
2024 (current level 38.2%)” to better reflect current
public transport conditions.

MEASURE
27.5

Provide Total Mobility scheme for transport
disadvantaged people.

TARGET
27.5

95% of registered customers are satisfied or better
with the service they receive when they engage with
a Total Mobility provider.

RESULT

This target could not be measured as the Total Mobility
Customer Survey could not be completed as normally
scheduled due to the COVID-19 lockdown. It is intended
to undertake the survey as soon as practicable subject
to COVID-19 restrictions. This target was achieved in
2018/19.

MEASURE
27.6

Number of communities who receive support from
Environment Canterbury to establish Community
Vehicle Trusts where conventional public transport
services are not feasible.

MEASURE
27.6

100% of all communities who approach
Environment Canterbury regarding vehicle trusts
and meet relevant criteria are offered support.

RESULT

There are currently 15 vehicle trusts in Canterbury.
Environment Canterbury provided Community Vehicle
Trust support to two new communities in 2019/20.
The first of these was the Ashburton community, who
are setting up their Trust and will shortly begin a trial
to test demand. The second was the Hanmer Springs
community, who have made initial enquiries about
setting up a Trust. The Hawarden Waikari Trust also
started their operation in 2019/20 after having initially
been offered support in the previous financial year.

MEASURE
27.2

The number of passenger boardings per year in
greater Christchurch and Timaru.

TARGET
27.2

20 million trips by 2020 and 35 million trips
by 2030.

RESULT

This target has not been achieved as Christchurch’s
central city regeneration has been slower than
originally anticipated. In 2019/20 there were 11,176,273
passenger boardings in Greater Christchurch and
Timaru. The target has now been revised in the
2020/21 Annual Plan to “36 trips per person per year
by 2024 (this equates to approximately 18 million trips
per year based on present population)”.

MEASURE
27.3

Proportion of total trips made by public transport in
greater Christchurch.

TARGET
27.3

3% of total trips by 2020 and 5% of total trips by
2030 as measured by the Ministry of Transport
latest household travel survey.

RESULT

This target could not be measured because Ministry
of Transport has not released the Household Travel
Survey data. This information is used to determine
whether we have met our target of 3% total trips by
public transport by 2020. This was a new target for
2019/20 and not reported on in 2018/19.
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Christchurch Bus Interchange
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Environmental Monitoring and Progress Reporting
75

Air quality monitoring

Number of high nights

Ensuring the air we breathe
supports health and wellbeing.

Number of high pollution nights dur

Number of high pollution 50
nights during previous years
Environment Canterbury monitors air quality across eight designated airsheds to assess the
concentrations of pollutants
75
against the National Environmental Standards for Air Quality
(NESAQ). The graph below reflects an overall improvement in
Canterbury’s air quality over the last 20 years.
Number of high nights

Air Quality

COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

50
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In 2019, airsheds in Rangiora, Christchurch, Kaiapoi, Timaru
and Washdyke reported exceedances in PM10 (particulate
matter 10 microns or less in diameter). Exceedances of
PM10 usually occur in winter and are mainly due to fine
particles (smaller than 2.5 microns) from domestic wood
burning. However, in Washdyke, exceedances of the PM10
threshold can occur at any time of year and are mainly
due to coarse particles (between 2.5 and 10 microns),
not caused by domestic wood burning. Investigations
into the Washdyke exceedances, including wind speed
and direction, particle size, and particle composition,
suggest a number of different sources may be responsible,
including sea salt, dust, and possibly large-scale boilers.
Environment Canterbury is working with local industry and
Timaru District Council to understand factors causing the
exceedances and to identify pathways to improve the air
quality.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 28:
Our airshed monitoring and investigations inform our work
programmes.
MEASURE
28.1

Air quality is monitored in gazetted airsheds and
reported regularly.

TARGET
28.1

Airshed monitoring and reporting is completed to
the National Environmental Standard for Air Quality
requirements.

RESULT

Faults at the Rangiora and Kaiapoi monitoring stations
during COVID-19 alert level four lockdown meant that
monitoring data could not be collected for a period
of time. For the 2019/20 year, only 92% of data has
been collected in those airsheds, less than the 95%
requirement in the National Environmental Standards
for Air Quality (NESAQ) guidelines. In all other
airsheds monitoring data was collected and reported
as required under the NESAQ guidelines. In addition,
PM2.5 was monitored in all airsheds.

MEASURE
28.2

Air quality investigations are undertaken to provide
further information on air quality.

TARGET
28.2

Environment Canterbury has the information it needs to
inform work programmes.

RESULT

A range of investigations and reports were undertaken
this year, including:
1. The analysis of the Timaru spatial data from
2018, which was completed and published and
presented to Timaru District Council.
2. The data in the Solid Fuel Database was reviewed,
upgraded where possible, and summarised.
3. Analysis of coarse particulate concentration data
from Washdyke and Timaru was analysed.

Timaru spatial analysis
This year we have completed a detailed spatial analysis
of winter air quality in Timaru to better understand
localised concentrations of pollutants and variability
of concentrations across the town. In 2018 a temporary
monitoring network was established, with 20 fixed
monitoring stations and additional vehicle-based
instruments, to record PM2.5 (particulate matter 2.5
microns or less in diameter) concentrations and to
determine short-timescale variation across Timaru. The
study found the highest concentrations of PM2.5 in central
and southern areas and the lowest concentrations near
the urban boundary. The data confirms that the existing
monitoring station at Anzac Square is appropriately
located and representative of air quality issues in
Timaru. This means that the measurements of air quality
at Anzac Square can be used to inform home heating
recommendations for the whole of Timaru.
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Average PM2.5 concentrations in Timaru, June – July 2019

Impacts on levels of service
During the COVID-19 alert level four lockdown, technical
faults occurred at the monitoring stations for the Rangiora
and Kaiapoi airsheds, which interrupted data collection,
resulting in only 92% of the annual data being collected
from these two sites.
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Cleaner Home Heating
Information for communities

be emitting excessive smoke. In Timaru 79 households
were identified as using a non-compliant burner without
authorisation.

Environment Canterbury has a range of initiatives to
provide useful information on home heating options,
how to use a wood burner efficiently and with minimal
emissions, and financial assistance for upgrading from
non-compliant burners to lower emission devices. The
www.warmercheaper.co.nz website had 11,343 visitors and
webpages were viewed 19,395 times this financial year.

The Healthier Homes Canterbury voluntary targeted rates
scheme allows eligible ratepayers to add up to $6,000 of the
cost of home heating, insulation and/or ventilation products
and installation to their rates bills. Uptake of this scheme has
been higher than predicted, with 807 applications received
between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020.

Top five webpages on www.warmercheaper.co.nz
Webpage

Number of views

What is
good wood?

6,580

Homepage

3,490

Demonstrations

2,212

Good burning
technique

2,053

Find a trusted
wood merchant

1,222

Financial Assistance

The Environment Canterbury subsidies scheme for
households with limited means in areas prone to air
pollution contributes funding towards the costs of
changing from non-compliant heating to another form
of home heating, with no repayment required. This year
the subsidies scheme approved 68 applications, with all
budgeted funds for Waimate and Geraldine being fully
allocated. An additional $160,000 from an appropriate
reserve was made available to enable further subsidies to
support cleaner home heating in Waimate and Geraldine.
This increased demand was partly due to the Canterbury
Air Regional Plan rule coming into effect on 1 January 2020,
which meant many older style burners in Waimate and
Geraldine were replaced. Environment Canterbury has been
working with district councils to support the communities
with this change.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 29:
In Clean Air Zones, where home heating is the biggest
contributor to winter air pollution, we work with groups,
agencies, homeowners and the wood burner industry to
reduce PM10 emissions from home heating.
MEASURE
29.1

Better burning information is made available and
accessed.

TARGET
29.1

Website visit numbers are included in our annual
report. Smoky chimney intervention material includes
better burning information.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury’s ‘Warmer Cheaper’ advice
was refreshed and promoted through a six-week
campaign via radio, print and digital - warmercheaper.
co.nz. The campaign started in mid-June 2020 and will
continue through the winter months. The ‘better burning’
information is included in smoky chimney intervention
material and letters are sent when we receive a complaint.

MEASURE
29.2

Assistance is available for households to upgrade their
home heating.

TARGET
29.2

Numbers of households receiving assistance is included in the
annual report (subsidies are only years 1, 2 & 3, but Healthier
Homes Canterbury Loan Scheme will run over 10 years).

RESULT

The Healthier Homes Canterbury scheme continued and
will run for 10 years providing Cantabrians with a way
to make their homes warm and dry. We also provided
subsidies for households with limited income to update to
compliant forms of home heating.

MEASURE
29.3

The wood burner manufacturing/supply industry is
encouraged to continue to develop cleaner burning
technology and relevant information is accessible to
the public.

TARGET
29.3

Environment Canterbury’s wood burner authorisation
process is clear, up to date, and available on the website.
Details of authorised burners are published on the website
for our customers and local authorities to view.

RESULT

The home heating section of the website is current
and details on authorised burners is available on on
our website: ecan.govt.nz/homeheating

Support for new technology
We work closely with the Canterbury District Health
Board and together we developed a ‘Stay Warm in Winter’
resource. The resource provides practical advice on
staying warm, including home heating and better burning
advice. Anglican Care distributed 2,000 leaflets when door
knocking the most vulnerable suburbs in 2019.
The ‘No Visible Smoke’ programme ran in Timaru, Geraldine
and Waimate in July and August 2019. The programme
identifies and supports households emitting excessive
smoke and provides information to encourage better
burning technique and improve local air quality. Across
these three areas, 261 households were observed to
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We are working with manufacturers to support innovative
technologies in wood burners. This year the first application
to authorise ‘secondary emission-reduction technology’ for
use on an existing burner was approved. This is a device
that is installed in an existing domestic chimney to reduce
particulate emissions from low emission burners to the
equivalent of an ultra-low emission burner.
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Non-Domestic Emissions
Crop burning
Crop burning (also known as stubble burning) plays an
important role in New Zealand’s cropping systems, but
regularly causes concern among members of the public. In
December 2019 Environment Canterbury held a meeting
with representatives from Fire and Emergency New Zealand,
Federated Farmers, Timaru and Waimate District Councils and
the Foundation for Arable Research. Crop residue burning is a
permitted activity under the Canterbury Air Regional Plan and,
while good management guidelines are available, it was agreed
that there is significant opportunity for education and upskilling
for both those who undertake crop residue burning and those
impacted by it. In 2020 agencies have been working together to
upskill and inform both groups in the practice and management
of crop residue burning.

Innovations to locate offensive odours
Odour in Bromley and surrounding suburbs such as Woolston
and Linwood is an ongoing issue. There are many potential
sources of odour in the area with a mix of industries, many of the
city’s essential services, and the Ihutai/Avon-Heathcote Estuary.
This financial year Environment Canterbury and Christchurch
City Council undertook a pilot to create an innovative, evidencebased solution involving geospatial platforms and public
engagement. During the month-long pilot, data was collected
from community odour reports via a mobile app ‘Smelt It?’,
on-the-ground assessments by trained assessors, and weather
information. This enabled modelling of odour plumes in realtime to locate two significant sources of odour in Bromley.
Environment Canterbury is working with the Christchurch City
Council on the remediation plan and will also continue to work
with other odour-emitting businesses in Bromley.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 30:
Level of service 30: Our consenting process and compliance
programmes give effect to the Canterbury Air Regional Plan.

MEASURE
30.1

Compliance monitoring work programmes are
implemented to deliver on national, regional and zone
priorities.

TARGET
30.1

(Refer to target 36.2 in Regional Leadership)

RESULT

Odour complaints represent a large volume of the
calls we receive. A pilot study of a new approach to
investigating ongoing problem odours in Bromley
identified two sources, enabling action to be taken.
We also continued working with quarries on ensuring
the new monitoring regimes are maintained. Outdoor
burning affects some communities and we worked
with Fire and Emergency Services and the Foundation
for Arable Research to develop information on better
practice.

Quarry monitoring
As a result of previous community concern, in Christchurch,
industry has installed dust monitoring devices around quarries
to monitor dust levels. Quarries have been found to be exhibiting
best practice, indicating no exceedance of the permitted
threshold.
Crop residue burning (or stubble burning)
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Regional
Leadership
Maintaining effective relationships;
providing evidence-based policy;
supporting well-informed decisionmakers and community; and
providing a robust, adaptive and
cost-effective regulatory process
that underpins the sustainable
management of Canterbury’s
natural resources.
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Governance and Engagement
New Council
Following the local body election on 12 October 2019, the
Environment Canterbury Council has returned to a fully
elected Council for the first time since 2010 and in time for
the 30th anniversary of the establishment of the Council on
1 November 2019. The new Council, which includes ten new
Councillors and four returning Councillors, has an equal
representation of males and females and across a range
of ages. The Councillors bring expertise across science,
agriculture, industry and community interests.

Regional Leadership programmes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Governance and Engagement
Strategy and Direction
Ngāi Tahu and Regional Relationships
Long-Term Community Planning
Plans, Consenting and Compliance
Our Information and Advice

For the new Council, engaging with the community has
been a high priority and there is a particular interest in
engaging and working with young people.
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Leaders of the future
Our Youth Rōpū is a voluntary group aged 14-24, who
are enthusiastic about the environment and developing
leadership skills. They work with decision-makers at the
Council and empower each other to be good kaitiaki of
our environment. In May 2020 the Youth Rōpū celebrated
its first birthday. Achievements from the first year
include supporting two of their members to join a Water
Zone Committee, one joining the Banks Peninsula Zone
Committee and the other the Christchurch-West Melton
Zone Committee.

611

media enquiries
were responded
to this year

21,564

followers across
social channels
(not including Civil Defence & Metro)
11.5% increase on last year

LEVEL OF SERVICE 31:
Our citizens are engaged and enabled to play an active
part in shaping our region’s future.

MEASURE
31.1

Community understanding of the work of
Environment Canterbury as well as related
regional issues is increased.

TARGET
31.1B

Where gaps in understanding are identified,
targeted measures are put in place to address
priority areas (2019/20 onwards).

RESULT

A survey was repeated one year after the first
benchmarking survey, following the targeted approach
to improve understanding of freshwater management.
This involved a development of community engagement
plan, ensuring simple, targeted tactics with the aim to
improve urban Christchurch ratepayers’ perceptions of
freshwater management via social media, news stories
and running public lectures in Christchurch and staff
and Councillors attending community group meetings,
e.g. Rotary clubs. Twenty-four per cent of participants
stated that we were good or excellent at freshwater
management, compared to 19% in 2018.

MEASURE
31.2

A wide cross-section of the community’s views will be
heard by Council.

TARGET
31.2B

Lift participation rates of sectors that are identified
as being less engaged, including youth (2019/20
onwards).

RESULT

A targeted approach was taken for those sectors less
engaged through advertising (digital and print), the
offer of a Councillor to attend community meetings
and community drop-in sessions. There was an overall
increase in engagement for the draft Annual Plan
compared to the previous year. The Environment
Canterbury Youth Rōpū priority is to give youth in
the Canterbury region an opportunity to promote the
environmental issues they care about. A community
engagement framework project was completed,
and this will be rolled out across the organisation in
2020/21.

		
429,108 users on
Profiles of the inspiring young people on our Youth Rōpū can be found on our website:
ecan.govt.nz/meet-youth-ropu

Connecting with communities
It is important to Council that people in Canterbury
understand its role and know how to participate and
influence the decisions Council is making. We use a variety
of ways to share information about the Council and our
work, and we are continually reviewing this as preferences
change. We now have more focus on sharing information
through our website and social media channels as the
number of users grows.

ecan.govt.nz
		site

16% increase on last year

		
official
information
		requests
		 covering
		 a range of topics
		 were responded to

192

		
191,679 total engagements
across social
		channels
(not including Civil Defence and Metro)
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Strategy and Direction
Setting Strategic Direction
The Council has developed its Strategic Direction (20202023) to set out the future direction for the organisation
and guide the development of the 2021- 2031 Long-Term
Plan (LTP). The Strategic Direction provides for both
‘enduring priorities’ representing the Council’s core and
ongoing activities and ‘transformational opportunities’
describing aspirational future priorities.
To assist in progressing the Strategic Direction, the Council
has formed two Working Groups. The Public Visibility
Working Group will make recommendations to Council on
the transparency of Council business, including community
engagement, democratic processes, and community
participation in democratic decision-making. The Planting
and Regeneration Working Group will develop a proposal
for a region-wide indigenous planting and regeneration
programme for inclusion in the next Long-Term Plan.

Council submissions to central government
With the Government entering the final year of this term,
there have been a significant number of policies that
impact upon local government responsibilities. This year
Environment Canterbury has made 15 submissions on
Government policy and legislative proposals that could
impact in the Canterbury region, including climate change,
resource management, transport and urban development.

Responding to COVID-19
In March 2020 Environment Canterbury experienced
a period of sustained disruption as New Zealand
implemented alert level four lockdown due to the COVID-19
pandemic. Environment Canterbury responded quickly
to prioritise the delivery of essential services such as
emergency management, public transport, maritime
navigation safety, incident/pollution response and flood
protection. Many workplans were interrupted with onthe-ground services and community activities on hold. As
a result of the pandemic response, a number of Level of
Service targets across portfolios could not be achieved.
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15 submissions on Government policy
and legislative proposals
Biodiversity

2

Freshwater

1

Climate change
and hazards

4

Local government

1

Resource
management

3

Transport and
urban development

4

Ngāi Tahu and Regional
Relationships
Te Ara Whakamua
As the Environment Canterbury Transitional Governance
Arrangements Act expired at the last election, Ngāi Tahu,
the iwi holding mana whenua for Canterbury, is no longer
able to nominate two Councillors to be appointed to
Environment Canterbury. Councillors have been working
with Papatipu Rūnanga Chairs to develop an alternative
arrangement for Ngāi Tahu participation in Environment
Canterbury decision-making. Councillors have committed
to creating an opportunity for two representatives of Ngāi
Tahu to provide Council with mana whenua expertise and
advice from September 2020.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 32:
Environment Canterbury has clearly articulated a strategic
direction and priorities for the organisation.

MEASURE
32.2

Percentage of Levels of Service targets achieved across
all portfolios.

TARGET
32.2

At least 95% of the Levels of Service targets included in
the 2018-28 Long-Term Plan achieved each year.

RESULT

Of the 74 Levels of Service targets, 61 were achieved,
three levels of service were not measured due to
surveys not being completed during COVID-19 and 10
targets (including this target) were not achieved.

Environment Canterbury staff and Papatipu Rūnanga welcome the new Council
at a whakatau

Partnering with Ngāi Tahu
The Te Waihora Co-Governance Arrangement is a very
important aspect of Council’s relationship with Ngāi Tahu
and the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group welcomed new
co-governors from Environment Canterbury (Chair Jenny
Hughey and Councillor Craig Pauling) following the local
body elections in October 2019. Other members of the Te
Waihora Co-Governance Group are Selwyn District Council,
Christchurch City Council and the Department of Conservation.
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They continue to focus on seeking funding and investment
opportunities to support the restoration of the mauri of Te
Waihora and provide governance oversight for the Whakaora Te
Waihora programme, the achievements of which for 2019/20 are
outlined in the Freshwater Management section of this report.
The Whaka-Ora Healthy Harbour programme is another
example of co-governance and has been developing plans
to restore the ecological and cultural health of Whakaraupō/
Lyttelton Harbour as mahinga kai. In March executives from
Lyttelton Port Company, Ngāi Tahu, Christchurch City Council
and Environment Canterbury attended an inaugural noho
marae at Rāpaki marae where they discussed opportunities to
remove barriers so that practical actions could take place.

Advocating for Canterbury
The Mayoral Forum, comprising the region’s Mayors and the
Chair of Environment Canterbury, welcomed a number of
new members following the local body elections in 2019. The
Mayoral Forum is the primary mechanism for local government
leadership, coordination, and advocacy for the Canterbury
region and its communities. Its secretariat is provided by the
regional council. This year there was increased support and
coordination across the region, especially as a result of the
response to COVID-19. Weekly meetings were held to support
regional collaboration and advocacy and the development
of ‘shovel-ready’ project proposals to Crown Infrastructure
Partners from Canterbury councils.

Regional alliances
Whanaungatanga/collaboration is key to how we work,
and Environment Canterbury is progressing a number of
alliances working in partnership with central government
agencies, iwi and territorial authorities.
• This year the Mackenzie Basin Agency Alignment
Programme has received additional funding for wilding
conifer control with projects focused in Ōhau and
Tekapō. The programme has also received a report
outlining benefits of the alliance and advice to improve
effectiveness of planning provisions.
• The Soil Conservation and Revegetation (SCAR) programme
has completed the first of a four-year programme to
support landowners who have erosion-prone land with
advice, tools and skills. This year over 2,000 poplars were
provided and around 200 hectares of native bush was
retired in and around Mt Guardian in the Hurunui district.

MEASURE
33.3

Relationships with key stakeholders are managed and
maintained to achieve strategic objectives/community
outcomes.

TARGET
33.3B

By the end of December 2019, an independent assessment
will be undertaken to establish levels of trust and confidence,
and stakeholder relationship plans will be developed and in
place for all relationships where a need is identified.

RESULT

Research First provided a report on trust and
confidence which was presented to Council in
December 2019. The report outlined trust and
confidence levels reported by stakeholders between
September 2018 – November 2019. Overall,
stakeholders have experienced high levels of trust and
confidence in Environment Canterbury.

TARGET
33.3C

Annually thereafter, stakeholder relationship plans will be
reviewed and revised as required.

RESULT

Stakeholder relationship plans have been developed.

MEASURE
33.4

Regional forums are supported by Environment
Canterbury and enabled to achieve their agreed
objectives.

TARGET
33.4

Environment Canterbury provides secretariat support for the
five regional forums.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury has provided secretariat
support to the regional forums and ongoing
implementation of the Canterbury Regional Economic
Development Strategy (CREDS). Staff have also
supported development of the Canterbury Local
Authorities’ Triennial Agreement 2020–22, supported
coordination of ‘shovel-ready’ project proposals
to Crown Infrastructure Partners from Canterbury
councils as part of responding to COVID-19, and
preparation of regional and Mayoral Forum advocacy
to central government and other key stakeholders on
matters of concern to the region.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 33:
Environment Canterbury’s work and regional leadership
is grounded in enduring relationships and collaborative
agreements.

MEASURE
33.1

Environment Canterbury - Ngāi Tahu governance and
working group forums are held regularly to advance an
agreed Tuia work programme.

TARGET
33.1A

Governance meetings are held quarterly and working group
forums are held every two months. Work plans are in place
and reviewed annually.

RESULT

Scheduled meetings for March and April 2020 were
cancelled as a result of the COVID-19 alert level four
lockdown, work planning has not been affected.
Otherwise, Te Rōpū Tuia and Te Paiherenga have been
held regularly throughout the year. The Tuia work
plan has been reviewed and activities are reported
regularly to Council.

Canterbury Mayoral Forum (2020)
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Long-Term Community
Planning
Annual Plan 2020/21
In February, Council adopted the draft 2020/21 Annual Plan
and the community, partners and stakeholders were invited
to provide feedback by 25 March 2020. As the impacts of
COVID-19 became evident in March, Council accepted late
feedback to inform how the Annual Plan priorities and rates
could respond to changing community needs. Staff presented
a range of options to reduce the overall rates increase and
these were robustly debated by Councillors. In June 2020
Council agreed to increase its total rates revenue by 4% in
the 2020/21 financial year, much less than the 9.8% originally
proposed when the draft plan was released. This 4% provides
for inflation and priority work such as public transport service
improvements, coastal environment planning, climate change
engagement, and tree planting and regeneration initiatives.

Community well-being
Council have welcomed the Local Government (Community
Well-being) Amendment Act 2019, which changes the
purpose for local government to promoting community
wellbeing. Community wellbeing has become a central driver
for our work and this year’s groundwork for the long-term
plan has a strong focus on improving the social, economic,
environmental and cultural wellbeing of our communities.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 34:
Our Long-Term Plan, Annual Plans and Annual Reports
provide evidence of sound business planning.
MEASURE
34.1

Our Long-Term Plan, Annual Plans and Annual Reports
are completed within statutory time frames.

TARGET
34.1A

All Local Government Act statutory planning
requirements and financial reporting standards are met.

RESULT

100% Local Government Act statutory deadlines
were met.

TARGET
34.1B

Unmodified independent audit report for Long-Term
Plan and Annual Report.

RESULT

The 2018/19 Annual Report (unmodified) was adopted
by Council on 19 September 2019. The 2020/21 Annual
Plan was adopted 18 June 2020.

Plans, Consenting and Compliance
Regional planning
Our regional planning team provides active support for the
planning processes of all ten territorial authorities. This work
ensures development in the region is in accordance with the
Canterbury Regional Policy Statement. This financial year
support included working collaboratively with Waimakariri,
Selwyn, Timaru, Mackenzie and Waitaki District Councils on
full plan reviews, focusing on provisions to better protect
biodiversity and respond to natural hazards. The team has
also been providing significant assistance to Kaikōura District
Council for their natural hazards plan change.
Other key areas of work have been:
• preparing a change to the regional policy statement with
the Greater Christchurch partners, to reflect the decision
on “Our Space 2018 – 2048” (see the Transport & Urban
Development section of this report for more information)
• providing early feedback for a range of district
plan changes, notified consents, and enforcement
proceedings and, where necessary, participating in
statutory processes.

Consenting
The Resource Management Act 1991 sets statutory
timeframes for local authorities to process resource
consent applications. For the first half of the 2019/20 year
our consents processing team received 671 applications
and had 100% timeframe compliance. For the full year
1,250 consents were processed and 99.6% timeframe
compliance achieved. This outcome reflects the high
performance of the team, with a trend of improvement over
recent years. The Ministry for the Environment reports that,
for 2018/19, the average resource management consent
timeframe compliance across NZ councils was 82%.

Compliance monitoring and enforcement
Protecting the environment is a top priority for the Council.
We take a prioritised, risk-based approach to monitoring
compliance and responding to pollution incidents based
on Council priorities. In the 2019/20 year we focused on
monitoring high-risk consents, water users (including water
Annual Report 2019/20

XL

metering requirements), ensuring farmers and growers have
their land use consents (if required), fish screens, and any
identified Water Zone priorities. More than 60% of consents
monitored during 2019/20 were associated with water take
and use. This includes water taken by territorial authorities
or used for irrigation. Of the publicly reported incidents
in that period, more than 50% related to air discharges,
mainly outdoor burning, odour and dust. For lower risk
incidents, advice is provided and may include a visit from an
enforcement officer. At the more serious end of the scale,
abatement notices or infringements will be issued where
necessary and, in a small number of cases, offenders are
taken to court – a process that requires significant resourcing
and time. During 2019/20 five prosecutions were initiated.
One prosecution that was concluded this financial year was
in relation to the death of hundreds of fish in Kā Pūtahi/
Kaputone Creek, which was originally reported in April 2018.
Charges were laid in September 2018 and in November 2019
Polarcold Stores Limited (which has since changed its name
to Emergent Cold Ltd.) and Russell Trent (an employee of
Polarcold) were fined a total of $242,350 after pleading
guilty to charges of illegally discharging a contaminant,
namely ammonia or ammonia contaminated water, to land
in circumstances where it entered water. This is prohibited
under the Resources Management Act.
This was one of the most significant prosecutions in New
Zealand for a breach of this nature resulting in serious
environmental harm. The nearby Kā Pūtahi/Kaputone Creek
became contaminated over a 5km stretch, causing an almost
complete fish kill along that length of creek. Around 1,780
dead fish were recovered, most of which were eels, both short
and long fin, ranging in size and age.

1,687 consent applications
have been received this year

1,250 decisions have been made,
with 99.6% timeframe compliance
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LEVEL OF SERVICE 35:

LEVEL OF SERVICE 36:

Environment Canterbury works collaboratively with the
region’s district and city councils in the review of their
district plans.

Environment Canterbury delivers customer-centric
regulatory services to our community.

MEASURE
35.1

District and City plans are supported by Environment
Canterbury so that these plans give effect to regional
policies.

TARGET
35.1

Planning support is provided by Environment
Canterbury for each of the ten Canterbury Territorial
Authorities every year.

RESULT

Planning support has been provided to each of the
ten district/city councils in Canterbury to assist
with giving effect to the Regional Policy Statement.
We have provided more support to the territorial
authorities working on their District Plan reviews
(Selwyn, Waimakariri, Timaru, Waitaki), and plan
changes (Kaikōura), and less support for territorial
authorities that either have already reviewed their
Plans, or have yet to start.

MEASURE
36.1

Pre-application advice results in improved quality
of resource consent applications lodged, thereby
reducing the need to return applications as
incomplete under s88 of the RMA.

TARGET
36.1

For each year, for similar types of application, the
proportion which require more information under s88
of the RMA is lower where pre-application advice has
been provided.

RESULT

When we receive an application for a resource
consent, our planners categorise it red, orange or
green depending on the scale and significance. Of
those applications that were categorised as orange
or red, the probability of meeting the requirements of
s88 of the Resource Management Act 1991 increased
by 66% where pre-application advice was given. If an
application does not meet the s88 requirements it is
returned to the applicant as incomplete and it must
then be re-lodged, adding to cost for the applicant
and resulting in delays.

MEASURE
36.2

Compliance monitoring work programmes are
implemented to deliver on national, regional and zone
priorities.

TARGET
36.2

Publish an annual report of compliance monitoring,
incident response and enforcement activity on our
website.

RESULT

The annual report for compliance monitoring is
published on Environment Canterbury’s website:
ecan.govt.nz/ccm and shows and shows the types of
consents monitored, what was found and the response.
The annual incident report: ecan.govt.nz/ir-reporting
shows the incidents that were reported, what was found
on investigation, and the action taken as a result.

3,941 resource consents

have been monitored, with 5,339
inspections conducted

Just over 290 written warnings for non-compliance have
been issued, with 39 Abatement Notices, 18 Infringements,
and 3 prosecutions initiated

3,877 resource management

incident reports received

Of these, just under 5% were considered to have moderate
(175) or major (5) impact. 30 Abatement Notices were issued,
along with 49 Infringements, and 2 prosecutions initiated

XLI

Our Information and Advice
Land Air and Water Aotearoa
Environment Canterbury has been working with regional
councils across the country to improve public access to
council data through the Land Air Water Aotearoa (LAWA)
website. In April 2020 the new Groundwater Quality topic
was launched, providing state and trend information for
groundwater sites on an interactive national map:
LAWA.org.nz/explore-data/groundwater-quality
This is the first time groundwater quality data has been
reported to the public in this way.
The data is evaluated for five widely recognised indicators of
groundwater quality: E. coli, nitrate, phosphorous, chloride,
and electrical conductivity. Together, they provide insight to
the presence of pathogens, nutrients, and seawater intrusion.
The data is also supported by factsheets, videos, and a
glossary to assist the public, iwi, scientists, policy-makers,
and industry to interpret and make use of this excellent
resource. This is a significant addition to the LAWA dataset,
and it has required a lot of work over the past year and a half.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 37:
Communities and decision-makers have easy access to relevant, timely, and accurate data and information.
MEASURE
37.1

TARGET
37.1A

Data and information, which reports on the state of
Canterbury’s environment, is accessible through the
Environment Canterbury website.

RESULT

The Environment Canterbury website www.ecan.govt.nz
makes environmental monitoring data and information
accessible to the public, including quick access to the
frequently requested monitoring data for rainfall, river
flows, air quality, and coastal wave data.
Reporting Back webpages ecan.govt.nz/reporting-back
include environmental reporting for air quality,
freshwater management, biodiversity and biosecurity.
The Environment Canterbury website also links to
other environmental reporting data and information for
Canterbury water management zones.
State of the environment reporting for the Canterbury
region is published through LAWA at LAWA.org.nz

Community access to open data
Environment Canterbury’s water data team have developed
a simple ‘water quantity accounting tool’ to compare the
plan limits with consented allocation for each groundwater
zone and river reach. This tool is being used by our customer
services team to query water availability in an area and
provide advice on whether water is available to be used for
irrigation at that time.
The Canterbury Maps website canterburymaps.govt.nz
provides free access to maps, records, information and
data from local councils in the Canterbury region. In
2019 there was a 46% increase in the number of website
users. Each year new data is added to the service, such
as city plans, hazards, liquefaction information and aerial
photography. This financial year we received additional
funding through the provincial growth fund to support the
acquisition of Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) data
across the Canterbury region.
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State of the Environment reporting information is
updated and published throughout the year on four
environmental domains: air, coastal, biodiversity/
ecosystem health, and water.

TARGET
37.1B

State of the Environment reporting is published
in accordance with Ministry for the Environment
frameworks.

RESULT

Environment Canterbury data was made available and
used in Ministry for the Environment 2019-20 national
state of the environment reports.
Environment Canterbury reporting, including on LAWA,
uses the internationally (and MfE/Statistics NZ) agreed
Driving Forces-Pressure-State-Impact-Response
framework with scientifically agreed indicators and
monitoring and reporting standards.

MEASURE
37.2

Council has established a process for reporting mātauranga
Māori alongside state of the environment reporting.

TARGET
37.2B

Develop a framework for coordinated reporting on
mātauranga Māori alongside our state of the environment
information (2019/20).

RESULT

A contract is in place to develop the framework,
but delivery was affected by COVID-19 and other
issues which reduced capacity for both Environment
Canterbury and the contractor. The framework
is expected to be delivered in 2020/21 so we can
commence reporting on mātauranga Māori alongside
our state of the environment reporting in 2021.

LEVEL OF SERVICE 38:
The Environment Canterbury customer services team
provide access to data, information and advice.

MEASURE
38.1

Customer service interactions provide the right
information, first time to our customers.

TARGET
38.1

95% or more of sampled customer service interactions, on
average over each year, meet our service standards.

RESULT

In 2019/20 the customer services team responded
to over 70,000 phone and emails. A sample of
these interactions are evaluated each month and of
those evaluated the average quality evaluation score
attained was 95% which meets the service standards.
The most common queries were about consents,
incident response reports, and home heating.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ToIndependent
the readers of Canterbury
Regional
Council’s
annual report
auditor’s
report
on [Name
of Council]’s

Consultation Document
its 30
proposed
for the yearfor
ended
June 2020 2015-25 Long-Term Plan
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Canterbury Regional Council (the Regional Council). The Auditor-General has appointed
I am the Auditor-General’s appointed auditor for [Name of Council] (the Council). Section 93C
me, Julian Tan, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to report on the information in the Regional Council’s
of the Local Government Act (the Act) requires an audit report on the Council’s consultation
annual report that we are required to audit under the Local Government Act 2002 (the Act). We refer to this information as “the
document.
have carried out this audit using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand.
audited information”
in ourI report.

We completed this audit on [date].

We are also required to report on:

Opinion

• whether the Regional Council has complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act that apply to the annual report;
and
In my opinion:
• the completeness and accuracy of the Regional Council’s disclosures about its performance against benchmarks that are
required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014.
•
the consultation document provides an effective basis for public participation in the
We refer to this information
as “thedecisions
disclosure about
requirements”
in our report.
Council’s
the proposed
content of its 2015-25 long-term plan,

it: 2020. This is the date on which we give our report.
We completed our work because
on 22 October


Opinion

fairly represents the matters proposed for inclusion in the long term plan;
and

Unmodified opinion on the audited information, excluding the statement of service performance


identifies and explains the main issues and choices facing the Council and
the consequences of those choices; and

In our opinion the financial statements
pages 5 or
to 38
pages: and
[city,ondistrict
region],
•

•

present fairly, in all material respects:
•
the information and assumptions underlying the information in the consultation
• the Regional Council’s
financial
position
as at 30 June 2020;
document
are
reasonable.
• the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date; and
• complyBasis
with generally
accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with Public Benefit Entity
of Opinion
Reporting Standards.
the fundingWe
impact
statement
on pages
59 presents fairly,
in allAuditor-General’s
material respects, theAuditing
amount ofStandards,
funds produced from
carried
out our
work52intoaccordance
with the
1
each source
of
funding
and
how
the
funds
were
applied
as
compared
to
the
information
included
in
the
Regional
Council’s
relevant international standards and the ethical requirements in those standards.
annual plan.

We assessed the evidence the Council has to support the information and disclosures in the

Modified opinion on the statement of service performance because the Regional Council was not able to report
consultation
document.
select appropriate
audit procedures, we assessed the risk of
customer satisfaction
levels
for publicTo
transport
services

material misstatement and the Council’s systems and processes applying to the preparation of
In our opinion,the
except
for the matter
described in the Basis for our modified opinion section of our report, the statement of
consultation
document.
service performance (called the activity reports by portfolio) on pages V to XLII:
•

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the consultation

 resents fairly, in all material respects, the Regional Council’s levels of service for each group of activities for the year
p
document.
ended 30 June 2020, including:
•	the levels of service achieved compared with the intended levels of service and whether any intended changes to
Responsibilities of the Council and auditor
levels of service were achieved;

Council
is responsible
for: between the levels of service achieved and the intended levels of service;
•	theThe
reasons
for any
significant variation
and
•

•

•

meeting all legal requirements relating to its procedures, decisions, consultation,

•
complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.
disclosures, and other actions associated with preparing the consultation document
the statement about and
capital
expenditure
for each group of activities on pages 52 to 59, presents fairly, in all material
long-term
plan;
respects, actual capital expenditure as compared to the budgeted capital expenditure included in the Regional Council’s
long-term 1plan; and
The International Standard on Assurance Engagements (New Zealand) 3000 (Revised): Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
Historicalstatement
Financial Information
andgroup
The International
Standard
on Assurance
Engagements
of Prospective
the fundingofimpact
for each
of activities
on pages
52 to 59
presents3400:
fairly,TheinExamination
all material
respects,Financial
the
amount ofInformation.
funds produced from each source of funding and how the funds were applied as compared to the information
included in the Regional Council’s long-term plan.
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Report on the disclosure requirements
We report that the Regional Council has:
•
•

complied with the requirements of Schedule 10 of the Act that apply to the annual report; and
made the disclosures about performance against benchmarks as required by the Local Government (Financial Reporting
and Prudence) Regulations 2014 on pages 39 to 46, which represent a complete list of required disclosures and accurately
reflects the information drawn from the Regional Council’s audited information and, where applicable, the Regional
Council’s long-term plan and annual plans.

Basis for our modified opinion
Customer satisfaction for public transport services is an important part of the transport & urban development portfolio
performance report because it is indicative of the quality of the service provided. As explained on page XXXI of the annual
report, the Metro Users’ survey to determine passenger satisfaction levels could not be completed due to the Covid-19
pandemic lockdown. As a result, the Regional Council has been unable to report against the passenger satisfaction
performance measure this year.
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Professional
and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. We describe our responsibilities under those standards further in the “Responsibilities of the
auditor for the audited information” section of this report.
We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
audited information.

Impact of Covid-19 pandemic
Without further modifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the disclosures about the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic
on the Regional Council as set out in note 25 on pages 37 and 38 of the financial statements.
Responsibilities of the Council for the audited information
The Council is responsible for meeting all legal requirements that apply to its annual report.
The Council’s responsibilities arise under the Act and the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations
2014.
The Council is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to prepare the information we
audit that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the information we audit the Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern. The
Council is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting, unless there is an intention to amalgamate or cease all of the functions of the Regional Council or there is no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audited information
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the audited information, as a whole, is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in accordance with the
Auditor General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences
or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of
this audited information.
For the budget information reported in the audited information, our procedures were limited to checking that the budget
information agreed to the Regional Council’s annual plan.
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited information.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:
•

 e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the audited information, whether due to fraud or error, design
W
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
• We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Regional
Council’s internal control.
• We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.
• We determine the appropriateness of the reported intended levels of service in the statement service performance, as a
reasonable basis for assessing the levels of service achieved and reported by the Regional Council.
• We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Council and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast a significant
doubt on the Regional Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in the audited information or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Regional Council to cease to continue as a going
concern.
• We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the audited information, including the disclosures, and
whether the audited information represents, where applicable, the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other information
The Council is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
information included on pages 1 to 4, 47 to 51 and II to XLII, but does not include the audited information and the disclosure
requirements.
Our opinion on the audited information and our report on the disclosure requirements do not cover the other information.
Our responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the audited information and the disclosure requirements, or our knowledge obtained during our work, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence
We are independent of the Regional Council in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-General’s
Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1: International
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.
In addition to our audit and our report on the disclosure requirements, we have reported on the Regional Council’s annual
reporting certificate to the debenture trustee for 2020, which are compatible with those independence requirements. Other
than these engagements, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Regional Council.

Julian Tan
Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor General
Christchurch, New Zealand
22 October 2020

Annual Report 2019/20

XLV

Part B:
Financial Reporting
Ngā Pūrongo Pūtea
For summary financial information, see our
rates tool online at rates.ecan.govt.nz/public

Arthur’s Pass National Park
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION | NGĀ KŌRERO Ā-PŪTEA
Financial commentary
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Council of Environment Canterbury confirms that all statutory requirements in relation to the Annual Report, as outlined in the
Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with. The Council and management of Environment Canterbury accept responsibility
for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgements used in them, and for maintaining a system of internal
control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial and service performance reporting.
In the opinion of Council and management of Environment Canterbury, the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2020 fairly reflect the financial position and results of operations and service performance achievements of Environment Canterbury.

Jenny Hughey
Chair
22 October 2020

Stefanie Rixecker
Chief Executive

OVERVIEW
We are pleased to report that Environment Canterbury performed well against the 2019/20 Annual Plan. The unforeseen challenge
of COVID-19 has not had a significant impact on our financial result although it has delayed work programmes and the associated
expenditure, and changed the way that many of our staff have had to carry out their work. The COVID-19 impacts are detailed in
Note 25 in the Notes to the financial statements section.
The surplus before tax of $17.4 million includes a gain on forestry revaluation of $12.0m. Excluding this revaluation gain, the operating
surplus is $5.3 million compared to a budgeted deficit of ($1.4 million) resulting in a variance to budget of $6.7 million. This is due
to receiving $5.1 million more revenue and spending $1.6 million less than expected. The additional revenue came mostly from an
increase in the capital value of the rating base and additional grant funding for the National Wilding Conifer programme. The lower
expenditure was in Public Transport largely due to bus contract payments and the phasing of Employment Relations Act changes,
and in Freshwater Management due to Plan Change 7 postponement and the Te Waihora programme experiencing delays due to
COVID-19. There will be $2.5 million carried forward to the next financial year for projects that were delayed this financial year mostly
due to COVID-19.
Further details on the financial performance of each portfolio can be seen in the Funding Impact Statements in Appendix 1 and the
levels of service in the portfolio performance section from page I.

EXPENDITURE
Environment Canterbury aims to operate a balanced budget, where operating expenditure is covered by operating revenue. Operating
expenditure is based on levels of service agreed with the community as part of the Long-Term Plan 2018-28. Expenditure budgets
are set based on the expected cost to deliver these agreed levels of service to the community.
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In 2019/20 Environment Canterbury spent $187.6 million delivering these services. Further details on portfolio levels of service and
expenditure are provided in the portfolio performance section from page I. Our largest area of expenditure is the provision of public
passenger transport (Metro) to Christchurch and Timaru. We also continue to invest in delivering on our strategic priorities including:
• Freshwater Management - to improve water quality in Canterbury and ensure the greatest environmental, social, economic and
cultural benefits.
• Indigenous biodiversity - programmes and projects to protect, value and enhance habitat and ecosystems.
SOURCES OF INCOME
Where possible, expenditure is fully or partially funded by those who directly benefit from that expenditure through user pays (such
as bus fares for those using the Metro bus service) or if a project has national benefits through central government grants. Expenditure
not funded by grants and user pays income, is funded through general rates, targeted rates or use of reserves.
In 2019/20 Environment Canterbury received $205 million (including the gain on revaluation of forestry of $12.0 million) from the
following sources:
• Fees, charges and other revenue – 23% of income (2019: 24%)
• Subsidies and grants – 22% of income (2019: 19%)
• General rates – 34% of income (2019: 35%)
• Targeted rates – 21% of income (2019: 22%)
For every $100,000 of capital value, the owner of a property in the Canterbury region paid an average of $37.27 in general rates to
Environment Canterbury. So for a property with a rateable value of $500,000 we would have collected $186.36 in general rates.
Environment Canterbury collects general rates for activities which benefit the region as a whole. A summary of rating statistics over
time is detailed in the table below:
ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY FINANCIAL STATISTICS

Proportion of rates to total income (%)
General rate per $100,000 capital value ($) GST included
Total debt as a percentage of total assets

2020
58%
$37.27
3.62%

2019
57%
$35.22
3.18%

2018
57%
$17.47
3.11%

2017
57%
$18.57
2.61%

2016
59%
$18.66
2.17%

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense comprises the Surplus/Deficit after taxation plus Other Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense. Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense includes items not recognised in the financial surplus, such as revaluation of
property, plant and equipment assets. Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense provides an all-inclusive view of Environment
Canterbury’s changes in equity. Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for 2019/20 was a surplus of $158.4 million. This surplus
includes the effect of the revaluation of flood protection assets - $141.1 million in other comprehensive revenue and expense.
The surplus after taxation, including the $12.0 million gain on forestry revaluation, is $17.4 million. This is the difference between
our Total Revenue and Total Expenditure for the 2019/20 financial year. These funds form part of the closing reserve balance.
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ASSETS
Environment Canterbury manages $1.130 billion of long-term assets and $58 million of current assets. Flood protection works, which
are valued at $658 million, remain our most significant asset. Environment Canterbury also has a significant amount of restricted
land reserves totalling $346 million. Many of these reserves are in or near floodplains and include the beds of the Ashley, Rakaia and
Waimakariri rivers, vested in Environment Canterbury for the purposes of managing flood protection for the region. For more detail
on Environment Canterbury’s assets, refer to note 9 of the financial statements.

CASH & INVESTMENTS
With $16.6 million cash and $17.5 million of current investments at balance date, Environment Canterbury manages these balances
closely during the year via the Performance Audit and Risk Committee (PARC). Environment Canterbury has a Liability Management
and Investment Policy which provides guidance as to the level and types of investments the Council wants to maintain. External
treasury advice is also utilised to monitor the policy levels.

BORROWINGS
With total borrowings of $54 million, debt per capita equates to approximately $87 for every person in Canterbury. External debt is
used to fund projects where there is a long-term benefit which would otherwise have to be funded by the current generation of
ratepayers. Where possible and prudent, Environment Canterbury will fund internally from reserves before borrowing externally.
As a public body, Environment Canterbury has access to low cost borrowing, which we have taken advantage of with $54 million
borrowed from the NZ Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA) to invest in and create assets with benefits that last over generations.
There was insufficient equity reserves to invest in these assets, and therefore borrowing was required. Our cash reserves must be
maintained at a level in line with our policy.
At the end of the 2019/20 financial year, total liabilities are $80.9 million, this is $20.8 million higher than the prior year and is a
result of higher borrowings.
Environment Canterbury’s financial strategy sets limits around debt and interest rate levels along with performance targets for
investments. The financial strategy is outlined in Environment Canterbury’s Long-Term Plan 2018-28. The aim is to achieve efficient
and effective regional governance by prudently managing finances in a manner that protects the public’s investment and minimises
the exposure to risk.

EQUITY – YOUR INVESTMENT IN ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY
The equity figure of $1.107 billion in the statement of financial position represents the net assets of Environment Canterbury.
Equity is further classified into various reserves, representing funds collected with a specific purpose–see note 15 for full details of
Environment Canterbury’s reserves. Reserves that are held for specific purposes help to smooth costs in those activities over time.
Equity has increased this year by $159 million, with $153.2 million due to the revaluations of the flood protection and forestry assets.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The financial information contained in this Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and present fairly, in all material aspects the activities of Environment Canterbury during the year
and its financial position at the end of the year.
KATHERINE HARBROW
Chief Financial Officer, B.Com CA
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Financial statements
Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note
Revenue
General rates
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants
Fees and charges
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Other gains
Total operating revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total operating expenditure
Surplus/(deficit) before tax
Tax (expense)/benefit net of loss offset
Surplus/(deficit) after tax and gain on forestry revaluation
Other comprehensive revenue and expense
Financial assets at fair value
Revaluation of assets
Total other comprehensive revenue and expense
Total comprehensive revenue and expense

Actual
2019/20
$000

2
2
3

3
1
4
4
4
1,4

15
9, 10

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

69,724
42,690
45,478
31,841
627
2,171
12,421
204,952

68,381
41,901
39,887
36,158
370
1,143
187,840

63,136
39,295
34,897
34,570
460
2,797
5,891
181,046

53,055
5,741
1,756
127,016
187,568
17,384
5
17,389

53,292
6,685
1,495
127,736
189,208
(1,368)
(1,368)

49,206
5,890
1,148
120,345
176,589
4,457
9
4,466

(62)
141,112
141,050
158,439

(1,368)

32
35,592
35,624
40,090

The net surplus in 2019/20 of $17.4 million includes a $12.0 million gain on the revaluation of forestry assets at 30 June 2020. The
operating surplus before tax, and excluding the forestry revaluation gain, is $5.3 million. The gains on the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment are included in other comprehensive revenue and expense.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET
Additional rates of $2.1 million were received due to an increase in the capital value of the rating base. Subsidies and grants are
greater than budget as a result of additional funding received for the Canterbury Regional Economic Development Strategy, as well
as the National Wilding Conifer programme. Fees and charges are lower than budget due largely to the lower quantity of consent
application and monitoring fees, as well as reduced public transport fare revenue as a result of COVID-19. A revaluation of flood
protection and forestry assets was undertaken this financial year which resulted in an increase of $153.2 million to these assets. The
revaluation of land and buildings is completed every three years; however, an impairment assessment was also completed at 30
June 2020 and no impairment to these assets was identified. Overall the net effect of revenue variances is that total operating
revenue (excluding the $12.0 million forestry revaluation gain) is $5.1 million, or 2.7% higher than originally expected.
Expenditure for the year is $1.6 million (0.9%) under budget primarily due to lower expenditure in Public Transport, as well as lower
than budgeted labour costs as a result of staff vacancies during the year.
The Council does not receive any income from development and financial contributions.

5

Statement of changes in net assets/equity for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note
Balance as at 1 July
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year
Reserves transfer to Capital Work in Progress
Balance at 30 June

15
15

Actual
2019/20
$000
947,370
158,439
791
1,106,600

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000
912,228
(1,368)
910,860

Actual
2018/19
$000
907,280
40,090
947,370

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020
Note
Current Assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables and accruals
Current portion of Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes
Canterbury receivables
Inventories
Land and buildings held for sale
Total current assets
Non current assets
Investments (other financial assets)
Receivables and accruals
Non current portion of Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes
Canterbury receivables
Property plant & equipment
Intangible assets
Forestry assets
Total non current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
Employee entitlements
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Current portion of loans
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Non current portion of finance lease liabilities
Borrowings and other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity

Actual
2019/20
$000

5
6

16,617
17,500
22,428

1,526
10,000
15,853

11,704
5,000
21,610

7

440

611

383

8
9

830
57,815

780
28,770

284
131
39,111

5
6

1,303
427

889
279

1,110
461

7

2,528

4,240

623

9
10
11

1,086,388
15,610
23,415
1,129,671
1,187,486

932,336
14,546
952,290
981,059

955,955
10,259
968,407
1,007,518

12
13
14
14

20,788
4,324
478
11,015
36,605

18,550
3,321
156
250
22,277

17,298
3,706
396
6,000
27,400

449
832
43,000
44,281
80,886
1,106,600
1,106,600

312
47,609
47,921
70,198
910,860
910,860

749
32,000
32,749
60,148
947,370
947,370

14
14

The Annual Plan 2019/20 was prepared on the basis that the Forestry Assets were included within Property, Plant and Equipment.
No separate budget amount is therefore presented for Forestry Assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Please refer to Note
11 to these financial statements for further details in respect of this change in presentation.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash provided from:
Rates
Grants
Interest received
Recoveries/miscellaneous revenue
Cash applied to:

Payment of interest on loans
Payments to suppliers and employees
Goods and services tax (net)

Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash provided from:
Sale of fixed assets
Sale of assets held for sale
Clean heat loans repaid
Cash applied to:

Purchase of fixed and intangible assets
Purchase of investments
Healthier Homes Canterbury scheme

Net cash flow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash provided from:
Loans raised
Cash applied to:

Repayment of principal on loans

Net cash flow from financing activities
Movement in cash
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Add cash bought forward
Cash carried forward
Made up of:
Cash and bank

16

Actual
2019/20
$000

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2018/19
$000

110,666
45,549
537
37,351
194,103
(1,306)
(178,979)
322
(179,963)
14,140

110,231
39,768
370
36,198
186,566
(1,495)
(180,727)
(182,222)
4,344

99,834
34,081
412
42,608
176,935
(1,148)
(173,518)
502
(174,163)
2,772

380
131
385
896
(11,252)
(12,563)
(2,323)
(26,138)
(25,242)

1,143
367
1,510
(20,532)
(3,000)
(23,532)
(22,022)

48
(131)
525
442
(17,411)
5,031
(449)
(12,829)
(12,387)

22,015
22,015
(6,000)
(6,000)
16,015
4,913
11,704
16,617
16,617

9,790
9,790
(1,268)
(1,268)
8,522
(9,156)
10,682
1,526
1,526

8,000
8,000
8,000
(1,615)
13,319
11,704
11,704

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
The Goods and Services Tax (GST) (net) component of operating activities reflects the net of GST paid to and received from the Inland
Revenue. The GST (net) component is shown on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial
statement purposes.
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Statement of accounting policies
REPORTING ENTITY
Environment Canterbury is a regional local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002; it is domiciled and operates in
New Zealand.
Environment Canterbury has designated itself as a Public Benefit Entity for financial reporting purposes. The primary objective of a
Public Benefit Entity is to provide goods and services for regional or social benefit, rather than for making a financial return.
Environment Canterbury’s principal activity is the provision of local authority services, including: air quality, biodiversity and
biosecurity, freshwater management, coastal environment, consents and compliance, emergency management, flood protection
and control, land, natural hazards, navigation safety, public passenger and regional transport, regional leadership, and waste,
hazardous substances and contaminated sites.
We work with people all over Canterbury to manage the region’s water, land and air, and to deliver public transport.
The financial statements of Environment Canterbury are for the year ended 30 June 2020. Council authorised the financial statements
for issue on 22 October 2020.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the period.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of Environment Canterbury have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2002, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP).
The financial statements comply with Public Benefit Entity International Public Sector Accounting Standards (PBE IPSAS) and have
been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 Public Benefit Entity accounting standards.
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000).
MEASUREMENT BASE
The financial statements are prepared using a measurement base of historical cost modified by the revaluation of certain assets as
set out in the specific accounting policies below.

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies, which materially affect the measurement of results and financial position, have been applied:

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is accounted for in accordance with PBE
IPSAS 9 Revenue from exchange transactions and PBE IPSAS 23 Revenue from non-exchange transactions. Exchange transactions
are those where goods or services are provided and payment or payment-in-kind is received of approximately the same value.
Non-exchange transactions are those where there is no directly corresponding good or service provided for the payment or
payment-in-kind received.
The recognition criteria for specific revenue items is described below:
• Rates revenue is recognised when levied. General rates and targeted rates are non-exchange transactions.
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• Grants are recognised when any conditions are complied with. Grants are non-exchange transactions.
• New Zealand Transport Agency passenger services subsidies are recognised upon entitlement. These subsidies and grants are
non-exchange transactions.
• Interest revenue is measured at amortised cost and recognised using the effective interest method. Interest is an exchange
transaction.
• Fees and charges for resource consent services are recognised on a percentage completion basis with reference to the recoverable
costs incurred at balance date. These fees and charges are exchange transactions.

Taxation
Environment Canterbury is a public authority and consequently is exempt from the payment of income tax.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The financial statements have been prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of receivables and payables, which are stated with
GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.
The net amount of GST paid to or received from the Inland Revenue, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities,
is classified as a net operating cashflow in the statement of cashflows. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of
GST.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Environment Canterbury’s financial assets include: cash, receivables, accruals, and investments.
Environment Canterbury’s financial liabilities include: loans and borrowings, payables and accruals, finance leases and derivative
financial instruments.
Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to interest rate risks arising from the Council's financing activities. In
accordance with its treasury policy, the Council does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance date. As the derivatives are not hedge accounted, the resulting gain or loss is recognised in the
surplus or deficit. The portion of the fair value of the derivative that is expected to be realised within 12 months of balance date is
classified as current, with the remaining portion of the derivative classified as non-current.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

Receivables
Receivables may include both current and long-term amounts due and are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
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Clean Heat Loans ceased to be issued after 2012 and were issued with a nil interest rate. After initial recognition, the Clean Heat
Loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains or losses on impairment of the asset are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.
The Healthier Homes Canterbury scheme commenced on 1 July 2019 and the voluntary targeted rates incur an administration margin
of 5.9%. After initial recognition, the Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains or losses on impairment of the asset are recognised in the statement of comprehensive revenue and
expense.
A provision for impairment is established when there is evidence that Environment Canterbury will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the amounts expected to be collected.

Investments
Investments include cash and fixed income investments in bank and are initially measured at the amount invested. After initial
recognition, investments in bank deposits are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision
for impairment.

Inventories
Inventories (such as spare parts and other items) held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied
on a commercial basis are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Property, plant and equipment
Change in accounting policy
In previous financial periods, forestry assets were included within the infrastructure assets category within Property, Plant and
Equipment. A review was undertaken during 2019/20 in respect of the classification of Environment Canterbury's forestry assets for
financial reporting purposes. It was determined that, whilst continuing to offer flood protection benefits, the increased focus on
forestry management undertaken by Environment Canterbury means it is now appropriate for the assets to be re-classified as forestry
assets in accordance with PBE IPSAS 27 Agriculture.
Property, plant and equipment consist of operational assets, infrastructural assets, and restricted assets.
(a) Operational assets - These include land, buildings, computer equipment, plant and equipment, motor vehicles and furniture and
fittings.
(b) Infrastructural assets - Infrastructural assets consist of flood protection and control works (i.e. river control works and land
drainage schemes), wells, and environmental assets.
(c) Restricted assets - Restricted assets are reserves owned by Environment Canterbury that provide a benefit or service to the
community, which cannot be disposed of because of legal or other restrictions. Environment Canterbury receives lease rental revenue
from its reserve land under leases granted to third parties. Environment Canterbury classifies all of its reserve land as property,
plant and equipment.
Land (operational and restricted) is measured at fair value. Buildings, and flood protection and control works are measured at fair
value less accumulated depreciation. All other asset classes are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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Additions and other subsequent costs
The initial or subsequent cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Environment Canterbury and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired
in a non-exchange transaction for nil or for a nominal consideration, the asset is initially recognised at fair value.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses
on disposals are included net in the surplus or deficit. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation
reserves, in respect of those assets, are transferred to retained earnings.

Revaluation
Asset classes that are revalued, are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ materially
from fair value. The valuation cycle for revalued asset classes is normally three years.
Environment Canterbury accounts for revaluations of property, plant and equipment on a class-of-asset basis. The results of revaluing
are credited or debited to other comprehensive revenue and expense and are accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve for that
class of asset. Where this results in a debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other
comprehensive revenue and expense, but in the surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase on revaluation that offsets a previous
decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously
expensed, and then in other comprehensive revenue and expense.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at rates which will write-off the cost or valuation of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their useful lives.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is also not provided for components of river control works and land drainage schemes (excludes
culverts, floodgates, tracks and fences). An asset management plan has been prepared for these schemes and, in the absence of
significant flood events, they are not considered to deteriorate. Environment Canterbury expenses as maintenance, all repairs, and
capitalises additions which increase the service potential of the assets.
The useful lives, residual value and associated depreciation rates of Environment Canterbury’s assets have been estimated below.
It should be noted there are assets within some of these categories that have useful lives longer or shorter than the estimated useful
life (years) shown in the table. This is due to the nature of these particular assets and that we will derive benefit from them either
over a shorter or longer period.
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ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY’S ASSETS' ESTIMATED USEFUL LIFE
Asset Category
Fixed assets:
Buildings: structure
Buildings: fit-out
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment
Plant & equipment
Infrastructural assets:
Culverts & floodgates
Tracks & fences
Wells
Environmental assets

Estimated useful life (years)

Residual value (%) % of cost depreciated annually

5-100
5-20
3-10
10
4-7
4-10

1
1
22-40
1
1
1-30

1-20
5-20
6-20
10
14-25
8-20

25-80
50-75
33
5-33

-

1.25-4
1.33-2
3
3-20

Intangible assets
Environment Canterbury’s intangible assets are the costs associated with acquiring software, as well as emission trading units held
as part of the Emission Trading Scheme.
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to bring into use the specific software. Emission trading
units are recognised at fair value when the units were issued, and subsequently revalued at balance date at the lowest price available.
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Amortisation begins
when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. Emission Trading Scheme units have an
indefinite life, and are therefore not being amortised.
The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated in the table below:
ENVIRONMENT CANTERBURY’S INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Asset Category
Computer software

Estimated useful life (years)
3-8

Residual value (%)
33

% of cost amortised annually
8-22

Forestry Assets
Previously included within property, plant and equipment, standing forestry assets were revalued at 30 June 2020 at fair value less
estimated costs for one growth cycle. These assets will be revalued annually in accordance with PBE IPSAS 27 Agriculture. Forestry
assets are not depreciated.
Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of forestry assets at fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair value less costs
to sell are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Forestry maintenance costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit when incurred.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined using
depreciated replacement cost.
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If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written down to the
recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the surplus or deficit.

Finance leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Assets acquired by way of
finance lease are stated initially at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments, and are depreciated over
the period that Environment Canterbury is expected to benefit from their use.

Operating leases
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Payments are
representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and, accordingly, are charged to the surplus or deficit in the
periods of expected benefit.

Accounts payable
Short-term payables are recorded at their face value.

Employee entitlements
Annual, sick, long service and retirement leave and time-in-lieu entitlements estimated to be payable to employees are accounted
for on the basis of statutory and contractual requirements as employees become entitled to them.
Liability for sick leave is measured as the amount of unused entitlement accumulated at balance date that the Council anticipates
employees will use in future periods in excess of the days to which they are entitled.

Provisions
Environment Canterbury recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present obligation
(either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and is included in 'finance costs'.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs. After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after balance date.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Equity
Equity is the community’s interest in Environment Canterbury and is measured as the difference between total assets and total
liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into: general and other reserves, targeted rate reserves, and capital and asset
reserves.
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Reserves may be legally restricted or created by Environment Canterbury. Legally restricted reserves are those subject to specific
conditions accepted as binding by Environment Canterbury and which may not be revised by Environment Canterbury without
reference to the Court or a third party. Transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or when
certain specified conditions are met. Created restricted reserves are reserves restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter
them without reference to any third party or the Courts. Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion of the Council.

Budget figures
The budget figures in the financial statements are those approved by Environment Canterbury as part of the annual planning process.
The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and
are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Council for the preparation of these financial statements.

Cost allocation
The Council has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of the Council using the cost allocation outlined below.
Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs which cannot be identified
in an economically feasible manner, with a specific significant activity.
Direct costs are charged directly to Operating Portfolio activities. Indirect costs (Corporate and Overhead) are charged to Corporate
Portfolio activities and are reallocated using appropriate cost drivers, such as staff numbers and devices.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The financial statements are prepared using estimates and assumptions concerning the future and may differ from the subsequent
actual results.
Estimates and assumptions are continually reviewed and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
A number of the Council's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. When measuring the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Council uses observable market data as far as possible, or for non-cash-generating assets, replacement
cost or depreciated replacement cost.
In 2019/20, revaluations were undertaken of the Council's forestry and flood protection assets. Flood protection assets were revalued
as at 31 May 2020, at depreciated replacement cost for those assets with a defined life, and at replacement cost for all other flood
protection assets. Forestry assets were revalued at 30 June 2020 by determining the Net Present Value (NPV) for future cash flows
and discounting those cash flows at an appropriate discount rate.
An impairment assessment has been completed for property, plant and equipment, forestry assets, and intangible assets. The result
of this assessment was that there has been no material asset impairment identified, including no material movement in asset values
resulting from COVID-19.
There are no estimates or assumptions that are likely to have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, the most critical estimations in this regard being depreciation and
the useful life of assets.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

Grants received
Environment Canterbury must exercise judgement when recognising grant revenue to determine if conditions of the grant contract
have been satisfied. This judgement will be based on the facts and circumstances that are evident for each grant contract.
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Standards issued and not yet effective, and not early adopted
Standards and amendments, issued but not yet effective that have not been early adopted, and which may be relevant to the Council
are:
. Cash Flow Statements (PBE IPSAS 2), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
. Financial Instruments (PBE IPSAS 41), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
. Service performance reporting (PBE FRS 48), which becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
The Council has not yet assessed the effects of these new standards.
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Notes to the financial statements
Note 1: Portfolio summary ($000's)
Actual
2019/20
$000

Revenue
Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risks and Resilience
Regional Leadership
Transport and Urban Development
Total activity revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue
Expenditure
Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risk and Resilience
Regional Leadership
Transport and Urban Development
Total activity expenditure
Add/(deduct)other expenditure adjustments
Total expenditure
Surplus/(deficit) before taxation
Tax expense net of tax loss offset
Surplus/(deficit) after taxation

3,043
16,577
32,280
41,274
29,856
80,488
203,518
1,433
204,952
Actual
2019/20
$000
2,364
17,543
30,468
28,965
29,972
77,155
186,467
1,101
187,568
17,384
5
17,389

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000
2,926
10,515
32,353
27,437
28,245
86,364
187,840
187,840

Actual
2018/19
$000

Annual Plan
2019/20
$000
3,207
11,906
32,043
26,889
29,805
85,441
189,291
(84)
189,207
(1,368)
(1,368)

Actual
2018/19
$000

3,533
10,608
29,647
28,187
27,889
74,907
174,771
6,276
181,046

3,504
10,086
31,703
26,958
29,067
74,441
175,758
831
176,589
4,457
9
4,466

Note 2: Rates ($000’s)
The Council is required by the Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA) Guarantee and Indemnity Deed to disclose in its financial
statements (or notes) its annual rates revenue. That Deed defines annual rates revenue as an amount equal to the total revenue from
any funding mechanism authorised by the Local Government (Rating Act) 2002 together with any revenue received by the Council
from other local authorities for services provided by that Council for which those other local authorities rate. The annual rates revenue
of the Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 for the purposes of the LGFA Guarantee and Indemnity Deed disclosure is shown
below:
Rates on properties owned by Environment Canterbury totalling $428,524 (2019 $390,521) have not been eliminated from revenue
and expenditure.
Rates remissions: Revenue from rates is shown net of rates remissions. The Council remits rates in accordance with its rates remission
policies. Rates remission is provided for the following categories of rating units or under the following circumstances:
- Remission of rates for community, sporting and other organisations
- Remission of rates on land protected for natural, historical or cultural conservation purposes
- Remission of rates for other purposes
- Remission of penalties
The total rates remitted during the year to 30 June 2020 totalled $355,489 (2019 $393,822).
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Non-rateable land: Under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 some properties are non-rateable, such as schools, churches
and public gardens. This land is non-rateable in respect of general rates but, where applicable is rateable in respect of targeted
rates. Non-rateable land does not constitute a remission under the Council’s rates remission policies.
Revenue from rates

2019/20
$000

General rates
Targeted rates:
Works rating districts
Air quality
Catchment works
Clean Heat and Healthier Homes Canterbury
Civil Defence
Pest rating districts
Passenger transport
Regional Park
Total targeted rates
Total rates

2018/19
$000
69,724

63,136

5,747
1,642
1,314
148
2,602
2,200
27,754
1,283
42,690
112,414

6,175
2,049
1,361
40
2,327
2,067
24,130
1,145
39,295
102,431

Note 3: Subsidies, grants and other gains ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
36,433
1,076
359
6,102
719
44,690
788
45,478

Grant revenue
New Zealand Transport Agency
Ministry for the Environment
National Emergency Management Agency
Ministry for Primary Industries
Other government grants
Total government grants
Grants from non-government agencies
Total grant revenue
Other gains/(losses)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on revaluation (reversal of previous revaluation loss)
Gain on revaluation of forestry assets
Total gains/(losses)

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000
29,610
2,243
226
843
849
33,771
1,126
34,897
2018/19
$000

380
12,041
12,421

366
5,525
5,891

Note 4: Expenditure ($000's)
Significant activities
Loss on sale of assets
Inventories movement
Employee benefits
Rental expense on operating leases

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000
273
547
53,055
875

705
265
49,206
845
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2019/20
$000
Auditors' Remuneration
Fees to Audit New Zealand for audit of financial statements
Fees to Audit New Zealand for other services
Fees to other assurance providers for other audit services
Cost of credit
Bad debts written off
Finance cost - Interest expense
Finance cost - movement in fair value of interest rate swap
Movement in doubtful debts provision
Governance fees
Councillors fees
Depreciation and amortisation expense by portfolio
Air Quality
Biodiversity and Biosecurity
Freshwater Management
Hazards, Risk and Resilience
Transport and Urban Development
Regional Leadership
Total directly attributable depreciation and amortisation by portfolio
Other depreciation and amortisation
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

2018/19
$000
117
5
5

116
15
-

53
1,306
449
12

34
1,148
16

1,189

1,089

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000
154
1
729
604
11
193
1,691
4,050
5,741

162
1
549
497
348
288
1,845
4,046
5,890

1 A provision for impairment of receivables is created when there is evidence that amounts due are unlikely to be collected.
2 Further detail on Councillor remuneration is provided as part of the key personnel disclosures in Note 19 Related Party Transactions.
3 There were four severance payments made this year (four in 2019) totalling $59,426 (2019 $33,896); the value of each of the payments
was $4,226, $20,000, $9,506 and $25,694 (2019 $12,813, $6,800, $3,436 and $10,847).
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Note 5: Investments ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
Current investments
Cash and fixed revenue investments
Total current investments
Non-current investments
Civic Financial Services Ltd
Marlborough Forestry Corporation
Borrower notes in NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA)
Total non-current investments
Total investments

2018/19
$000
17,500
17,500

5,000
5,000

142
393
768
1,303

244
354
512
1,110

18,803

6,110

The carrying amounts of term deposits approximate their fair value. The effective interest rate for cash was 0.88% (2019 1.68%) and
the fixed interest rate was 2.68% (2019 3.87%).
Civic Financial Services Ltd and Marlborough Forestry Corporation assets are recorded at fair value. Where there is no active market,
net asset backing has been used to approximate the fair value of these assets. Due to the immaterial size and nature of the Council’s
investment in the LGFA, the Council has estimated the fair value of this investment based on the LGFA’s net asset backing as at 30
June.
There were no impairment provisions for these investments.

Note 6: Receivables & accruals ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
Current receivables and accruals
Trade receivables
Rates receivable
Accrued revenue
Prepayments
GST receivable

2018/19
$000

Provision for impairment
Total current receivables and accruals
Non current receivables and accruals
Prepayments
Total non current receivables and accruals
Total accounts receivable

3,455
10,335
7,147
970
742
22,648
(221)
22,428

5,689
8,587
5,928
981
634
21,818
(208)
21,610

427
427
22,855

461
461
22,071

Total receivables comprise:
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions

20,437
1,991

20,069
1,541

Debtors and other receivables are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally due by the 20th of the following month. Therefore
the carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximates their fair value.
Environment Canterbury does not provide for any impairment on rates receivable as it has various powers under the Local Government
(Rating) Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where
such payment plans are in place, debts are discounted to the present value of future payments.
The impairment provision has been calculated by reviewing all debtors individually at year end and estimating the expected losses
from each debtor based on historic default trends.
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MOVEMENTS IN THE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

Opening balance
Additional provision
Provisions reversed
Receivables written off during year
Closing balance

208
41
(28)
221

192
51
(35)
208

The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, but for which terms have been negotiated is $901
(2019 $16,662).
THE AGEING PROFILE OF RECEIVABLES

Gross
Not past due
Past due 1 - 60 days
Past due over 60 days
Total accounts receivable

18,828
3,743
504
23,076

2019/20
$000
Impairment
(17)
(5)
(199)
(221)

Net
18,811
3,738
306
22,855

2018/19
$000
Gross Impairment
16,667
(45)
5,393
(17)
220
(147)
22,279
(208)

Net
16,622
5,376
73
22,071

Environment Canterbury holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements that are either past due or impaired.

Note 7: Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables ($000’s)
Clean Heat Loans

2019/20
$000

Book value current portion
Book value non current portion
Total Clean Heat Loans receivable
Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables
Book value current portion
Book value non current portion
Total Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables
Total Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables

2018/19
$000
182
14
196

344
214
558

258
2,514
2,772
2,968

39
409
449
1,007

Loans for the Clean Heat project are provided at nil interest. These loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. The face value of loans outstanding is $203,841 (2019 $587,732).
The discount rates to calculate the face value for the loans outstanding for 2020 were between 4.06% and 8.75%, and an average
of 6.41% (2019 6.41%).
Healthier Homes Canterbury voluntary targeted rates incur an administration margin of 5.9%, and as a result, no discount has been
applied to the face value of these loans. These loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Note 8: Inventories ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
Inventories

2018/19
$000
830

284

Environment Canterbury only holds inventories for distribution; no inventories are pledged as security for liabilities (2019 nil). The
carrying amount of inventories for distribution is measured at weighted average cost.
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Operational Assets
Land (1)
Buildings (1)
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment (2)
Plant & equipment
Total Operational Assets
Infrastructural Assets
Flood protection and control
works
Wells
Environmental Assets
Total Infrastructural Assets
Restricted Assets
Land reserves (3)
Total Restricted Assets
Total

2019/20

(745)
(686)
(1,431)

(16,945)

518,933
3,605
522,538

346,366
346,366
959,526

346,366
346,366
942,581

518,188
2,919
521,107

12,070
48,860
4,996
1,524
2,690
4,969
75,109

105
105
8,606

1,175
165
3,655
4,995

185
1,274
192
771
1,084
3,506

Additions
$000

(4,146)

(21)
(21)

(131)
(2,520)
(47)
(578)
(850)
(4,125)

(485)

(934)
934
-

749
(46)
46
(1,235)
(485)

-

-

-

(121)
(121)
(5,030)

(367)
(81)
(280)
(728)

(1,774)
(575)
(221)
(813)
(797)
(4,180)

Total Property, Plant & Equipment
Capitalised Property, Plant & Equipment
Work in Progress
Balance at year end

Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Environmental Assets
Total Work in Progress

2019/20
$000

2019/20
$000

1,084,021
2,366
1,086,388

516
51
1,800
2,366

138,623

138,623
138,623

-

3,873

15
15

1
1,914
43
564
1,336
3,858

346,470
346,470
1,101,012

657,620
2,815
4,589
665,024

12,070
49,664
6,770
2,396
5,226
13,392
89,518

(121)
(121)
(16,991)

(752)
(280)
(1,033)

(1,773)
(1,681)
(950)
(2,546)
(8,886)
(15,837)

346,349
346,349
1,084,021

657,620
2,063
4,309
663,991

12,070
47,890
5,090
1,446
2,679
4,506
73,681

Depreciation
Accumulated
Transfers
Carrying
Revaluation write-back onClosing Cost/ Depreciation
Disposals
between Impairment Depreciation
value
Surplus (4) disposal/transfer Revaluation
and
$000
asset classes
$000
$000
30 June 2020
$000
(5)
$000
Impairment
$000
$000
$000
$000

Work in progress
Property, plant, and equipment in the course of construction by class of asset is detailed below.

(3,020)
(773)
(2,296)
(9,425)
(15,514)

12,070
48,860
8,016
2,297
4,986
14,393
90,623

Accumulated
Opening
Carrying
Depreciation
Cost/
value
and
Revaluation
1 July 2019
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

Note 9: Property, plant and equipment ($000’s)
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There are $14,353,173 fully depreciated assets as at 30 June 2020. Of this total $6,026,255 (42%) relate to public transport software that will be replaced in the next 12-24 months. The remaining assets have
been reviewed and are still in good working order and being used.
Insurance disclosure - The gross replacement cost of Flood protection and control works is $657,619,871 (2019 $518,188,471).
The carrying value of assets insured is $47,890,326 (2019 $48,859,993); the sum insured is $74,867,362 (2019: $78,764,262).
Environment Canterbury does not participate in any other financial risk sharing arrangements, all other assets (carrying value $1,041,523,764) (2019 $881,046,838) are self insured.
The value of the fund for the purpose of self insurance is $11,034,093 (2019 $10,852,360).

5 The accumulated depreciation written back on revaluation is included in the revaluation surplus.

4 Land and buildings of the same class are revalued every three years in line with Council policy. Valuations were undertaken at 31 May 2019 by Quotable Value New Zealand (a NZ registered valuation provider).
River control works and land drainage schemes were valued at 31 May 2020 at replacement cost, based on methods developed by the Council’s engineers. Flood protection assets with a defined life are
valued at depreciated replacement cost, all others are valued at replacement cost. The method was independently reviewed by IAM Consulting (M Gordon) Ltd who determined the method to be appropriate.
Restricted assets have been valued at fair value. Valuations were carried out by registered valuers Quotable Value New Zealand Ltd as at 31 May 2019.

3 The carrying amount of restricted assets represents the estimated value of that land in an open market transaction between a willing buyer and willing seller. The purpose in reporting restricted asset value
in this way is to provide a meaningful and realistic representation of the amount and worth of land for which the Council has stewardship responsibilities; it is not intended to represent net realisable value
to the Council. As this land was mostly vested in the Council by the Crown, the Crown would generally be entitled to any proceeds from sales of this land. It should be noted that disposals of this type of land
are extremely rare and the Council's role is to hold this land in perpetuity.

2 During the period, computer equipment totalling $614,704 was purchased, sold and leased back under finance leases (2019: $871,415). The initial purchase and sale of the equipment are not subject to
depreciation nor are they included within computer equipment additions and disposals.
The net carrying amount of computer equipment held under finance leases is $1,267,593 (2019 $1,144,191) which includes the acquisitions during the period.

1 There were no land or buildings for sale in 2020 (2019: one building).
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Operational Assets
Land (1)
Buildings (1)
Motor vehicles
Furniture & fittings
Computer equipment (2)
Plant & equipment
Total Operational Assets
Infrastructural Assets
Flood protection and control
works
Forests
Wells
Environmental Assets
Total Infrastructural Assets
Restricted Assets
Land reserves (3)
Total Restricted Assets
Total

2018/19

(372)
(594)
(966)

(187)
(187)
(20,321)

513,571
11,541
2,580
527,692

312,884
312,884
927,617

312,697
312,697
907,296

513,200
11,541
1,986
526,727

11,577
44,097
4,839
1,700
1,812
3,847
67,872

226
226
14,109

5,362
79
1,025
6,465

1,679
575
1,661
38
1,553
1,912
7,418

Additions
$000

(267)
(267)
(3,651)

(145)
(145)

(425)
(542)
(1,796)
(2)
(397)
(78)
(3,239)

-

-

-

5,395

-

5,395
5,395

(71)
(71)
(4,674)

(373)
(92)
(465)

(2,307)
(570)
(213)
(279)
(768)
(4,138)

Total Property, Plant & Equipment
Capitalised Property, Plant & Equipment
Work in Progress
Total Property, Plant & Equipment

Buildings
Furniture & fittings
Computer Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Environmental Assets
Total Work in Progress

2018/19
$000

2018/19
$000

954,056
1,899
955,955

74
35
117
73
1,599
1,899

33,781
33,781
34,620

-

(761)
1,601
839

961

-

42
862
2
55
961

346,366
346,366
971,001

518,933
11,475
3,605
534,013

12,070
48,860
8,016
2,297
4,986
14,393
90,623

(16,945)

(745)
(686)
(1,431)

(3,020)
(773)
(2,296)
(9,425)
(15,514)

346,366
346,366
954,056

518,188
11,475
2,919
532,582

12,070
48,860
4,996
1,524
2,690
4,969
75,109

Depreciation
Accumulated
Transfers
Carrying
Revaluation write-back onClosing Cost/ Depreciation
Disposals
between Impairment Depreciation
value
Surplus (4) disposal / Revaluation
and
$000
asset classes
$000
$000
30 June 2019
$000
transfer (5)
$000
Impairment
$000
$000
$000
$000

Work in progress
Property, plant, and equipment in the course of construction by class of asset is detailed below.

(4,566)
(3,312)
(561)
(2,018)
(8,711)
(19,168)

11,577
48,663
8,151
2,261
3,830
12,559
87,040

Accumulated
Opening
Carrying
Depreciation
Cost/
value
and
Revaluation
1 July 2018
Impairment
$000
$000
$000

Note 10: Intangible assets ($000’s)
Software (Capitalised Assets)

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Transfers from Property, Plant & Equipment
Balance at year end
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at beginning of year
Amortisation expense
Amortisation relating to disposals
Balance at year end
Carrying amounts
As at beginning of year
Balance at year end
Software - Work in progress

New Zealand emission units
Opening balance at 1 July
Revaluation of New Zealand units
Closing balance at 30 June

13,049
910
13,959

10,858
1,039
(181)
11,716

9,485
1,373
10,858

3,102
4,735

3,565
3,102

2019/20
$000

Software work in progress
Closing balance at 30 June
Total Software
Capitalised software
Software work in progress
Closing balance at 30 June

13,959
2,189
(183)
485
16,450

2018/19
$000
1,854
1,854

2019/20
$000

623
623
2018/19
$000

4,735
1,854
6,588
2019/20
$000

3,102
623
3,725
2018/19
$000

6,534
2,488
9,022

5,137
1,397
6,534

The Council holds 282,817 New Zealand units as part of the emission trading scheme (2019: 282,817). The total units comprise of
115,939 units relating to post-1989 and 166,878 units relating to pre-1990 forests. All units were recognised at fair value when the
units were issued and subsequently revalued at balance date. The shares have been valued at the lowest price available which is
$31.90 NZU (2019 $23.10 NZU). $2.489 million has been recognised in other comprehensive revenue (2019 $1.397 million).
Environment Canterbury has received New Zealand units (166,878 units) in partial compensation for the loss in value of land with
pre-1990 forests. These units were allocated under the Climate Change Response Act 2002 and its amendments. If deforestation
and land use change of the pre-1990 forests occurs, the potential liability may exceed the compensation received of 166,878 New
Zealand Units.
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Note 11: Forestry Assets ($000's)
Forestry Assets

2019/20
$000

Balance at beginning of year
Re-classification from Property, Plant and Equipment
Increases due to purchases
Gains arising from changes in fair value
Decreases due to sales
Decreases due to harvest
Balance at year end

2018/19
$000

11,475
77
12,041
(178)
23,415

-

In previous financial periods, forestry assets were included within the infrastructure assets category within Property, Plant and
Equipment.
A review was undertaken during 2019/20 in respect of the classification of Environment Canterbury's forestry assets for financial
reporting purposes. It was determined that, whilst continuing to offer flood protection benefits, the increased focus on forestry
management undertaken by Environment Canterbury means it is now appropriate for the assets to be re-classified as forestry assets
in accordance with PBE IPSAS 27 Agriculture.
Council owns 2,690 hectares of forest (2019: 2,673ha), primarily radiata pine, which are at varying stages of maturity ranging from
1 to 50 years, with an average weighted age class of 18 years. 35 hectares have been harvested, and 51 hectares replanted in 2019/20
(2018/19: 49ha harvested and 40ha replanted).
There are no restrictions over the title of forestry assets. No forestry assets are pledged as security for liabilities.

Valuation assumptions
Forestry assets were revalued as at 30 June 2020 by Council staff and independently reviewed by registered forestry consultants
Southern Cypresses Ltd.
The valuation is based on existing sustainable felling plans and assessments regarding growth, timber prices, felling costs, and
silvicultural costs and takes into consideration environmental, operational, and market restrictions. The following significant valuation
assumptions have been adopted in determining the fair value of forestry assets:
- The forestry assets have been valued by determining the Net Present Value (NPV) for future cash flows, subject to the constraint
that if a stand has a negative NPV then it is assigned a value of zero. This method involves estimating future wood and cash flows
for the estate and discounting those cash flows at an appropriate discount rate, by calculating the NPV of the cash flows.
- A discount rate of 7.5% has been used in discounting the present value of expected future cash flows. This discount rate is in
accordance with guidelines prepared by the New Zealand Institute of Forestry.
- Most of the land owned/managed by Environment Canterbury is vested in the Council, and the Council is constrained in selling the
land. For the purposes of the valuation undertaken, the forest has been valued on the basis that the forest is separated from the
land by Forestry Right. The assumption has also been made that the terms of the Forest Right cover the requirement that the right
holder pays all costs associated with the ownership of the land and pays no rental to the landowner.
- The scheduled harvest age for radiata is constrained in the valuation at 27 years. For the purposes of the valuation performed, all
stands planted before 1990 are assumed to have the same volume as if they were to be harvested at age 27 years.
- Log prices are based on a median average of prices received by Environment Canterbury in 2019/20.
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Financial risk management strategies
The Council is exposed to financial risks arising from changes in timber prices. The Council does not expect timber prices to decline
significantly in the foreseeable future. Therefore, no measures have been taken to manage the risks of a decline in timber prices.
The Council reviews its outlook for timber prices regularly in considering the need for active financial risk management.

Note 12: Payables & accruals ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
Trade payables
Accounts payable and accruals
Accrued salaries and wages
Total accounts payable and accruals
Total payables comprise:
Payables from non-exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions

2018/19
$000

3,078
16,174
1,537
20,788

4,125
11,776
1,397
17,298

4,606
16,182

2,090
15,208

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. Therefore, the carrying value of trade
and other payables approximates their fair value.

Note 13: Employee entitlements ($000’s)
2019/20
$000
Annual leave
Sick leave
Total employee entitlement liabilities

2018/19
$000
4,181
142
4,324

3,570
136
3,706

Note 14: Other financial liabilities ($000’s)
2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

(a) Current
Finance lease liabilities
Borrowings - LGFA
Total current

478
11,015
11,493

396
6,000
6,396

(b) Non Current
Finance lease liabilities
Borrowings - LGFA
Total non current

832
43,000
43,832

749
32,000
32,749

ANALYSIS OF FINANCE LEASES
Total minimum finance lease payments are payable
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not more than five years
Later than five years
Total minimum finance lease payments
Future finance charge
Present value of minimum finance lease payments
Present value of minimum finance lease payments are payable
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not more than five years
Later than five years
Total minimum finance lease payments
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2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

525
875
1,400
(90)
1,310

470
833
1,303
(159)
1,144

478
833
1,310

396
749
1,144

During the period, Environment Canterbury acquired equipment totalling $614,704 (2019 $871,415) by way of finance leases. The
carrying amount of items leased by way of finance leases within each class of property, plant and equipment is shown in Note 9.
There are no restrictions placed on Environment Canterbury by any of the finance leasing arrangements.
The rate of interest applied to lease liabilities is 0.93% - 1.68% based on the interest rate implicit in each finance lease contract. A
review was undertaken during 2019/20, and given the recent reductions in interest rates, it was considered appropriate to revise
the interest rates applied to finance lease liabilities, and also to apply a specific rate of interest to each individual finance lease
contract based on the contract's terms. In 2018/19 a rate of interest of 7.5% was applied to all finance leases.
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Note 15: Equity ($000’s)
General and other reserves
General accumulated funds
Opening balance
Operating surplus for the year
Reserve transfer to Capital Work in Progress
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
AFS reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Asset replacement reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Contracts reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Other reserves
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Targeted rate reserves
Biosecurity reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Catchment rating district reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Civil defence reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Clean heat reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Transfer (to)/from Healthier Homes reserve
Closing balance
Healthier Homes Canterbury reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Transfer (to)/from Clean heat reserve
Closing balance
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2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

(67)
1,778
791
(1,167)
1,335

1,202
(1,174)
- The revenue appropriation account for general funds.
(94)
(67)

1,005
461
130
1,596

919
Reserves to provide for development and maintenance of
86
office buildings.
1,005

9,354
284
(965)
8,673

7,281
To provide sufficient funding to maintain service level
2,073
capability of existing assets.
9,354

269
49
318
3,597
(51)
3,546
2019/20
$000

330
Reserves to fund on-going contractual obligations.
(61)
269
3,463 Proceeds from sale of land. Legislation restricts how this
134 can be applied.
3,597
2018/19
$000

39
39
(13,541)
809
1,745
(10,988)

37
Reserves to assist with initial response to pest incursion.
2
39
(9,432)
Reserves to fund planned and unplanned maintenance and
(4,110)
repair of flood protection schemes.
(13,541)

(561)
(327)
(19)
(907)

(720)
Reserves for the provision of civil defence emergency
158
management operations within the Canterbury region.
(561)

1,542
133
1,674

1,475
Reserves for Clean Heat programmes in the Canterbury
6
region.
61
1,542

(233)
(89)
(322)

Reserves for Healhier Homes programmes in the Canterbury
(173)
region.
(61)
(233)

Targeted rate reserves
Energy efficiency reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Passenger transport reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Pest rating districts reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance
Regional park reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Air quality reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Water study reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Closing balance

2019/20
$000
142
(142)
4,786
2,979
89
7,854

2018/19
$000
355
Reserves that are restricted to energy efficiency
(213)
programmes in the Canterbury region.
142
4,137
Reserves to ensure funding is available to provide an
649
uninterrupted passenger transport service
4,786

2,055
(1,187)
868

1,542 Reserves to enable quick response to meet obligations
513 under the Regional Pest Management Strategy
2,055

(316)
(581)
(698)
(1,595)

(358)
Reserves for the provision of regional park activities within
42
the Canterbury region.
(316)

82
653
142
877

(356)
Reserves for the provision of strategic air quality services
439
for the Canterbury region.
82

(1,732)
1,732
-

(79) Reserves for the provision of strategic water services for
(1,653) the Canterbury region.
(1,732)

The 30 June 2020 balance in the Water study reserve has been transferred to General Accumulated Funds, as there is no longer a
targeted Water study rate.
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Capital and asset reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
Opening balance
Gain/(loss) on revaluation
Transfer (to)/from capital reserve
Transfer to forestry reserve
Investment revaluation movement
Impairment losses
Transfer to general funds on disposal
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Forestry reserve
Opening balance
Transfer from Asset revaluation reserve
Gain/(loss) on revaluation
Closing balance
Capital reserve
Opening balance
Transfer (to)/from general fund
Other reserve fund transfers
Closing balance
Total equity

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

779,950
141,179
(9,281)
(62)
113
911,899

744,116
41,117
425
Reserves generated by movements in: investments – note
6, property plant, and equipment – note 10, and intangible
32
assets - note 11.
(5,525)
(215)
779,950

9,281
12,041
21,321

Represents the gains and losses on the revaluation of the
Council's forestry assets.
-

161,000
(278)
(312)
160,411
1,106,600

153,369
Represents the Council’s investment in fixed and
8,056
infrastructural assets.
(425)
161,000
947,370

The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds) which includes retained earnings and reserves. The Local Government Act
2002 requires the Council to manage its finances prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the
community. Ratepayers’ funds are a derivative of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and other general
financial dealings. The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the
Local Government Act 2002 and applied by the Council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of
utilising the Council’s assets and does not require them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future
generations.
Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance
programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from the general rate.
Any surplus or deficit, relating to these separate areas of benefit, is applied to the specific reserves. Self insurance reserves are built
up annually from general rates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. The release of these funds can only generally
be approved by Council. Environment Canterbury operates a centralised treasury function with the key purpose to minimise its cost
of funds. Environment Canterbury does not operate an internal borrowing programme as defined in the Local Government Act 2002.
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Note 16: Cash flow reconciliation with net surplus ($000’s)

Net surplus/(deficit) per Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense

2019/20
$000
17,389

2018/19
$000
4,466

5,741
(23)
(194)
449
(12,041)
12
587
(5,467)

5,890
(48)
(64)
16
203
(5,525)
(4,131)
(3,657)

(811)
44
(547)
1,040
2,598
2,325

(2,487)
(28)
80
(4,918)
(982)
(8,335)

(106)
(106)
14,140

10,299
10,299
2,772

Add/(deduct) Non Cash Items
Depreciation and amortisation
(Increase)/decrease in Clean Heat loans receivable
(Increase)/decrease in other investments
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of derivatives
Revaluation of forestry assets
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Non-cash movement in provisions
Property, plant and equipment impairment
Property, plant and equipment acquisition
Add/(deduct) movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/decrease in receivables and accruals
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in revenue in advance
Add/(deduct) items classified as investing or financing activity
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows from operating activities

Note 17: Operating Lease expense commitments & Capital commitments ($000’s)
Operating lease expense commitments

2019/20
$000

Payable no later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years
Total operating lease expense commitments
Capital commitments

2018/19
$000
500
1,145
2,348
3,994

499
725
1,224

101

374

Note 18: Operating Lease rental revenue commitments ($000’s)
Operating lease rental revenue commitments
Receivable no later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years
Total operating lease rental revenue commitments

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000
5,316
16,764
34,024
56,105

5,314
17,251
37,004
59,569

Environment Canterbury receives revenue from land leases, and the revenue commitments are as per the table above.
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Note 19: Related party transactions
Council does not have any investments in Council Controlled Organisations.
KEY PERSONNEL
During the year key personnel were involved in minor transactions with Environment Canterbury (such as payment of rates, resource
consent applications etc). All such transactions were part of a normal customer relationship.
No provision has been required for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables to related parties (2019 $nil).
Remuneration for key personnel is valued at agreed total annual remuneration, which includes the values of non-financial benefits,
as required by clause 32A, schedule 10 of Local Government Act 2002.
Base remuneration for each Councillor is set in accordance with the Remuneration Authority Determination. Total remuneration as
disclosed includes remuneration for membership of Council committees, as well as reimbursement for mileage expenses incurred
in the performance of duties. The value of these reimbursements can vary between years in accordance with duties performed in
the year concerned. All other relevant expenses are reimbursed at cost in accordance with the Councillors' expenses policy.
The amounts in the remuneration table below reflect remuneration between July and October 2019 for those Council members who
are no longer Councillors as a result of the Local Government election held on 12 October 2019. For those Councillors who were
re-elected the amounts are for the full 2019/20 financial year, and for the new Councillors the remuneration is for the period October
2019 - June 2020.
Remuneration of Council members and Chief Executive
Jenny Hughey
Peter Scott
Claire McKay
Grant Edge
Ian Mackenzie
John Sunckell
Tane Apanui
Phil Clearwater
Vicky Southworth
Megan Hands
Craig Pauling
Nicole Marshall
Lan Pham
Elizabeth McKenzie
Steve Lowndes
Peter Skelton
Cynthia Roberts
Tom Lambie
Elizabeth Cunningham
Iaean Cranwell
David Caygill
Rod Cullinane
Total Councillor remuneration
Chief Executive - Bill Bayfield
Chief Executive - Stefanie Rixecker
Total Chief Executive remuneration
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2019/20

2018/19

124,117
115,849
81,479
54,178
56,089
76,893
50,753
50,528
51,866
58,509
51,400
53,154
75,089
61,600
52,826
25,433
24,760
26,334
23,763
24,767
25,643
23,763
1,188,793

106,205
87,992
79,749
82,085
166,979
80,472
79,971
90,923
75,191
80,139
76,751
82,225
1,088,682

383,891
60,534
444,425

417,731
417,731

2019/20
$000

Key management personnel compensation
Councillors
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Executive Leadership Team
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Chief Executive Officer
Remuneration
Full-time equivalent members
Total

2018/19
$000

1,188,793
13

1,088,682
12

1,208,391
5

1,158,460
5

444,425
1
2,841,609

417,731
1
2,664,873

As at 30 June 2020, there were 14 Council members. The full-time equivalent value of 13 above is a weighted average of the number
of Councillors during the 2019/20 financial year. The Council increased from 12 to 14 members after the Local Government election
in October 2019, as a result of a representation review which was approved by the Local Government Commission on 11 April 2019.
The remuneration for Bill Bayfield includes the payment of accumulated annual leave entitlements.
COUNCIL STAFFING LEVELS AND REMUNERATION
At balance date the Council employed 561 full-time employees (2019: 523), with an additional 114 part-time staff (2019: 107) representing
74 full-time equivalent employees (2019: 69). A full-time employee is defined as a staff member working 37.5 hours per week if they
were employed before 16 December 2014, 40 hours per week if employed after this date.
Total annual remuneration, by band, for employees as at 30 June, based on head count is disclosed below:
Band
Under $59,999
$60,000-$79,999
$80,000-$99,999
$100,000-$119,999
$120,000-$139,999
$140,000-$159,999
$160,000-$179,999
$180,000-$239,999
$240,000-$419,999
Total

2019/20
$000

Band
118
222
161
99
43
12
11
8
4
678

2018/19
$000

Under $59,999
$60,000-$79,999
$80,000-$99,999
$100,000-$119,999
$120,000-$139,999
$140,000-$159,999
$160,000-$179,999
$180,000-$239,999
$240,000-$419,999
Total

141
217
143
72
28
11
9
6
3
630

Total annual remuneration includes salary and any other non-financial benefits for the year, such as private use of a Council motor
vehicle.
The above bandings are for employees in employment at 30 June, and therefore the 2019/20 bandings exclude the former Chief
Executive, Bill Bayfield, who left Environment Canterbury in May 2020.
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Note 20: Financial instrument risks ($000’s)
Environment Canterbury is risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. As part of its normal operations
the Council is exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Council’s exposure to these risks, and the action that
the Council has taken to minimise the impact of these risks, are outlined as follows:
CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to the Council, resulting in a loss to the Council. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at balance date is the fair value of the financial instruments as stated in the Statement of Financial Position.
Significant concentrations of credit risk apply principally in respect of bank accounts, investments and receivables. In the case of
bank accounts and investments, the Council reduces the risk by diversification and investing with high credit rated institutions, in
accordance with Council’s investment policy. The following table shows the credit ratings, credit risk and maturity periods of
Environment Canterbury’s financial assets and liabilities:
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes Canterbury receivables
Investments – managed investment portfolio

Investments – Civic Financial Services Ltd, Marlborough Forestry
Corporation and NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd
(LGFA)

Credit Rating

2019/20
$000

2018/19
$000

AA
AA*
*
AAA
AA
AAA
BBB
Unrated

16,615
20,715
2,968
17,500
-

11,704
19,994
1,007
3,700
1,300
-

*

1,303

1,110

59,101

38,814

* Where receivables have arisen from the Council’s statutory functions, there are no procedures to monitor credit quality with
reference to external credit ratings.
The Council’s main source of revenue is rates, which are collected on behalf of the Council by the relevant authorities, which exercise
powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debt. The Council has no significant concentrations
of credit risk in relation to receivables.
INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the Council’s financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Council is exposed to interest rate risk from its interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The Council is
risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure arising from its treasury activities. Investment and borrowing are undertaken in accordance
with the Council’s investment and liability management practices. These policies do not allow Environment Canterbury to enter into
any speculative transactions.
Environment Canterbury will manage its interest rate risks by adhering to the fixed and floating rate borrowing percentages as defined
in Environment Canterbury’s Liability Management & Treasury policies the application of which depends on the term of its outstanding
debt.
If interest rates on financial assets had fluctuated by plus or minus 0.5%, the effect would have been to increase/decrease interest
revenue by $150,834 (2019 $74,915) and expenditure by $251,370 (2019 $163,329).
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LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that Council will not be able to fund its commitments as they fall due. Facilities are maintained in accordance
with the Council’s investment and liability management policies. The Council maintains sufficient funds in short-term facilities to
cover all obligations as they fall due.
The following table shows a contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities:

2019/20

Total

Contractual Less than 1
cash flows
year

1-2 years

More
than 5
years

2-5 years

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes Canterbury
receivables
Investments
Total

16,617
20,715

16,617
20,715

16,617
20,715

-

-

-

2,968
18,803
59,103

4,281
18,803
60,416

650
17,500
55,481

476
476

1,383
1,383

1,773
1,303
3,077

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Finance leases
Derivative financial instruments
Total

54,015
16,182
1,310
449
71,957

57,865
16,182
1,400
452
75,898

12,090
16,182
525
28,797

9,830
432
55
10,317

19,613
443
286
20,342

16,332
110
16,443

2018/19
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and accruals
Clean Heat Loans and Healthier Homes Canterbury
receivables
Investments
Total
Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Finance leases
Derivative financial instruments
Total

Total

Contractual Less than 1
cash flows
year

1-2 years

More
than 5
years

2-5 years

11,704
19,994

11,704
19,994

11,704
19,994

-

-

-

1,007
6,110
38,814

588
6,110
38,396

383
5,000
37,081

233
233

163
163

228
1,110
1,338

38,000
15,208
1,144
54,352

42,022
15,208
1,144
58,374

7,094
15,208
396
22,698

6,031
311
6,343

23,583
437
24,020

5,314
5,314

Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instrument amounts in the table above relate to the interest rate swap entered into by Council during 2019/20.
This interest rate swap is to hedge Council's future exposure to interest rate risk on outstanding borrowings. The swap is for a notional
amount of $7 million and will commence on 15 December 2021 and mature on 15 March 2027.
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Note 21: Contingent assets and liabilities
Local Government Funding Agency
The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA), which commenced in December 2011, is the alternative debt
provider majority owned by and operated for local authorities. Council is not a shareholder but participates as one of 53 borrowers
and guarantors of LGFA. When Council borrows through the LGFA they are required to invest 1.6% of the proceeds back with the
LGFA as borrower notes which the LGFA retain as capital. Also, together with other guarantors, the Council is a guarantor of all of
the LGFA’s borrowings. At 30 June 2020, the LGFA had borrowings totalling $11.91 billion (2019 $9.49 billion).
There are no other significant contingent liabilities (2019: nil). There are no significant contingent assets at balance date (2019: nil).

Note 22: Post balance date events
Fitch Credit Rating
Environment Canterbury was assigned a rating of AA+ by Fitch Ratings on 3 August 2020. This first-time Long-Term Local-Currency
Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of AA+ has been issued with a Stable Outlook and a Short-Term Local-Currency IDR of F1+.
The ratings are based on Fitch's Rating Criteria for International Local and Regional Governments (LRGs), which lists risk profiles
and debt sustainability as the key rating drivers for LRGs. Fitch classifies Environment Canterbury as a Type B LRG, as the Council's
debt service requirements are largely covered by annual revenue and cash flow.
There are no other significant post balance date events.

Note 23: Rating base information
CANTERBURY PROPERTY VALUES AS AT 30/06/2019 INCLUDING THOSE THAT WERE NON-RATEABLE
Local Authority
Kaikoura
Hurunui
Waimakariri
Christchurch
Selwyn
Ashburton
Timaru
Mackenzie
Waimate
Waitaki
Totals
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Properties
3,242
8,468
27,019
173,799
28,176
15,873
22,830
5,024
4,468
2,089
290,988

Land Value
1,007,458,450
4,501,558,560
7,667,772,900
46,417,889,200
12,561,070,300
13,271,989,900
7,199,800,400
2,307,766,900
3,172,610,200
996,432,900
99,104,349,710

Capital Value
1,714,355,250
7,046,043,860
16,642,735,765
108,159,200,208
24,050,649,700
19,168,809,050
14,200,797,100
4,337,051,220
4,817,990,050
2,333,774,800
202,471,407,003

Note 24: Capital management
The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise accumulated funds and reserves. Equity is represented by
net assets.
The LGA requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings
prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community. Ratepayers’ funds are largely managed
as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.
The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the LGA and applied
by the Council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council’s assets and not
expecting them to meet the full cost of long-term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations. Additionally, the Council
has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure that
ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.
The LGA requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long-Term Plan (LTP) and in its annual plan (where
applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans. The LGA also sets out the factors that the Council is required
to consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and levels of funding
are set out in the funding and financial policies in the Council’s LTP.
The Council has the following Council-created reserves:
• reserves for different areas of benefit;
• self-insurance reserves; and
• trust and bequest reserves.
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from payers of general
rates. Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the specific reserves.
Self-insurance reserves are built up annually from general rates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. The release
of these funds can generally be approved only by the Council.
Trust and bequest reserves are set up where the Council has been donated funds that are restricted for particular purposes. Interest
is added to trust and bequest reserves where applicable, and deductions are made where funds have been used for the purpose
they were donated.

Note 25: COVID-19
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic and two weeks later the New
Zealand Government declared a State of National Emergency. The country was in lockdown at Alert Level 4 from 26 March to 27
April, and then remained in lockdown at Alert Level 3 until 13 May. Environment Canterbury's immediate response resulted in the
activation of the Crisis Management Team (CMT).
Impacts on work programmes
While lockdown prevented delivery of on the ground services, most staff were able to maintain near normal productivity while working
from home, progressing strategic and operational planning, developing internal assets such as process maps, preparing work plans
and resources ready for when restrictions eased, processing consent applications and answering customer enquiries by phone or
email. Council and the Performance Audit and Risk Committee were also able to continue to meet remotely during the period.
Despite this work ongoing, the lockdown period and subsequent restrictions have impacted our work programme for 2019/20.
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Most regional and zone delivery work was impacted for seven weeks, resulting in setbacks in biodiversity and biosecurity programmes,
environmental monitoring, and compliance monitoring and enforcement programmes.
There were major changes to public transport delivery, which saw only an essential service being delivered resulting in reduced
patronage. Fares were not collected on public transport in Canterbury from 25 March to 14 June 2020, and the New Zealand Transport
Agency (NZTA) provided funding to cover fare revenue lost during this period. NZTA have confirmed that they will continue to support
bus contracts, as well as the shortfall of bus fare revenue and additional cleaning costs through to December 2020.
All non-essential flood protection and drainage work ceased and only works that were essential to protect life, homes and critical
infrastructure were maintained.
Support and engagement projects with community groups were delayed and community collaboration processes planned for March
and April did not progress on time.
Plan Change 7 (PC7) to the Canterbury Land and Water Regional Plan (LWRP) has also been delayed.
However, overall, there was increased activity during the COVID-19 response, and our staff and Councillors have experienced the
benefits of remote-working technology and increased productivity during this time.
Impact on financial reporting and budgeting
The effect on our operations is reflected in these financial statements, based on the information available to the date these financial
statements were signed.
An impairment assessment has been completed for tangible and intangible assets. The result of this assessment was that there has
been no material movement in asset values resulting from COVID-19.
There were no significant uncertainties highlighted in respect of COVID-19 in the flood protection and forestry asset valuations
performed as at 30 June 2020.
Inflation and indexation assumptions in the 2020/21 annual plan were also revised downwards to incorporate the impact of COVID-19.
Impact on non-financial reporting
A number of non-financial performance measures were either not achieved (LOS9.1, LOS28.1, LOS 32.2, LOS33.1, LOS 37.2), or not
able to be measured and reported on (LOS27.1, LOS27.3, LOS27.5) as a result of the impacts of the COVID-19 lockdown. Please refer
to the level of service performance section of the annual report on pages II to XLII for further information.

38

Disclosure statement
ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS STATEMENT?
The purpose of this statement is to disclose the council’s financial performance in relation to various benchmarks to enable the
assessment of whether the council is prudently managing its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general financial dealings.
The council is required to include this statement in its annual report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting
and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information, including definitions of some of the
terms used in this statement.

RATES AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK
The council meets the rates affordability benchmark if • its actual rates income equals or is less than each quantified limit on rates; and
• its actual rates increases equal or are less than each quantified limit on rates increases.

Rates (income) affordability
The following graph compares the council’s actual rates income with a quantified limit on rates contained in the financial strategy
included in the council’s long-term plan. The quantified limit is total rates will not exceed 70% of total revenue in any given year.

39

Rates (increases) affordability
The following graph compares the council’s actual rates increases with a quantified limit on rates increases included in the financial
strategy included in the council’s long-term plan. The quantified limit in the 2018-28 Long-Term Plan is 6%.
In 2020 the increase in the total rates exceeded the limit set in the Financial Strategy. This arose because of increased spending in
freshwater and biodiversity - both strategic priorities for the Council - and increased spending in Public Transport to match supporting
New Zealand Transport Agency funding, the operational implications of the Employee Relations Act, and a focus on implementing
the Regional Public Transport Plan.
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DEBT AFFORDABILITY BENCHMARK
The council meets the debt affordability benchmark if its actual borrowing is within each quantified limit on borrowing.
The following graph compares the councils' actual borrowing with a quantified limit on borrowing stated in the financial strategy
included in the council’s long term plan. The quantified limit is 175% of total rates revenue.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENT
The quantified limit on debt was 60% in the 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial years. This limit was amended to 175% in the
2018-28 Long Term Plan, for the 2018/19 and future financial years, in order to allow for additional borrowing for significant
infrastructure projects if required.
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BALANCED BUDGET BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s revenue (excluding development contributions, financial contributions, vested assets,
gains on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant or equipment) as a proportion of operating expenses
(excluding losses on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant and equipment).
The council meets this benchmark if its revenue equals or is greater than its operating expenses.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENT
Environment Canterbury did not meet this benchmark in 2017/18 or 2018/19. As per the Annual Plan 2017/18 and the Long Term Plan
2018-28, Council approved the use of reserves to meet expenditure requirements as part of prudent financial management in order
to promote the current and future interests of the community.
In 2019/20, additional rates revenue was received due to an increase in the capital value of the rating base.
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ESSENTIAL SERVICES BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s capital expenditure on network services (i.e. Flood Protection) as a proportion of depreciation
on network services. The council meets this benchmark if its capital expenditure on network services equals or is greater than
depreciation on network services.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENT
The major construction and capitalisation of the Waimakariri stopbank resulted in high percentages of capital expenditure to
depreciation in the 2015/16 - 2018/19 financial years.
This work was completed in the 2018/19 financial year, and as a result, there has been a significant reduction in this percentage in
2019/20.
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DEBT SERVICING BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s borrowing costs as a proportion of revenue (excluding development contributions, financial
contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative financial instruments and revaluations of property, plant or equipment).
Because Statistics New Zealand projects the council’s population will grow faster than the national population growth rate, it meets
the debt servicing benchmark if its borrowing costs equal or are less than 10% of its revenue.
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DEBT CONTROL BENCHMARK
The following graph displays the council’s actual net debt as a proportion of planned net debt. In this statement net debt means
financial liabilities less financial assets (excluding trade and other receivables). The council meets the debt control benchmark if its
actual net debt equals or is less than its planned net debt.
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OPERATIONS CONTROL BENCHMARK
This graph displays the council’s actual net cash flows from operations as a proportion of its planned net cash flow from operations.
The council meets the operations control benchmark if its actual net cash flow from operations equals or is greater than its planned
net cash flow from operations.

The benchmark in the Operations Control Benchmark graph above is 100%. This benchmark therefore was not met in 2016, 2017,
2018 and 2019, but was met in 2020.
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THE ORGANISATION
Councillors and their responsibilities
Following the local government election in October 2019, a Council of 14 elected members took office:
Jenny Hughey - Christchurch North East/Ōrei - Chair
Peter J Scott - South Canterbury/Ōtuhituhi - Deputy Chair
Claire McKay - North Canterbury/Ōpukepuke
Grant Edge - North Canterbury/Ōpukepuke
Ian Mackenzie - Mid-Canterbury/Ōpākihi
John Sunckell - Mid-Canterbury/Ōpākihi
Tane Apanui - Christchurch North East/Ōrei
Phil Clearwater - Christchurch South/Ōwhanga
Vicky Southworth - Christchurch South/Ōwhanga
Megan Hands - Christchurch West/Ōpuna
Craig Pauling - Christchurch West/Ōpuna
Nicole Marshall - Christchurch Central/Ōhoko
Lan Pham - Christchurch Central/Ōhoko
Elizabeth McKenzie - South Canterbury/Ōtuhituhi
These Councillors form the full Council and also have responsibilities on various committees.
PERFORMANCE, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
This committee deals with audit, external financial reporting, financial risk management, internal control, strategic performance
management and operational performance. John Sunckell is the Chair. Jenny Hughey, Claire McKay, Grant Edge, Ian Mackenzie,
and Megan Hands make up the Performance, Audit and Risk Committee, along with an independent member, Graeme McGlinn who
was appointed in October 2019.
REGULATION HEARING COMMITTEE
This committee has delegated functions to appoint hearings commissioners under Resource Management Act processes and make
decisions on resource consent applications in accordance with delegated powers. Claire McKay is Chair of this committee, with
members Grant Edge, Craig Pauling, Nicole Marshall, and Lan Pham.
CANTERBURY REGIONAL TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
This is a statutory committee of Environment Canterbury, under the Land Transport Management Act, with two elected members
from Environment Canterbury, one member from each territorial authority, and one representative from the New Zealand Transport
Agency. This group prepares the Regional Land Transport Plan which sets out Canterbury's land transport objectives, policies,
10-year priorities and associated activities and investment plan, and advises and assists Environment Canterbury on any other matter
relating to its transport responsibilities. Peter J Scott and Tane Apanui are the Environment Canterbury representatives, with Peter
J Scott as Chair and Tane Apanui as Deputy Chair.
CANTERBURY CIVIL DEFENCE AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT GROUP JOINT COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee under the Civil Defence Emergency Management Act, made up of elected representatives from territorial
authorities and Environment Canterbury, exercising governance and determining Canterbury CDEM group emergency management
policy. John Sunckell is the Environment Canterbury representative.
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CANTERBURY MAYORAL FORUM
The Mayoral Forum is mandated by the Canterbury Local Authorities’ Triennial Agreements 2017-19 & 2020-22 as the primary
mechanism for local government co-ordination and collaboration in Canterbury. Environment Canterbury Chair Jenny Hughey
represents the regional council on the Mayoral Forum. The Mayoral Forum initiated and continues to provide governance oversight
of the Canterbury Water Management Strategy.
CANTERBURY REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
This committee was established under the Local Government Act 2002 in accordance with the Canterbury Water Management
Strategy 2009, and is a committee of Environment Canterbury. The committee monitors progress of the implementation of the
Canterbury Water Management Strategy across the Canterbury region and provides advice to Environment Canterbury on regional
issues associated with implementation of the Canterbury Water Management Strategy. Claire McKay and Craig Pauling are the
Environment Canterbury representatives.
CANTERBURY WATER MANAGEMENT STRATEGY ZONE COMMITTEES
The ten CWMS Zone Committees are joint committees between Environment Canterbury and the relevant territorial authority (city
or district council).
Kaikōura: Grant Edge
Hurunui-Waiau: Claire McKay
Waimakariri: Megan Hands
Christchurch-West Melton: Phil Clearwater
Banks Peninsula: Lan Pham
Selwyn-Waihora: Vicky Southworth
Ashburton: Ian Mackenzie
Orari-Temuka-Opihi-Pareora: Elizabeth McKenzie
Upper Waitaki: John Sunckell
Lower Waitaki: Nicole Marshall
GREATER CHRISTCHURCH PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee under the Local Government Act comprising the Greater Christchurch Partners – Environment Canterbury,
Christchurch City Council, Waimakariri District Council, Selwyn District Council, Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, Canterbury District Health
Board, New Zealand Transport Agency, Regenerate Christchurch and the Greater Christchurch Group of the Department of the Prime
Minister and Cabinet. This group determines an agreed strategic framework to manage growth and address urban development,
regeneration, resilience and long-term wellbeing for Greater Christchurch as expressed through the Greater Christchurch Urban
Development Strategy (2007) - the associated Strategy Update (2016), and the Greater Christchurch Future Development Strategy
('Our Space') 2019. Jenny Hughey, Grant Edge, and Phil Clearwater are the Environment Canterbury representatives on the committee.
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GREATER CHRISTCHURCH PUBLIC TRANSPORT JOINT COMMITTEE
This is a joint committee whose membership comprises three Environment Canterbury elected members, three Christchurch City
Council members, one Waimakariri District Council member, one Selwyn District Council member, and one representative from the
New Zealand Transport Agency. The committee provides leadership with respect to the provision of public transport services and
infrastructure in Greater Christchurch through the development (and implementation) of the Regional Public Transport Plan. Jenny
Hughey, Tane Apanui, and Phil Clearwater are the Environment Canterbury representatives on the committee.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT, PERFORMANCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
This committee acts for and advises Council on matters pertaining to the employment of the Council’s Chief Executive. Jenny Hughey
is the Chair of this committee, and Peter J Scott, Ian Mackenzie, and Phil Clearwater make up the committee membership.
PARTNERSHIP & CO-GOVERNANCE
Te Rōpū Tuia
The Council seeks to maintain durable relationships and partnerships with Māori (Ngāi Tahu Papatipu Rūnanga, Te Rūnanga o Ngāi
Tahu and Ngā Maata Waka) and give effect to the Council’s obligations under the Treaty of Waitangi, Ngāi Tahu Claims Settlement
Act 1998, Local Government Act 2002 and related obligations under the Resource Management Act 1991. Te Rōpū Tuia provides
leadership for mana whenua contributions to local government and environmental management within the greater Canterbury
region. Jenny Hughey is the Councillor responsible for this function. Te Rōpū Tuia membership includes the Chairpersons (or their
nominee) of all ten Canterbury Papatipu Rūnanga and all Councillors.
Councillors Tane Apanui, Vicky Southworth, Megan Hands, Craig Pauling, Nicole Marshall, Lan Pham, and Elizabeth McKenzie are
members of the Youth Rōpū committee.
Additional to Te Rōpū Tuia, the Chair and Chief Executive of Environment Canterbury meet with the Kaiwhakahaere and Chief Executive
from Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu from time-to-time.
Te Waihora Co-Governance
The Te Waihora Co-Governance Agreement recognises the commitment of statutory agencies and Ngāi Tahu to share responsibility
for the restoration and management of Te Waihora/Lake Ellesmere and the wider Te Waihora Catchment. It was originally signed
between Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu and Environment Canterbury in 2012, with Selwyn District Council and Christchurch City Council
joining in 2014 and 2016 respectively. In 2018 the Department of Conservation, Te Papa Atawhai, accepted an invitation to join the
Co-Governance Group and they became a full member in June 2019 with the signing of a revised Co-Governance Agreement. The Te
Waihora Co-Governance Agreement jointly commits each organisation to independently dedicate resources and expertise to protect,
restore and enhance the lake and catchment.
Co-governance of the catchment is a specific goal in the Canterbury Water Management Strategy. Jenny Hughey and Craig Pauling
are the Environment Canterbury representatives on the Te Waihora Co-Governance Group.
COUNCIL PORTFOLIOS
Councillors are responsible for groups of activities, as follows:
Freshwater Management: Claire McKay and Nicole Marshall (Joint Portfolio Leads), Craig Pauling, Ian Mackenzie, Lan Pham, Megan
Hands and Vicky Southworth
Biodiversity & Biosecurity: Lan Pham (Portfolio Lead), Craig Pauling, Elizabeth McKenzie, Grant Edge, Ian Mackenzie, Megan Hands
and Vicky Southworth

49

Hazards, Risk and Resilience: Elizabeth McKenzie and Vicky Southworth (Joint Portfolio Leads), Grant Edge, John Sunckell, Lan Pham
and Nicole Marshall
Transport and Urban Development: Tane Apanui and Phil Clearwater (Portfolio Co-Leads), Peter Scott, Grant Edge, Ian Mackenzie,
Nicole Marshall and Vicky Southworth
Air quality: Peter Scott (Portfolio Lead), Elizabeth McKenzie, Tane Apanui and Vicky Southworth
Regional Leadership: Jenny Hughey (Portfolio Lead), Peter Scott, Claire McKay, Craig Pauling, Megan Hands and Phil Clearwater
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Groups and Directors' contact details
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Stefanie Rixecker
stefanie.rixecker@ecan.govt.nz

DIRECTOR STRATEGY AND PLANNING
Katherine Trought
katherine.trought@ecan.govt.nz

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Nadeine Dommisse
nadeine.dommisse@ecan.govt.nz

DIRECTOR FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES
Miles McConway
miles.mcconway@ecan.govt.nz

ACTING DIRECTOR SCIENCE
Tim Davie
tim.davie@ecan.govt.nz

DIRECTOR COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT
Tafflyn Bradford-James
tafflyn.bradford-james@ecan.govt.nz
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APPENDIX 1 - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENTS
Council funding impact statement
The council is required to include Funding Impact Statements in its annual report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial
Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information, including definitions of
some of the terms used in this statement.
LTP
2018/19
$000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charge, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Interest and dividends from investments
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding (A)
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding (B)
Surplus (deficit) of operating funding (A − B)
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions - Insurance proceeds
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding (C)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
• to meet additional demand
• to improve the level of service
• to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding (D)
Surplus (deficit) of capital funding (C − D)
Funding balance ((A − B) + (C − D))
Reconciliation of Operating Funding to Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense
Surplus / (deficit) of operating funding
Adjust for other sources of non-cash funding excluded from the funding impact statement
Depreciation
Interest rate swap expense
Adjust for other revenue and expenditure for capital
Other revenue
Other non-operating revenue/(expenditure)
Tax expense
Surplus/(deficit) per statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
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61,720
38,074
34,430
35,581
743
251
170,798

Annual
Actual
Actual
Plan
2018/19
2019/20
2019/20
$000
$000
$000
63,136
68,381 69,724
39,295
41,901 42,690
34,897
39,887 45,478
34,570 37,090 31,841
460
566
627
2,797
15
2,171
175,155 187,840 192,531

164,479 169,627
1,296
1,148
165,776 170,775
5,022
4,380
2,912
4,726
1,128
8,766

8,436
5,891
14,327

3,240
2,119
16,876
11,314
(1,721)
10,211
(4,607) (4,936)
13,788 18,707
(5,022) (4,380)
-

181,027 180,071
1,495
1,306
182,522 181,377
5,318 11,154
563
8,528
1,143
10,234

16,015
380
16,395

4,479
4,407
17,196
8,525
(1,368)
1,924
(4,755) 12,694
15,552 27,549
(5,318) (11,154)
-

5,022

4,380

5,318

11,154

(6,743)
-

(5,814)
-

(6,685)
-

(5,741)
(449)

(1,721)

5,891
9
4,466

(1,368)

12,421
5
17,388

Air Quality

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

1,318
2,057
100
3,475

1,309
2,179
79
3,567

1,064
1,790
189
3,043

2,468
1,263
3,731
(256)

2,454
1,292
3,746
(179)

1,300
69
841
2,209
833

2,501
2,501

2,084
2,084

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

249
1,996
2,245
256
-

151
1,754
1,905
179
-

249
584
833
(833)
-

223

244

234
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Biodiversity and Biosecurity

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

7,614
2,077
73
9,763

7,909
1,710
72
9,691

8,244
2,200
5,831
303
16,577

6,719
2,916
9,636
128

7,335
2,960
10,295
(604)

13,797
3,745
17,542
(964)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11
117
128
(128)
-

11
(614)
(604)
604
-

(964)
(964)
964
-

107

159

339

Freshwater Management

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

27,150
2,220
919
30,289

30,203
15
332
596
31,146

30,331
1,427
522
32,280

19,401
40
10,877
30,319
(29)

18,760
40
11,136
29,936
1,210

15,861
135
13,743
29,739
2,541

1,340
1,340

(268)
(268)

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,407

2,961
(1,650)
1,311
29
-

1,147
(205)
942
(1,210)
-

(1,866)
2,541
(2,541)
-

1,074

1,322

2,015
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Hazards, Risk and Resilience

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

7,939
10,736
786
7,551
27,013

8,536
11,990
354
7,164
28,045

8,525
10,946
1,001
8,761
29,233

17,753
456
6,608
24,817
2,196

17,752
624
6,760
25,137
2,908

18,958
300
9,104
28,362
871

4,000
4,000

(400)
(400)

-

-

-

-

3,240

-

-

(949)
3,906
6,196
(2,196)
-

1,177
1,331
2,508
(2,908)
-

1,489
(617)
871
(871)
-

852

978

1,422

Regional Leadership

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

16,917
418
8,391
25,725

16,483
73
8,055
24,611

20,626
785
8,445
29,856

15,183
12,093
27,277
(1,551)

14,976
12,151
27,126
(2,515)

16,777
(53)
13,056
29,779
76

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

51
(1,602)
(1,551)
1,551
-

63
(2,578)
(2,515)
2,515
-

18
59
76
76
-

626

841

1,450
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Transport and Urban Development

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense
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Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

781
23,204
31,006
19,541
74,531

800
23,787
30,456
20,422
75,464

934
27,754
36,433
15,367
80,488

70,713
48
2,461
73,221
1,311

72,369
48
2,514
74,931
534

74,350
17
2,777
77,144
3,344

1,326
1,400
2,726

4,157
4,157

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,754
1,283
4,037
(1,311)
-

156
4,534
4,690
(534)
-

117
3,227
3,344
(3,344)
-

453

493

281

Flood Protection and Control Works

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties
Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges
Internal charges and overheads recovered
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total operating funding
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs
Internal charges and overheads applied
Other operating funding applications
Total applications of operating funding
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase/(decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Other dedicated capital funding
Total sources of capital funding
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of
service
- to replace existing assets
Increase/(decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total applications of capital funding
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding
Funding balance
The above table excludes the following non cash charges:
Depreciation expense

Long-Term
Plan
2018/19
$000

Long-Term
Plan
2019/20
$000

Actual
2019/20
$000

1,254
7,353
346
857
9,810

1,458
8,507
354
363
10,682

2,032
8,344
526
6,940
17,842

9,288
456
2,630
12,374
(2,564)

9,387
624
2,676
12,688
(2,006)

12,094
300
5,010
17,404
438

4,000
4,000

(400)
(400)

-

-

-

-

3,240

-

-

(949)
(855)
1,436
2,564
-

1,177
(3,582)
(2,406)
2,006
-

182
256
438
(438)
-

38

38

918

In accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014, a separate Funding Impact Statement
is produced for Flood Protection and Control Works.
Flood Protection and Control Works is part of the Hazards, Risk and Resilience portfolio at Environment Canterbury.
The amounts in the Flood Protection and Control Works Funding Impact Statement above are also included in the Hazards, Risk and
Resilience Funding Impact Statement on page 55.
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Thank you for your interest in the work of Environment Canterbury.
For more information please visit www.ecan.govt.nz where you can find the Long-Term Plan 2018-28, the 2020/21 Annual
Plan, previous annual reports, the region’s overarching plans and strategies, information about projects and activity underway
in the region, and real-time data such as river flows and air quality reporting.
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Taking action together to shape a thriving and
resilient Canterbury, now and for future generations.
Toitū te marae o Tāne, toitū te marae o Tangaroa, toitū te iwi.
www.ecan.govt.nz
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